
From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: 2019-006264DES - 1315 Waller Street Neighbor Letters
Date: Wednesday, July 15, 2020 9:33:12 AM
Attachments: Four Seasons Historic District.msg

National Register listing update.msg
Historical Designation for 1321 Waller Street.msg
1315 Waller Correspondence.pdf

 
 
Jonas P. Ionin,
Director of Commission Affairs
 
Planning Department│City & County of San Francisco
1650 Mission Street, Suite 400, San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 415-558-6309│Fax: 415-558-6409
 
jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
www.sfplanning.org
 
 

From: "McMillen, Frances (CPC)" <frances.mcmillen@sfgov.org>
Date: Tuesday, July 14, 2020 at 6:49 PM
To: CTYPLN - COMMISSION SECRETARY <CPC.COMMISSIONSECRETARY@sfgov.org>
Subject: 2019-006264DES - 1315 Waller Street Neighbor Letters
 
Hello,
 
I received the attached messages related to my item at HPC tomorrow - 1315 Waller
Street 2019-006264DES. I've also attached a PDF of the three messages in case that's helpful. 
 
Thank you!
 

Frances M. McMillen

Senior Planner | Preservation—Landmarks & Designations 

San Francisco Planning Department
1650 Mission Street, Suite 400 San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 415.575.9076 | www.sfplanning.org

San Francisco Property Information Map 

 
The Planning Department is open for business during the Stay Safe at Home Order. Most of our
staff are working from home and we’re available by e-mail. Our Public Portal, where you can file
new applications, and our Property Information Map are available 24/7. The Planning and Historic
Preservation Commissions are convening remotely and the public is encouraged to participate. The
Board of Appeals, Board of Supervisors, and Planning Commission are accepting appeals via e-mail
despite office closures. All of our in-person services at 1650 and 1660 Mission Street are suspended
until further notice. Click here for more information.
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Four Seasons Historic District

		From

		Kerfin

		To

		McMillen, Frances (CPC)

		Recipients

		frances.mcmillen@sfgov.org



 	 This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted sources.



 



Dear Ms. McMillen and The San Francisco Historic Preservation Commission,





In light of your meeting on July 15, 2020 addressing the nomination of 1315 Waller St. to the National Register,  we would like to go on record as not being in support of the formation of the Planning Department's proposed Article 10 Four Seasons Historic Landmark District on the city's Landmark Designation Work Program as referenced in the Planning Department's staff analysis associated with this nomination.  Furthermore, we do not support inclusion or nomination of our home for any local, state, or national historic district, registration, or designation. 




Thank you for your time and consideration in this matter.




Sincerely,




Martin Kernberg and Karrie Finkel-Kernberg

1327 Waller St.

San Francisco, CA 94117




National Register listing update

		From

		Isabel Pinner

		To

		McMillen, Frances (CPC)

		Cc

		Dickon Pinner

		Recipients

		dickon.pinner@gmail.com; frances.mcmillen@sfgov.org





This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted sources.







Dear Frances,



Many thanks for your email regarding the Leifers’ application for their home to be included on the National Historic Registry through the California Office of Historic Preservation, and notification of the meeting on 7/15/20.



We would like to take this opportunity to express our ongoing opposition to the inclusion of our home (1333 Waller street) on the Landmark Designation Work Program.



Sincerely,



Isabel & Dickon Pinner




Historical Designation for 1321 Waller Street

		From

		Ron Yamamoto

		To

		McMillen, Frances (CPC)

		Cc

		Mamma😘💋😍

		Recipients

		frances.mcmillen@sfgov.org; kdgrowney@gmail.com



 	 This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted sources.



 



Dear Ms. McMillen, 




It has been brought to my attention that our neighbors at 1315 Waller Street have filed for nomination in the National National Register of Historic Places.  Our house is adjacent to the property with address 1321 and 1323 Waller Street.  We have owned the house for approximately 30 years and consider it to be our home.




This communication is to notify you that we do not support our house being included in any local, state, or national historic district or designation, including the Four Seasons Historic District on the city's Landmark Designation Work Program and any district nomination on the National Register.  




I understand there will be a planning commission meeting regarding this matter on 15 July.  Unfortunately I am working out of the country and will be unable to attend, hence this communication to inform you of our position on the matter.




Please contact me if we can provide any further information or clarification.




Sincerely,

Ronald Yamamoto

Kristen Growney






  



	 Virus-free. www.avg.com 	








7/14/2020 Mail - McMillen, Frances (CPC) - Outlook
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This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from
untrusted sources.


Four Seasons Historic District


Kerfin <kerfin@aol.com>
Tue 7/14/2020 5:05 PM
To:  McMillen, Frances (CPC) <frances.mcmillen@sfgov.org>


 


Dear Ms. McMillen and The San Francisco Historic Preservation Commission,


In light of your meeting on July 15, 2020 addressing the nomination of 1315 Waller St. to the National Register,  we
would like to go on record as not being in support of the formation of the Planning Department's proposed Article
10 Four Seasons Historic Landmark District on the city's Landmark Designation Work Program as referenced in
the Planning Department's staff analysis associated with this nomination.  Furthermore, we do not support
inclusion or nomination of our home for any local, state, or national historic district, registration, or designation. 


Thank you for your time and consideration in this matter.


Sincerely,


Martin Kernberg and Karrie Finkel-Kernberg
1327 Waller St.
San Francisco, CA 94117







7/14/2020 Mail - McMillen, Frances (CPC) - Outlook


https://outlook.office365.com/mail/deeplink?version=2020070601.02&popoutv2=1 1/1


National Register listing update


Isabel Pinner <isabel.pinner@gmail.com>
Tue 7/14/2020 3:53 PM
To:  McMillen, Frances (CPC) <frances.mcmillen@sfgov.org>
Cc:  Dickon Pinner <dickon.pinner@gmail.com>


This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.


Dear Frances,


Many thanks for your email regarding the Leifers’ application for their home to be included on the
National Historic Registry through the California Office of Historic Preservation, and notification of the
meeting on 7/15/20.


We would like to take this opportunity to express our ongoing opposition to the inclusion of our home
(1333 Waller street) on the Landmark Designation Work Program.


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


Ron Yamamoto <roncbx@gmail.com>
Tue 7/14/2020 8:17 AM
To: McMillen, Frances (CPC) <frances.mcmillen@sfgov.org> Cc: 
Mamma😘💋😍 <kdgrowney@gmail.com>


Dear Ms. McMillen,


It has been brought to my attention that our neighbors at 1315 Waller Street have filed for nomination in the
National National Register of Historic Places.  Our house is adjacent to the property with address 1321 and
1323 Waller Street.  We have owned the house for approximately 30 years and consider it to be our home.


This communication is to notify you that we do not support our house being included in any local, state, or national
historic district or designation, including the Four Seasons Historic District on the city's Landmark Designation
Work Program and any district nomination on the National Register.  


I understand there will be a planning commission meeting regarding this matter on 15 July.  Unfortunately I am
working out of the country and will be unable to attend, hence this communication to inform you of our position on
the matter.


Please contact me if we can provide any further information or clarification.


Sincerely,
Ronald Yamamoto
Kristen Growney


Virus-free. www.avg.com



http://www.avg.com/email-signature?utm_medium=email&utm_source=link&utm_campaign=sig-email&utm_content=webmail
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This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from
untrusted sources.

From: CPC-Commissions Secretary
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: Letter of support - Resolution Centering Preservation Planning on Racial and Social Equity (2016-

003351CWP)
Date: Wednesday, July 15, 2020 9:09:03 AM
Attachments: APIAHiP - Letter of Support - San Francisco Planning - 14July2020.pdf

 
 
 
Commission Affairs
San Francisco Planning Department 
1650 Mission Street, Suite 400 San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 415.575.9111 | www.sfplanning.org
San Francisco Property Information Map
 
 
REDUCED CAPACITY DURING THE SHELTER IN PLACE ORDER -- The Planning Department is
open for business. Most of our staff are working from home and we’re available by e-
mail. Our Public Portal, where you can file new applications, and our award-winning Property
Information Map are available 24/7. Similarly, the Board of Appeals and Board of Supervisors are
accepting appeals via e-mail despite office closures. To protect everyone’s health, all of our in-
person services at 1650 and 1660 Mission Street are suspended, and the Planning and Historic
Preservation Commissions are cancelled until April 9, at the earliest. Click here for more
information.
 
 

From: Michelle Magalong <michelle@apiahip.org> 
Sent: Wednesday, July 15, 2020 8:17 AM
To: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>
Subject: Letter of support - Resolution Centering Preservation Planning on Racial and Social Equity
(2016-003351CWP)
 

 

Dear Commissioners:

On behalf of the Board of Directors of Asian and Pacific Islander Americans in Historic Preservation,
we would like to endorse the resolution centering preservation planning on racial and social equity.
The resolution itself is a noteworthy document detailing racial disparities in the City and County of
San Francisco and how communities of color and other marginalized groups have been negatively
impacted by systematic racism.

Please see attached for our letter of support for the resolution “Centering Preservation Planning on
Racial and Social Equity (2016-003351CWP)”. We applaud the thorough documentation of the
resolution and its recommendations to re-center the planning department’s preservation work
and resource allocation to focus on racial and social equity and look forward to learning about your
progress in these efforts. We would love to be able to provide you with resources from around the
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Board of Directors 
 
Michelle Magalong, PhD 
President 
Washington, DC 
 
Bill Watanabe 
Chair 
Los Angeles, CA 
 
Karen Kai 
Vice Chair 
San Francisco, CA 
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Secretary 
Los Angeles, CA 
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Treasurer 
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Los Angeles, CA 
 
Joseph Quinata 
Hagåtña, Guam 
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West Sacramento, CA 
 
 
APIAHiP 
2279 Glendale Blvd., #3 
Los Angeles, CA 90039 
www.apiahip.org 


July 14, 2020 
  
Historic Preservation Commission 
Planning Department 
City of San Francisco 
1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place  
San Francisco, CA 94102  
 
Re: Resolution Centering Preservation Planning on Racial and Social Equity (2016-003351CWP) 
 
Dear Commissioners: 


On behalf of the Board of Directors of Asian and Pacific Islander Americans in Historic 
Preservation, we would like to endorse the resolution centering preservation planning on racial and social 
equity. The resolution itself is a noteworthy document detailing racial disparities in the City and County of 
San Francisco and how communities of color and other marginalized groups have been negatively 
impacted by systematic racism. 


The mission of Asian and Pacific Islander Americans in Historic Preservation is to protect historic 
places and cultural resources significant to Asian and Pacific Islander Americans through historic 
preservation and heritage conservation.  


We host the biennial National Asian and Pacific Islander American Historic Preservation Forum 
(known as National Forum), which aims to highlight local historic and cultural resources associated with 
APIAs, as well as bring together preservationists, historians, urban planners, architects, community 
leaders, policy makers, and others involved in historic preservation. APIAHiP also focuses on national 
advocacy and policy issues, including increasing participation in and visibility of APIA historic and 
cultural resources at every level. Our first national forum was held in San Francisco in 2010, and 
subsequently in Los Angeles, Washington, DC, Stockton, back in San Francisco, and earlier this year in 
Honolulu. 


In our most recent National Forum in San Francisco, our field studies included visits to the 
International Hotel, GLBT Museum, Chinatown, SOMA Pilipinas, and Japantown, and we celebrated the 
1968 San Francisco State University student strikers. San Francisco unfortunately has had a past that 
actively discriminated against Asian and Pacific Islanders including laws specifically targeting Chinese 
residents such as laws affecting their ability to work (e.g., laundries without carts must pay a higher fee 
than those with them; workers could not carry goods on poles across their shoulders, laundries in wooden 
buildings required permits) and live (e.g., the Cubic Air Ordinance, queues must be cut off). The Chinese 
American community fought these laws, and in the case of Yick Wo v. Hopkins (118 U.S. 356 (1886)), 
won before the Supreme Court. This case established precedent for use of the Equal Protection clause of 
the US Constitution. After the earthquake and fire of 1906, the Chinese American community fought off 
the city’s proposed move of Chinatown to Hunter’s Point. A draft historic context statement under 
development by the Planning Department provides much more detail about how the Chinese American 
community in San Francisco was shaped and constricted by city legislation. 


Similar anti-Asian policies and practices in the city include the Japanese American community, 
where along with African American communities were decimated by redevelopment in the Western 
Edition and by construction of the Geary Expressway. The Filipino American community, already 
shrunken because of the growth of the Financial District, was basically eliminated at its former Kearny 
Street location by the demolition of the International Hotel and eviction of its mostly elderly Filipino 
residents. Both of these communities continue to fight to preserve what remains including the Japanese 
YWCA in Japantown (recently listed on the National Register of Historic Places) and Gran Oriente 
(recently listed as eligible on the National Register). These are just a few examples in the AAPI 
community in the city that demonstrate the impact of racist policies as well as the resiliency of our 
communities in preserving and maintaining its cultural vibrancy.   


We applaud the thorough documentation of the resolution and its recommendations to re-center 
the planning department’s preservation work and resource allocation to focus on racial and social equity 
and look forward to learning about your progress in these efforts. We would love to be able to provide you 
with resources from around the country in this effort. 


 
 
Sincerely, 


     
Michelle G. Magalong, PhD   Bill Watanabe 
President     Chair 







country in this effort.

Sincerely,
Michelle 
****
Michelle G. Magalong, PhD
Executive Director 
Asian and Pacific Islander Americans in Historic Preservation
www.apiahip.org
www.facebook.com/apiahip
@APIAHiP
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
Subject: FW: Public Comment by Carl L. Williams re: Historic Preservation Resolution on Racial and Social Equity - 7.15.20
Date: Wednesday, July 15, 2020 9:08:20 AM
Attachments: CLW COMMENTS TO HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION.docx

 
 
 
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
 
 

From: Carl Williams <carllwilliams546@gmail.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, July 15, 2020 7:13 AM
To: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>
Cc: Carl Williams <carllwilliams546@gmail.com>; Caltagirone, Shelley (CPC)
<shelley.caltagirone@sfgov.org>
Subject: Public Comment by Carl L. Williams re: Historic Preservation Resolution on Racial and Social
Equity - 7.15.20
 

 

TO:  Honorable Historic Preservation Commission Members
 
Attn:  Commission Secretary
 
Attached please find a copy of my public comments to the proposed Resolution Centering
Preservation on Racial and Social Equity to be considered by the Historic Preservation Commission at
its meeting today, July 15, 2020.
I respectfully request that my comments be entered into the record of the public hearing as I will not
be available to call-in at the appointed time of the meeting to formally testify.
 
Thank you in advance for your consideration.
 

mailto:commissions.secretary@sfgov.org
mailto:Josephine.Feliciano@sfgov.org
http://www.sfplanning.org/
http://propertymap.sfplanning.org/
https://sfplanning.org/staff-directory
https://sfplanning.org/staff-directory
https://aca-ccsf.accela.com/ccsf/Default.aspx
https://sfplanninggis.org/pim/
https://sfplanninggis.org/pim/
mailto:alec.longaway@sfgov.org
mailto:bos.legislation@sfgov.org
https://sfplanning.org/node/1964
https://sfplanning.org/node/1964

[bookmark: _GoBack]THE HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION RESOLUTION NO. #### CENTERING PRESERVATION PLANNING ON RACIAL AND SOCIAL EQUITY –HEARING DATE: JULY 15, 2020

PUBLIC COMMENTS BY CARL L. WILLIAMS

	President Aaron Hyland and Honorable Commissioners, I appreciate the opportunity to comment on the very significant Historic Preservation Commission Resolution No. #### Centering Preservation Planning on Racial and Social Equity (“Resolution”).

 I also extend my gratitude to Ms. Shelley Caltagirone of the Department of City Planning for informing me of this Resolution, the hearing today, and inviting my participation in the hearing.

The range of my background in San Francisco government and community affairs informs the perspective I bring to my comments on this Resolution, specifically:  

· San Francisco Redevelopment Agency, Deputy Area Director, A-2 Project—1968-1970.

· Director, Mayor’s Office of Community Development (George Moscone)—1977-1978.

· Executive Director, San Francisco Housing Authority, 1978-1985.

· General Counsel, San Francisco Housing Authority—1998-2003.

· San Francisco Ethics Commission, Chairperson, 1996-1997.

· Board of Directors, San Francisco African American Historical and Cultural Society (2016-2019).

· Board of Directors, Bayview Hunter’s Point Multipurpose Senior Center, Inc. (2007-2012)

· Contributor to the African American Citywide Historic Context Statement Final Draft 2019.

· Homeowner in San Francisco since 1977.

Comments and Observations Regarding the Resolution:

1. I applaud the breath and ambitious reach of the Resolution to harness San Francisco’s complex and multifarious planning and development policies and administrative structure in a direction toward the pro-active identification of obstacles to achieving racial equity; such comprehensiveness is essential and necessary for racial inequities and disparate treatment are often deeply embedded in the institutional fabric of well-intended policies and programs.

2. I commend the Resolution’s resolve to “…change hiring and promotion practices to correct the underrepresentation of people of …color across all staff levels …” (emphasis mine) ; people of color know a wrong when they see it; they  instinctively  sense how a policy should be framed to receive a hospitable reception in communities of color. 

3. The oblique –and lone reference in the Resolution to the “…draft African American Historic Context Statement…” (at p.6) is inadequate  in two significant aspects: (1) It does not provide an update of the current status of the Final Draft 2019 edition of the African American Citywide Historic Context Statement (“Context Statement”) : Has it been adopted by this Commission? ; The Planning Commission? –when will it be released for public consumption? (2) The Resolution rightly labels the Context Statement “a milestone document”, but it does not minimally state that the Context Statement will be engaged in the effort for racial and social equity. 

4. For sure, the Context Statement is a “milestone document”, but its value as a tool to promote and assist in the aspiration for racial and social equity should be accorded an elevated treatment in this Resolution. 

5. I found no reference in the Resolution to the Slavery Era Disclosure Ordinance adopted by the Board of Supervisors in 2006.  This measure—codified at Section 12Y of the San Francisco Administrative Code — constitutes an attempt by the City to address issues of racial equity and disparate treatment –albeit in the commercial areas of economic development and contracting.  At a minimum, this Resolution should include a “resolve” provision to direct staff to inquire into how the Slave Ordinance can be deployed to address the racial inequities that is the primary objective of this Resolution. It is not an overstatement to assert that in this struggle with the hydra-headed monster that is white supremacy, every legal tool and policy directive   must be put to its full and creative use.

I respectfully request that this statement be entered into the official records of this meeting.

Thank you

Carl L. Williams   
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Respectfully submitted,
 
Carl L. Williams
 
Sent from Mail for Windows 10
 

https://go.microsoft.com/fwlink/?LinkId=550986


From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** HEALTH AND RECOVERY BOND PASSES UNANIMOUSLY AT BOARD OF

SUPERVISORS
Date: Tuesday, July 14, 2020 5:12:35 PM
Attachments: 07.14.20 Health and Recovery Bond.pdf

 
 
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
 
 

From: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>
Date: Tuesday, July 14, 2020 at 5:07 PM
To: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>
Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** HEALTH AND RECOVERY BOND PASSES
UNANIMOUSLY AT BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Tuesday, July 14, 2020
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org
 

*** PRESS RELEASE ***
HEALTH AND RECOVERY BOND PASSES UNANIMOUSLY

AT BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
The $487.5 million Bond for the November 2020 ballot will fund essential City infrastructure

and support San Franciscans’ mental and physical health with new investments in parks, open
spaces, behavioral health facilities, and housing and shelter for the vulnerable

 
San Francisco, CA — The Board of Supervisors voted unanimously to support the Health
and Recovery General Obligation Bond for the November 2020 ballot. Mayor London N.
Breed introduced the Bond in May to fund priority investments in mental health and
homelessness, parks and recreation spaces, and essential public infrastructure.
 
“The Health and Recovery Bond comes at a critical time for our city. We are still in the midst
of a public health emergency and we’re seeing record rates of unemployment as a result. We
need to invest in the health and economic wellbeing our entire community,” said Mayor
Breed. “COVID-19 has shown us just how important it is to have safe and accessible outdoor
spaces and recreation opportunities, and has underscored the need to create more permanent
supportive housing, while improving our behavioral health resources.”
 
The Health and Recovery Bond is the result of a collaborative effort, and reflects input from
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OFFICE OF THE MAYOR  LONDON N. BREED 
 SAN FRANCISCO                                                                    MAYOR  
     
 


 


1 DR. CARLTON B. GOODLETT PLACE, ROOM 200 
SAN FRANCISCO, CALIFORNIA 94102-4681 


TELEPHONE: (415) 554-6141 
 


 


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


and support San Franciscans’ mental and physical health with new investments in parks, open 
spaces, behavioral health facilities, and housing and shelter for the vulnerable 


 
San Francisco, CA — The Board of Supervisors voted unanimously to support the Health and 
Recovery General Obligation Bond for the November 2020 ballot. Mayor London N. Breed 
introduced the Bond in May to fund priority investments in mental health and homelessness, 
parks and recreation spaces, and essential public infrastructure. 
 
“The Health and Recovery Bond comes at a critical time for our city. We are still in the midst of 
a public health emergency and we’re seeing record rates of unemployment as a result. We need 
to invest in the health and economic wellbeing our entire community,” said Mayor Breed. 
“COVID-19 has shown us just how important it is to have safe and accessible outdoor spaces and 
recreation opportunities, and has underscored the need to create more permanent supportive 
housing, while improving our behavioral health resources.” 
 
The Health and Recovery Bond is the result of a collaborative effort, and reflects input from 
multiple City departments, the Board of Supervisors, and community members. If approved by 
voters with a 2/3 vote in November 2020, the Bond will provide $487.5 million for three main 
categories of investment: health and homelessness; parks and open spaces; and right-of-way 
repair, including street resurfacing, curb ramps, and street structures and plazas, all with the goal 
of supporting economic recovery and the health of those experiencing homelessness and 
struggling with substance use and mental health disorders. 
 
In November 2019, Mayor Breed asked the City Administrator to reprioritize the General 
Obligation Bond program to reflect and address the urgency of San Francisco’s mental health 
and homelessness crisis. More recently, with the rise of the COVID-19 and associated increase in 
unemployment, there is also an urgent need to invest in shovel-ready projects and programs 
which can put San Franciscans back to work and stimulate our economy. It is estimated that for 
every $1 million spent on construction, an estimated 5.93 jobs are created. 
 
Health and Homelessness 
An estimated $207 million from the Health and Recovery Bond will fund investments in public 
facilities that provide housing and/or treatment to people struggling with homelessness and 
mental health and substance use disorders. Specifically, the Bond will provide funding for 
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1 DR. CARLTON B. GOODLETT PLACE, ROOM 200 
SAN FRANCISCO, CALIFORNIA 94102-4681 


TELEPHONE: (415) 554-6141 
 


 


Permanent Supportive Housing, transitional housing and shelter, and mental health and 
substance use disorder facilities 
 
Parks and Open Spaces 
Approximately $239 million of the Bond will be dedicated to neighborhood parks projects and a 
variety of programs that support recreation and open spaces. The funding will improve several of 
the City’s parks and recreation centers, playgrounds, and open spaces. The Bond includes 
funding for citywide parks and investments in priority recovery parks, which are City parks that 
will increase residents’ quality of life and provide places to relax, enjoy nature, play, and 
exercise. Additionally, the Bond will allow the City make investments in sustainability 
programs, the Community Opportunity Fund, community gardens, and trails.  
 
Right-of-Way Repair 
An estimated $41.5 million will go toward right-of-way repair, including street resurfacing, curb 
ramps, and street structures and plazas. These improvements will make it safer and more 
accessible for people to move around the city. This includes $31.5 million for investing in street 
resurfacing; $5 million for the design, construction and maintenance of ADA-compliant 
accessible curb ramps; and $5 million for the repair and maintenance of street structures. 
 
“Recovery takes on a new meaning for all of us. Not only do we need to recover from the 
economic downturn, but we need to heal the collective trauma felt by communities devastatingly 
impacted by the health crisis, isolation, and ongoing uncertainty,” said President Norman Yee. 
“This Bond is about San Franciscans’ overall health. It will support jobs, expand mental health 
services, and revitalize our treasured open spaces and playgrounds, which have become critical 
to our well-being during Shelter-in-Place, especially for children and families.” 
 
“This November, San Francisco voters have the opportunity to secure a major investment in our 
City’s recovery and the wellbeing of our communities,” said Supervisor and Budget Chair 
Sandra Lee Fewer. “This bond also delivers resources to our parks and public spaces, funding 
much needed repairs, renovations and fulfilling commitments to the San Francisco community. 
This is a difficult time for so many, but also an opportune time to pass a bond that invests so 
deeply in San Francisco’s health and recovery.” 
 
“For San Francisco to reopen everyday life, including schools and businesses, we have to be able 
to contain the contagion and prevent ongoing spikes,” said Supervisor Hillary Ronen. “Now, 
more than ever, it is essential that we have safe housing options for vulnerable people on our 
streets, address major gaps in mental and behavioral healthcare, and expand access to parks and 
urban agriculture opportunities. This bond is an essential piece of our recovery, and I hope that 
the voters will join me to enthusiastically support it in November.” 
 
“The Health and Recovery Bond meets critical needs like parks and healthcare identified in 
San Francisco’s Ten-Year Capital Plan,” said City Administrator Naomi M. Kelly. “In these 
tough times, it is critical to build a resilient and vibrant future for San Francisco and create high 
paying construction jobs while ensuring that that property tax rates will not increase.” 
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“Safe, healthy public spaces are essential to our mental and physical health, as well as our city’s 
recovery,” said San Francisco Recreation and Park Department General Manager Phil Ginsburg. 
“The park projects invest in the wellbeing of our communities, particularly those hit hardest by 
the pandemic and its economic impact. It is an investment that will pay dividends for 
generations.” 
 
“People experiencing homelessness, substance use disorder and mental illness are among the 
most vulnerable in our City. We are fortunate that so many San Francisco leaders and residents 
care about improving the circumstances, housing support and systems of care for people 
struggling with these difficult issues,” said Dr. Grant Colfax, Director of Health. “We know that 
wellness and recovery are possible, but it takes smart investment, a commitment to improvement 
and a recognition that housing and treatment cannot be decoupled. I am grateful to the Mayor 
and the Board of Supervisors for including these important services in the upcoming bond.” 
 
“By investing in shovel-ready public infrastructure projects, this bond will help rebuild 
San Francisco’s economy while addressing capital needs in the public right of way and public 
spaces,” said Acting Public Works Director Alaric Degrafinried. “If passed by voters in 
November, this bond measure will help make our outdoor spaces safer and more accessible.” 
 
The Health and Recovery General Obligation Bond is in line with the most recently updated 10-
year Capital Plan. Property taxes levied for general obligation bonds including this bond, if 
approved by the voters and issued by the Mayor and Board of Supervisors, are expected to be 
maintained at or below the Fiscal Year 2006 rate. 
 
More information about the 2020 Health and Recovery General Obligation Bond is available 
here.  
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multiple City departments, the Board of Supervisors, and community members. If approved by
voters with a 2/3 vote in November 2020, the Bond will provide $487.5 million for three main
categories of investment: health and homelessness; parks and open spaces; and right-of-way
repair, including street resurfacing, curb ramps, and street structures and plazas, all with the
goal of supporting economic recovery and the health of those experiencing homelessness and
struggling with substance use and mental health disorders.
 
In November 2019, Mayor Breed asked the City Administrator to reprioritize the General
Obligation Bond program to reflect and address the urgency of San Francisco’s mental health
and homelessness crisis. More recently, with the rise of the COVID-19 and associated increase
in unemployment, there is also an urgent need to invest in shovel-ready projects and programs
which can put San Franciscans back to work and stimulate our economy. It is estimated that
for every $1 million spent on construction, an estimated 5.93 jobs are created.
 
Health and Homelessness
An estimated $207 million from the Health and Recovery Bond will fund investments in
public facilities that provide housing and/or treatment to people struggling with homelessness
and mental health and substance use disorders. Specifically, the Bond will provide funding for
Permanent Supportive Housing, transitional housing and shelter, and mental health and
substance use disorder facilities
 
Parks and Open Spaces
Approximately $239 million of the Bond will be dedicated to neighborhood parks projects and
a variety of programs that support recreation and open spaces. The funding will improve
several of the City’s parks and recreation centers, playgrounds, and open spaces. The Bond
includes funding for citywide parks and investments in priority recovery parks, which are City
parks that will increase residents’ quality of life and provide places to relax, enjoy nature,
play, and exercise. Additionally, the Bond will allow the City make investments in
sustainability programs, the Community Opportunity Fund, community gardens, and trails.
 
Right-of-Way Repair
An estimated $41.5 million will go toward right-of-way repair, including street resurfacing,
curb ramps, and street structures and plazas. These improvements will make it safer and more
accessible for people to move around the city. This includes $31.5 million for investing in
street resurfacing; $5 million for the design, construction and maintenance of ADA-compliant
accessible curb ramps; and $5 million for the repair and maintenance of street structures.
 
“Recovery takes on a new meaning for all of us. Not only do we need to recover from the
economic downturn, but we need to heal the collective trauma felt by communities
devastatingly impacted by the health crisis, isolation, and ongoing uncertainty,” said President
Norman Yee. “This Bond is about San Franciscans’ overall health. It will support jobs, expand
mental health services, and revitalize our treasured open spaces and playgrounds, which have
become critical to our well-being during Shelter-in-Place, especially for children and
families.”
 
“This November, San Francisco voters have the opportunity to secure a major investment in
our City’s recovery and the wellbeing of our communities,” said Supervisor and Budget Chair
Sandra Lee Fewer. “This bond also delivers resources to our parks and public spaces, funding
much needed repairs, renovations and fulfilling commitments to the San Francisco
community. This is a difficult time for so many, but also an opportune time to pass a bond that



invests so deeply in San Francisco’s health and recovery.”
 
“For San Francisco to reopen everyday life, including schools and businesses, we have to be
able to contain the contagion and prevent ongoing spikes,” said Supervisor Hillary Ronen.
“Now, more than ever, it is essential that we have safe housing options for vulnerable people
on our streets, address major gaps in mental and behavioral healthcare, and expand access to
parks and urban agriculture opportunities. This bond is an essential piece of our recovery, and
I hope that the voters will join me to enthusiastically support it in November.”
 
“The Health and Recovery Bond meets critical needs like parks and healthcare identified in
San Francisco’s Ten-Year Capital Plan,” said City Administrator Naomi M. Kelly. “In these
tough times, it is critical to build a resilient and vibrant future for San Francisco and create
high paying construction jobs while ensuring that that property tax rates will not increase.”
 
“Safe, healthy public spaces are essential to our mental and physical health, as well as our
city’s recovery,” said San Francisco Recreation and Park Department General Manager Phil
Ginsburg. “The park projects invest in the wellbeing of our communities, particularly those hit
hardest by the pandemic and its economic impact. It is an investment that will pay dividends
for generations.”
 
“People experiencing homelessness, substance use disorder and mental illness are among the
most vulnerable in our City. We are fortunate that so many San Francisco leaders and
residents care about improving the circumstances, housing support and systems of care for
people struggling with these difficult issues,” said Dr. Grant Colfax, Director of Health. “We
know that wellness and recovery are possible, but it takes smart investment, a commitment to
improvement and a recognition that housing and treatment cannot be decoupled. I am grateful
to the Mayor and the Board of Supervisors for including these important services in the
upcoming bond.”
 
“By investing in shovel-ready public infrastructure projects, this bond will help rebuild
San Francisco’s economy while addressing capital needs in the public right of way and public
spaces,” said Acting Public Works Director Alaric Degrafinried. “If passed by voters in
November, this bond measure will help make our outdoor spaces safer and more accessible.”
 
The Health and Recovery General Obligation Bond is in line with the most recently updated
10-year Capital Plan. Property taxes levied for general obligation bonds including this bond, if
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
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC); Caltagirone, Shelley (CPC)
Subject: FW: Historic Preservation Commission Racial Equity Resolution
Date: Tuesday, July 14, 2020 4:38:55 PM
Attachments: image001.png

FYI
 
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
 
 

From: Shelley Caltagirone <shelley.caltagirone@sfgov.org>
Date: Tuesday, July 14, 2020 at 2:05 PM
To: CTYPLN - COMMISSION SECRETARY <CPC.COMMISSIONSECRETARY@sfgov.org>
Subject: FW: Historic Preservation Commission Racial Equity Resolution
 
Hello,
 
Can this email be forwarded to the HPC ahead of tomorrow’s hearing? Thank you!
 
Shelley Caltagirone
Senior Planner | Community Equity Team | Cultural Heritage Specialist
 
Planning Department, City and County of San Francisco
1650 Mission Street, Suite 400, San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 415-558-6625 Fax: 415-558-6409
Email: shelley.caltagirone@sfgov.org
Web: www.sfplanning.org
 
The Planning Department is open for business during the Stay Safe at Home Order. Most of our staff
are working from home and we’re available by e-mail. Our Public Portal, where you can file new
applications, and our Property Information Map are available 24/7. The Planning and Historic
Preservation Commissions are convening remotely and the public is encouraged to participate. The
Board of Appeals, Board of Supervisors, and Planning Commission are accepting appeals via e-mail
despite office closures. All of our in-person services at 1650 and 1660 Mission Street are suspended
until further notice. Click here for more information.
 

From: Raquel Redondiez <raquel@somapilipinas.org> 
Sent: Sunday, July 12, 2020 11:58 PM
To: Caltagirone, Shelley (CPC) <shelley.caltagirone@sfgov.org>
Cc: snakajo@yahoo.com; Nina Bazan-Sakamoto <nbazan-sakamoto@japantowntaskforce.org>;
manager@sflcd.org; Robert Goldfarb <bob@hellobob.net>; Bob.Brown@sflcd.org;
aria@kweenculture.com; Janelle Luster <janelle@transgenderdistrictsf.com>; Sean Greene
<sean@transgenderdistrictsf.com>; Rlastimosa@somapipinas.org; Mario de Mira
<mario@somapilipinas.org>; ellouise0959@gmail.com; MeaghanMitchell@gmail.com; April Spears
(auntieaprils94124@gmail.com) <auntieaprils94124@gmail.com>; Susana Rojas
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mailto:Josephine.Feliciano@sfgov.org
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https://sfplanning.org/node/1964






  This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted sources.

<susana@calle24sf.org>; erick@calle24sf.org; A. Sparks <sparks@mastofoundation.org>;
e.m.lanyon@gmail.com; AmericanIndianCulturalDistrict@gmail.com; April McGill
<mzmcgill@yahoo.com>; Sabory, Julia (MYR) <julia.sabory@sfgov.org>; Flores, Claudia (CPC)
<claudia.flores@sfgov.org>; Torrey, Andre (CPC) <dre.torrey@sfgov.org>; Yen, Aaron (CPC)
<aaron.yen@sfgov.org>; Chen, Lisa (CPC) <lisa.chen@sfgov.org>; Nelson, Andrea (CPC)
<andrea.nelson@sfgov.org>; team@somapilipinas.org
Subject: Re: Historic Preservation Commission Racial Equity Resolution
 

 

Thank you so much Shelley!  
 
We really appreciate you reaching out to us on this and we can make sure we have a couple of
representatives support the resolution.  I'm particularly excited about these sections below as we work
on our CHHESS report, we have been contemplating how we can use historic preservation to protect
spaces and especially housing that are historically significant not necessarily because of its physical
design but because of decades of community members that have resided in them as well as social and
cultural activities.  It would be great if the HPC could truly resource both the research and
documentation and the community partnership that would go into landmarking these sites.  
 
Also, given the bringing down of the Columbus statue and directive to SFAC to review the various
monuments in the City, I would like to bring to your attention the Dewey monument in Union Square
which for the Filipino community marks the beginning of the brutal colonization of the Philippines and
paved the way for over a century of our people's subjugation.   Could you let us know what would be the
best way in which we can work with the HPC and SFAC to look into the removal of this monument?
 
Thank you!
Raquel
 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Historic Preservation Commission finds that as members of the
historic preservation profession, each of the Commissioners, staff, preservation specialists, and
interested members of the public have a responsibility to address the intangible qualities of culture in
our current practice in order to safeguard living heritage and to preserve the histories of communities
who have experienced migration, displacement, dispossession, or other circumstances that limit their
material culture; and, 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Historic Preservation Commission finds that the practice of
evaluating and managing the cultural heritage of marginalized communities should be deeply informed
by and often led by the community. To this end, the Commission will work to ensure that the
identification of cultural resources utilizes inclusive research methods that directly address past and
current racial and social inequities, it will expand outreach to descendant communities when cultural
resources associated with respective groups are potentially impacted by proposed development, and it
will outreach to Ohlone and American Indian individuals and groups about cultural resources; and, 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Historic Preservation Commission will work to build capacity in



communities of color and other marginalized communities to ensure that they have the resources
necessary to safeguard their cultural resources, including continued support for the creation and
maintenance of Cultural Districts as a means of supporting cultural groups that have experienced
discrimination, oppression, and displacement; and, 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Historic Preservation Commission supports the removal of
monuments commemorating racial injustice from public spaces, such as the “Early Days” component of
the Pioneer Monument and calls on the Arts Commission, Human Rights Commission, and the
Recreation and Parks Department to partner with the Historic Preservation Commission in leading a
public dialogue on the treatment and interpretation of such monuments within San Francisco; and, 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Historic Preservation Commission supports the removal of signage
from public spaces and urges public agencies to rename public assets which commemorate racial
injustices; and, 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Historic Preservation Commission urges the Planning Department to
advance racial and social equity through its historic preservation work and recommends consideration of
the following actions to integrate equity into the Commission's and Department’s historic preservation
workplan in coordination with the completion and implementation of the Department’s Phase II Racial &
Social Equity Action Plan. In collaboration with communities of color and other marginalized
communities: 1) Complete the African American, Chinese American and Latin-x Historic Context
Statements; 2) Create an inclusive research and evaluation process; (3) Assess our incentive, funding,
and education programs to make them more accessible to underrepresented communities and
preservation less burdensome; (4) Determine best practices for identification and preservation of
intangible resources; 5) Prioritize Landmark and Legacy Business designations in underserved
communities; 6) Assess historic resource inventories for omissions, biases, and disparities; 7) Address
training needs and representa
 
On Thu, Jul 9, 2020 at 10:39 AM Caltagirone, Shelley (CPC) <shelley.caltagirone@sfgov.org> wrote:

Dear Cultural Districts,
 
The Historic Preservation Commission has drafted a resolution to acknowledge the most recent
instance of violence inflicted on the Black community through the murder of George Floyd. The
resolution calls for centering the Historic Preservation’s work program and resources on racial and
social equity and implementing our Racial and Social Equity Initiative. It will be discussed next

Wednesday at the July 15th hearing. The item is currently listed under Commission Matters at the
beginning of the hearing. You can read the resolution in its entirety here.  
 
I know that the Commission and our staff would benefit from your participation in the hearing, so if
you feel led to share your experience, knowledge, and guidance, please join us at the hearing. You can
also reach out to me directly with your thoughts or send written comments to the Commission
through the Commission Secretary. The hearing details and contact information are listed below. I
hope you are all well and safe!
The call-in information for anyone wishing to view the hearing or provide comment is as follows:  
 

         
th

mailto:shelley.caltagirone@sfgov.org
https://commissions.sfplanning.org/hpcpackets/DRAFT%20HPC%20Equity%20Resolution_Final.pdf


· Next Wednesday, July 15  beginning at 12:30 p.m.   

·         Hearing Broadcast Live stream:  https://sfgovtv.org/planning and Cable Channel 78   

·         Public Comment Toll-free number:  (888) 273-3658 / Access code: 3107452 

 
The Commission strongly encourages interested parties to submit their comments in advance of
the hearing via email to: commissions.secretary@sfgov.org.  
 
If you are unable to watch the hearing live, you can watch it on replay at your
convenience at https://sfgovtv.org. Public comments will be accepted after the hearing and can be
sent to the Historic Preservation Commission at commissions.secretary@sfgov.org or to the staff
contacts listed below. More information on and the contact information for the Historic Preservation
Commissioners can also be found here: https://sfplanning.org/historic-preservation-commission 
 
For questions or comments, please
contact CPC.equity@sfgov.org, Shelley.Caltagirone@sfgov.org, Claudia.Flores@sfgov.org or call 415-
558-6473.   
For more information about the Planning Department’s Racial and Social Equity work, please visit our
website at: https://sfplanning.org/project/racial-and-social-equity-initiative.  
 
中文詢問請電: (415) 575-9010  
Para información en Español llamar al: (415) 575-9010  
Para sa impormasyon sa Tagalog tumawag sa: (415) 575-9010 
 
 
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
 

 
--
Raquel R. Redondiez
SOMA Pilipinas Director
Filipino Cultural Heritage District
Filipino-American Development Foundation
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From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: *** STATEMENT *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ON SANCTUARY CITY RULING
Date: Monday, July 13, 2020 2:20:17 PM
Attachments: 07.13.20 Sanctuary City_Ninth Circuit Court of Appeals.pdf

 
 
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
Date: Monday, July 13, 2020 at 2:14 PM
To: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>
Subject: *** STATEMENT *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ON SANCTUARY CITY
RULING
 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Monday, July 13, 2020
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org
 

*** STATEMENT ***
MAYOR LONDON BREED ON SANCTUARY CITY RULING

 
San Francisco, CA – The Ninth Circuit Court of Appeals today ruled that San Francisco’s
sanctuary ordinance is lawful and concluded that the Trump administration’s attempt to deny
federal funding to the City is unconstitutional.
 
“Here in San Francisco, we will always demonstrate our values of diversity and inclusiveness
by being a sanctuary city that stands up for all our residents and neighbors. The court ruling
today further validates what we already knew—the Trump administration’s attempt to
overreach and bully San Francisco into abandoning our values and complying with unfair,
unjust immigration enforcement laws is unconstitutional.
 
The Trump administration’s continued attacks on immigrants are putting people’s lives at risk,
especially in light of the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic. We need people to be comfortable
getting a COVID-19 test, going to the doctor, or responding to a contact tracer, without fearing
that their information will be shared for purposes of immigration enforcement. We need all
our residents to trust City government and know that we are here to help. In San Francisco,
we’re working to build that trust, not tear it apart with threats of deportation and enforcement
actions.
 

mailto:jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
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
 
“Here in San Francisco, we will always demonstrate our values of diversity and inclusiveness by 
being a sanctuary city that stands up for all our residents and neighbors. The court ruling today 
further validates what we already knew—the Trump administration’s attempt to overreach and 
bully San Francisco into abandoning our values and complying with unfair, unjust immigration 
enforcement laws is unconstitutional. 
 
The Trump administration’s continued attacks on immigrants are putting people’s lives at risk, 
especially in light of the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic. We need people to be comfortable 
getting a COVID-19 test, going to the doctor, or responding to a contact tracer, without fearing 
that their information will be shared for purposes of immigration enforcement. We need all our 
residents to trust City government and know that we are here to help. In San Francisco, we’re 
working to build that trust, not tear it apart with threats of deportation and enforcement actions. 
 
Our sanctuary ordinance makes our entire city safer. Our residents should not live in fear of 
calling the police to report crimes or working with law enforcement to strengthen our 
communities. This is an important victory for San Francisco and our immigrant communities, 
and I want to thank City Attorney Dennis Herrera for his work on this monumental case.” 
 
 


### 
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
Subject: FW: SF Office Development Annual Limitation Program - Update
Date: Friday, July 10, 2020 5:04:25 PM
Attachments: Office Allocation Stats (2020_7_10).pdf

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
 
 

From: Corey Teague <corey.teague@sfgov.org>
Date: Friday, July 10, 2020 at 4:53 PM
To: Corey Teague <corey.teague@sfgov.org>
Subject: SF Office Development Annual Limitation Program - Update
 
All Interested Parties,
The most current tracking information for the SF Office Development Annual Limitation Program is
attached, and will be available on our website early next week (https://sfplanning.org/office-
development-annual-limitation-program). Please let me know if you have any questions. Thanks.
 
_________________________
Corey A. Teague, AICP, LEED AP
Zoning Administrator
1650 Mission Street, Suite 400
San Francisco, CA 94103

corey.teague@sfgov.org 

(415) 575-9081 (phone)
(415) 558-6409 (fax)
 
The Planning Department is open for business during the Stay Safe at Home Order. Most of our
staff are working from home and we’re available by e-mail. Our Public Portal, where you can file
new applications, and our Property Information Map are available 24/7. The Planning and Historic
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
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Current Availability 752,624 gsf Pending Availability -38,747 gsf Pipeline Availability -105,747 gsf


Current Availability 24,949 gsf Pending Availability -4,646,452 gsf Pipeline Availability -5,244,175 gsf


* A "pending project" is one for which an office allocation application has been submitted but not yet acted upon.


Currently available square footage less 
4,671,401 gsf of pending* projects and 597,723 
gsf of pre-application** projects.


** A "pre-application" project is one for which an environmental review application, preliminary project assessment application, or other similar application has been submitted but for which no 
office allocation application has yet been submitted.


Office Development Annual Limitation ("Annual Limit") Program


The Office Development Annual Limit (Annual Limit) Program became effective in 1985 with the adoption of the Downtown Plan Amendments to the Planning Code (Sections 320–325) and 
was subsequently amended by Propositions M (1986) and C (1987). The Program defines and regulates the allocation of any office development project that exceeds 25,000 gross square feet 
(gsf) in area. However, pursuant to Proposition O (2016), office development within the Hunters Point Shipyard Phase 2 and Candlestick Point areas is not subject to this Program. 


A total of 950,000 gsf of office development potential becomes available for allocation in each approval period, which begins on October 17th every year.  Of the total new available space, 
75,000 gsf is reserved for Small Allocation projects (projects with between 25,000 and 49,999 gsf of office space), and the remaining 875,000 gsf is available for Large Allocation projects 
(projects with at least 50,000 gsf of office space).  Any available office space not allocated in a given year is carried over to subsequent years.


This document reflects the status of the Annual Limit Program, including current availability and summaries of previously approved and pending projects.


Information in this document was last updated on July 10, 2020. Inquiries should be directed to Corey Teague at (415) 575-9081 or corey.teague@sfgov.org. 


Summary of Key Figures


Small Allocation Projects
(<50,000 gsf of office space)


Large Allocation Projects
(>50,000 gsf of office space)


Current total square footage available for 
allocation.


Current total square footage available for 
allocation.


Currently available square footage less 791,371 
gsf of pending* projects.


Currently available square footage less 
4,671,401 gsf of pending* projects.


Currently available square footage less 791,371 
gsf of pending* projects and 67,000 gsf of pre-
application** projects.
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PENDING OFFICE PROJECTS*


Case No. Address Sq. Ft. Status Staff Comments


2014.0154 1800 Mission Street 49,999 OFA filed on 1/27/15 Rich Sucre Conversion in the Armory.


2015-010219 462 Bryant Street 49,990 OFA filed on 12/20/16
Esmeralda 
Jardines


5-story addition to existing 1-story building. (Central SoMa 
Project)


2016-004392 531-535 Bryant Street 47,810 OFA filed on 3/2/17
Ella 
Samonsky


Demo existing commercial building and construct new 65-ft, six-
story office and  retail sales/food service building. (Central 
SoMa Project)


2019-015122 444 Townsend Street 49,240 OFA filed on 8/8/19
Monica 
Giacomucci Convert first and second floors of existing building to office. 


2018-017279 501 Tunnel Avenue 49,999 OFA filed on 7/10/19
Ella 
Samonsky New office space for Recology regional HQ.


2018-014357 1450 Owens Street 49,950 OFA filed on 6/18/19 Mat Snyder
New building with approx. 150,000sf lab use and less than 50k 
sf office space. (OCII - Mission Bay)


2019-011944 660 3rd Street 36,699 OFA filed on 5/30/19
Alex 
Westhoff Legalize first and second floor office space in existing building.


2018-010838 543 Howard Street 49,500 OFA filed on 4/25/19 Nick Foster Addition to an existing office building.


2019-023623 130 Townsend Street 34,120 OFA filed on 12/30/19
Alex 
Westhoff


Five-story office building with ground floor retail, through vertical 
addition to existing one-story building. Building 1 ("Townsend 
Building") of two-building project on property site.


2019-023623 130 Townsend Street 46,464 OFA filed on 12/30/19
Alex 
Westhoff


Five-story office building with ground floor PDR, new 
construction. Building 2 ("Stanford Building") of two-building 
project on property site.


2019-017481 530 Sansome Street 40,000 OFA filed on 12/26/19 Nick Foster


Demo existing structures and new construction of 17-story 
mixed-use hotel and office tower; also includes construction of 
new Fire Station 13.


2020-001410 545 Sansome Street 49,999 OFA filed on 2/3/20
Samantha 
Updegrave


Existing 55,759sf of office on-site, project to demo adjacent 1-
story retail building and construct horizontal and penthouse 
addition.


2019-020057 424 Brannan Street 47,090 OFA filed on 2/13/20
Ella 
Samonsky


Existing lot will be split into two with two buildings constructed. 
Lot A (aka 298 Ritch St.) will include 7-story mixed-use building 
with PDR at ground floor and below grade and retail at ground 


Small Office Cap


*Projects that have submitted an application (B or OFA) pursuant to Planning Code Section 321 (Office Development Annual Limit) but on which no Commission action has yet ocurred.
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2019-020057 424 Brannan Street 47,521 OFA filed on 2/13/20
Ella 
Samonsky


Existing lot will be split into two with two buildings constructed. 
Lot B (aka 258 Ritch St.) will include 7-story mixed-use building 
with PDR at ground floor


2020-005255 474 Bryant Street 49,999 OFA filed on 5/25/20 Rich Sucre
Demo existing buildings, adjust lot line and construct two new 7-
story buildings with 6 floors of office over ground floor PDR


2020-005255 474 Bryant Street 49,999 OFA filed on 5/25/20 Rich Sucre
Demo existing buildings, adjust lot line and construct two new 7-
story buildings with 6 floors of office over ground floor PDR


2020-005897 233 Geary Street 42,992 OFA filed on 6/17/20
Claudine 
Asbagh


Conversion of existing retail to office; floors 4-8 proposed for 
office and would add to the 51,337 sf of "existing, legal office" 
(though still TBD on existing legal status); Note: this application 
supersedes prior application under 2018-007289 (49,999 sf) for 
conversion of retail at floors 5-7 to office.


Subtotal 791,371


Case No. Address Sq. Ft. Status Staff Comments


2014-001272
Pier 70 (Forest City 
Only) 1,753,702


Planning Commission 
approvals on 8/24/17 Rich Sucre


SF Port project. Office allocation will be provided 
automatically on a per-permit basis, at the time of issuance 
of each building permit.


2013.0208
SWL 337 ("Mission 
Rock") 1,300,000


Planning Commission 
approvals on 10/5/17 Rich Sucre


SF Port project. Office allocation will be provided 
automatically on a per-permit basis, at the time of issuance 
of each building permit.


2012.0640 598 Brannan Street 211,601 Phase 2 Rich Sucre Phase 2 (Record No. 2012.0640OFA-02)


2017-000663
610-698 Brannan 
Street 676,802


Phase 2 (aka Phase 1b and 
1c)


Ella 
Samonsky Phase 2 (May have different Case No. in future).


2015-009704 505 Brannan Street 165,000 OFA filed on 3/6/18.
Ella 
Samonsky


"Phase II" addition (165', 11 stories) of office space onto an 
approved 85' "Phase I" office building approved by the Planning 
Commission on 12/11/14. With this newly planned addition, total 
building height would now be 250' and contain a total of approx. 
300,000sf (Central SoMa Project).


2005.0759 725-735 Harrison 295,000
OFA-02 filed 2/6/20 for 
Phase 2 Xinyu Liang Phase 2 (May have different Case No. in future).


2020-005610 490 Brannan Street 269,296 OFA filed on 6/12/20 Rich Sucre "Wells Fargo" Key Development Site; demolition of existing 1-
story commercial building and parking lot, new construction of 
12-story, 185-foot tall mixed-use building with office, arts/PDR, 
retail and child-care


Subtotal 4,671,401


Large Office Cap
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PRE-APPLICATION OFFICE PROJECTS* current through Record No. 2020-006488PPA for 580 Minna Street


*Projects that have submitted a pre-application (PPA or ENV) but on which no Office Allocation (OFA) entitlement application has been yet submitted
Small Office Cap
Case No. Address Sq. Ft. Status Staff Comments
2014.1616 1200 Van Ness Ave 27,000 EE filed on 9/21/15. Mary Woods Exact office square footage TBD.
2016-000346 Pier 70 (Orton) 40,000 CEQA clearance issued 7/6/17. Don Lewis Conversion of existing buildings to office.
Subtotal 67,000


Large Office Cap
Case No. Address Sq. Ft. Status Staff Comments


2017-011878 1201A Illinois Street 597,723 EE filed on 9/15/17. Rachel Schuett


Proposed project would involve construction 
of up to approximately 5.3 million gross 
square feet in a mixed commercial office, 
laboratory, PDR, and hotel use. Most new 
buildings would range in height of 65-180 ft, 
with one building at 300-ft. 


Subtotal 597,723
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ANNUAL LIMIT FOR "SMALL" SAN FRANCISCO OFFICE DEVELOPMENT


Amount Currently Available: 752,624


Approval 
Period1 Unallocated Sq. Ft.2


"Small" Office 
Annual Limit


Adjusted 
Annual Limit Project Address Case No. Project 


Allocation
Total 


Allocated Comments


1985-1986 0 75,000 75,000 No Projects N/A 0 0
1986-1987 75,000 75,000 150,000 1199 Bush 1985.244 46,645 46,645
1987-1988 103,355 75,000 178,355 3235-18th Street 1988.349 45,350 45,350 aka 2180 Harrison Street
1988-1989 133,005 75,000 208,005 2601 Mariposa 1988.568 49,850 49,850
1989-1990 158,155 75,000 233,155 No Projects N/A 0 0
1990-1991 233,155 75,000 308,155 No Projects N/A 0 0
1991-1992 308,155 75,000 383,155 1075 Front 1990.568 32,000 32,000
1992-1993 351,155 75,000 426,155 No Projects N/A 0 0
1993-1994 426,155 75,000 501,155 No Projects N/A 0 0
1994-1995 501,155 75,000 576,155 No Projects N/A 0 0
1995-1996 576,155 75,000 651,155 No Projects N/A 0 0
1996-1997 651,155 75,000 726,155 No Projects N/A 0 0
1997-1998 726,155 75,000 801,155 No Projects N/A 0 0
1998-1999 801,155 75,000 876,155 1301 Sansome 1998.362 31,606 31,606
1999-2000 844,549 75,000 919,549 435 Pacific 1998.369 32,500


2801 Leavenworth 200.459 40,000
215 Fremont 1998.497 47,950
845 Market 1998.090 49,100 169,550


2000-2001 749,999 75,000 824,999 530 Folsom 2000.987 45,944
35 Stanford 2000.1162 48,000


2800 Leavenworth 2000.774 34,945
500 Pine 2000.539 44,450 173,339 See also 350 Bush Street - Large


2001-2002 651,660 75,000 726,660 No Projects N/A 0 0
2002-2003 726,660 75,000 801,660 501 Folsom 2002.0223 32,000 32,000
2003-2004 769,660 75,000 844,660 No Projects N/A 0 0
2004-2005 844,660 75,000 919,660 185 Berry Street 2005.0106 49,000 49,000
2005-2006 870,660 75,000 945,660 No Projects N/A 0 0
2006-2007 945,660 75,000 1,020,660 No Projects N/A 0 0
2007-2008 1,020,660 75,000 1,095,660 654 Minnesota no case number 43,939 0 UCSF
2008-2009 1,095,660 75,000 1,170,660 No Projects N/A 0 0
2009-2010 1,170,660 75,000 1,245,660 660 Alabama Street 2009.0847 39,691 39,691
2010-2011 1,205,969 75,000 1,280,969 No Projects N/A 0 0
2011-2012 1,280,969 75,000 1,355,969 208 Utah / 201 Potrero 2011.0468 48,732 EN Legitimization


808 Brannan Street 2012.0014 43,881 EN Legitimization
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


275 Brannan Street 2011.1410 48,500
385 7th/1098 Harrison 2011.1049 42,039 EN Legitimization
375 Alabama Street 2012.0128 48,189 231,341 EN Legitimization


2012-2013 1,124,628 75,000 1,199,628 No Projects N/A 0 0
2013-2014 1,199,628 75,000 1,274,628 3130 20th Street 2013.0992 32,081


660 3rd Street 2013.0627 40,000 72,081
2014-2015 1,202,547 75,000 1,277,547 340 Bryant Street 2013.1600 47,536


101 Townsend Street 2014-002385 41,206
2101 Mission Street 2014.0567 46,660 135,402


2015-2016 1,142,145 75,000 1,217,145 135 Townsend Street 2014.1315 49,995
360 Spear Street 2013.1511 49,992 aka 100 Harrison St


1125 Mission Street 2015-000509 35,842 135,829 Approved 12/17/15, Motion No. 19538
2016-2017 1,081,316 75,000 1,156,316 300 Grant Avenue 2015-000878 29,703 Motion No. 19813


2525 16th Street 2015-011529 43,569 Motion No. 19799
144 Townsend Street 2015-017998 42,510 Motion No. 19846


1088-1090 Sansome Street 2016-010294 49,814 Motion No. 19889
77-85 Federal Street 2012.1410 49,840 215,436 Motion No. 19996


2017-2018 940,880 75,000 1,015,880 945 Market Street 2017-011465 47,552
120 Stockton Street 2016-016161 49,999


345 4th Street 2017-001690 49,901
420 Taylor Street 2017-016476 38,791 186,243


2018-2019 829,637 75,000 904,637 No Projects N/A 0 0
2019-2020 904,637 75,000 979,637 865 Market Street 2018-007267 49,999


2300 Harrison Street 2016-010589 27,017
2 Henry Adams Street 2013.1593 49,999 Motion No. 20642


701 Harrison Street 2018-008661 49,999 Motion No. 20698
30 Van Ness Avenue 2017-008051 49,999 227,013 Motion No. 20719


Total 1,916,315
1  Each approval period begins on October 17
2  Carried over from previous year
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ANNUAL LIMIT FOR "LARGE" SAN FRANCISCO OFFICE DEVELOPMENT


Amount Currently Available: 24,949


Approval 
Period1 Unallocated Sq. Ft.2


"Large" Office 
Annual Limit3


Reduction per 
Section 321.1


Adjusted Annual 
Limit Project Address Case No. Project 


Allocation
Total 


Allocated Comments


1985-1986 0 875,000 (475,000) 400,000 No Projects N/A 0 0 
1986-1987 400,000 875,000 (475,000) 800,000 600 California 1986.085 318,030 


235 Pine 1984.432 147,500 
343 Sansome 1985.079 160,449 625,979 


1987-1988 174,021 875,000 (475,000) 574,021 No Projects N/A 0 0 
1988-1989 574,021 875,000 (475,000) 974,021 No Projects N/A 0 0 
1989-1990 974,021 875,000 (475,000) 1,374,021 150 California 1987.613 195,503 195,503 
1990-1991 1,178,518 875,000 (475,000) 1,578,518 No Projects N/A 0 0 
1991-1992 1,578,518 875,000 (475,000) 1,978,518 300 Howard 1989.589 382,582 382,582 aka 199 Fremont Street
1992-1993 1,595,936 875,000 (475,000) 1,995,936 No Projects N/A 0 0 
1993-1994 1,995,936 875,000 (475,000) 2,395,936 No Projects N/A 0 0 
1994-1995 2,395,936 875,000 (475,000) 2,795,936 No Projects N/A 0 0 
1995-1996 2,795,936 875,000 (475,000) 3,195,936 No Projects N/A 0 0 
1996-1997 3,195,936 875,000 (475,000) 3,595,936 101 Second 1997.484 368,800 368,800 
1997-1998 3,227,136 875,000 (37,582) 4,064,554 55 Second Street 1997.215 283,301 aka One Second Street


244-256 Front 1996.643 58,650 aka 275 Saramento Street
650 Townsend 1997.787 269,680 aka 699-08th Street


455 Golden Gate 1997.478 420,000 State office building - see also Case No. 
1993.707


945 Battery 1997.674 52,715 
475 Brannan 1997.470 61,000 
250 Steuart 1998.144 540,000 1,685,346 aka 2 Folsom/250 Embarcadero


1998-1999 2,379,208 875,000 0 3,254,208 One Market 1998.135 51,822 
Pier One 1998.646 88,350 Port office building


554 Mission 1998.321 645,000 aka 560/584 Mission Street
700 Seventh 1999.167 273,650 aka 625 Townsend Street


475 Brannan 1999.566 2,500 1,061,322 addition to previous approval - 1997.470


1999-2000 2,192,886 875,000 0 3,067,886 670 Second 1999.106 60,000 
160 King 1999.027 176,000 


350 Rhode Island 1998.714 250,000 revoked 87,700 sf during 2019-2020


First & Howard 1998.902 854,000 First & Howard bldg #2 (405 Howard), 
#3 (505-525 Howard) & #4 (500 Howard)


235 Second 1999.176 180,000 
500 Terry Francois 2000.127 280,000 Mission Bay 26a
550 Terry Francois 2000.329 225,004 Mission Bay 28


899 Howard 1999.583 153,500 2,178,504 


2000-2001 889,382 875,000 0 1,764,382 First & Howard 1998.902 295,000 First & Howard bldg #1 (400 Howard)
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


550 Terry Francois 2000.1293 60,150 355,150 Additional allocation (see also 2000.329)


2001-2002 1,409,232 875,000 0 2,284,232 350 Bush 2000.541 344,500 See also 500 Pine Street - Small
38-44 Tehama 2001.0444 75,000 


235 Second 2000.319 64,000 modify 1999.176
250 Brannan 2001.0689 113,540 
555 Mission 2001.0798 549,000 


1700 Owens 2002.0300 0 1,146,040 Alexandria District - West Campus 
(160,100)


2002-2003 1,138,192 875,000 0 2,013,192 7th & Mission GSA No Case 514,727 514,727 Federal Building
2003-2004 1,498,465 875,000 0 2,373,465 Presidio Dig Arts No Case 839,301 839,301 Presidio Trust
2004-2005 1,534,164 875,000 0 2,409,164 No Projects N/A 0 0 
2005-2006 2,409,164 875,000 0 3,284,164 201 16th Street 2006.0384 430,000 430,000 aka 409/499 Illinois


2006-2007 2,854,164 875,000 0 3,729,164 1500 Owens 2006.1212 0 Alexandria District - West Campus 
(158,500)


1600 Owens 2006.1216 0 Alexandria District - West Campus 
(228,000)


1455 Third Street/455 
Mission Bay South 


Blvd/450 South Street
2006.1509 0 Alexandria District - North Campus 


(373,487)


1515 Third Street 2006.1536 0 Alexandria District - North Campus 
(202,893)


650 Townsend 2005.1062 375,151
120 Howard 2006.0616 67,931
535 Mission 2006.1273 293,750 736,832 


2007-2008 2,992,332 875,000 0 3,867,332 100 California 2006.0660 76,500 revoked 76,500 sf (ALL) during 2019-
2020


505-525 Howard 2008.0001 74,500 Additional allocation for First & Howard 
Building #3


680 Folsom Street No Case 117,000 Redevelopment - Yerba Buena


Alexandria District 2008.0850 1,122,980 


Establishes Alexandria Mission Bay Life 
Sciences and Technology Development 
District ("Alexandria District") for which 


previously allocated office space and 
future allocations would be limited to 
1,350,000 gsf to be distributed among 
designated buildings within district.


600 Terry Francois 2008.0484 0 Alexandria District - East Campus 
(312,932)
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


650 Terry Francois 2008.0483 0 Alexandria District - East Campus 
(291,367)


1450 Owens 2008.0690 0 1,390,980 Alexandria District - West Campus 
(61,581)


2008-2009 2,476,352 875,000 0 3,351,352 No Projects N/A 0 0 
2009-2010 3,351,352 875,000 0 4,226,352 850-870 Brannan Street 2009.1026 138,580 aka 888 Brannan Street


222 Second Street 2006.1106 430,650 569,230 LEED
2010-2011 3,657,122 875,000 0 4,532,122 350 Mission Street 2006.1524 340,320 


Alexandria District n/a 200,000 under terms of Motion 17709
Treasure Island 2007.0903 0 540,320 Priority Resolution Only


2011-2012 3,991,802 875,000 0 4,866,802 Alexandria District n/a 27,020 under terms of Motion 17709
850-870 Brannan St 2011.0583 113,753  aka 888 Brannan Street


444 DeHaro St 2012.0041 90,500 
460-462 Bryant St 2011.0895 59,475 


185 Berry St 2012.0409 101,982 aka China Basin Landing; revoked 
101,982 sf (ALL) during 2019-2020


100 Potrero Ave. 2012.0371 70,070 EN Legitimization


601 Townsend Street 2011.1147 72,600 535,400 EN Legitimization; revoked 72,600 sf 
(ALL) during 2019-2020


2012-2013 4,331,402 875,000 0 5,206,402 101 1st Street 2012.0257 1,370,577 Transbay Tower; aka 425 Mission
181 Fremont Street 2007.0456 404,000 new office/residential building
1550 Bryant Street 2012.1046 108,399 EN Legitimization
1100 Van Ness Ave 2009.0885 242,987 CPMC Cathedral Hill MOB
3615 Cesar Chavez 2009.0886 94,799 CPMC St. Luke's MOB
345 Brannan Street 2007.0385 102,285 
270 Brannan Street 2012.0799 189,000 
333 Brannan Street 2012.0906 175,450 
350 Mission Street 2013.0276 79,680 Salesforce (No. 2)
999 Brannan Street 2013.0585 143,292 EN Legitimization - Dolby
1800 Owens Street 2012.1482 700,000 3,610,469 Mission Bay Block 40


2013-2014 1,595,933 875,000 0 2,470,933 300 California Street 2012.0605 56,459
revoked 56,459 sf (ALL) during 2019-


2020
665 3rd Street 2013.0226 123,700 


410 Townsend Street 2013.0544 76,000 
888 Brannan Street 2013.0493 10,000 AirBnB - See Also 2011.0583B


81-85 Bluxome Street 2013.0007 55,000 321,159 
2014-2015 2,149,774 875,000 0 3,024,774 501-505 Brannan Street 2012.1187 137,446


100 Hooper Street 2012.0203 284,471
390 Main Street 2012.0722 137,286 MTC Project - Verified on 4/14/15
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


250 Howard Street 2014-002085 766,745 aka Transbay Block 5 (195 Beale St)


510 Townsend Street 2014.0679 269,063
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


901-925 Mission Street 2011.0409 633,500 2,228,511 5M (Motions 19467 & 19468)
2015-2016 796,263 875,000 0 1,671,263 MBS Blocks 29 & 31 2014-002701 0 GSW Event Center (Design Only)


645 Harrison Street 2013.1545 98,964 
1455 & 1515 3rd St 2008.0850 0 Uber/Alexandria (Design Only)


50 1st St 2006.1523 1,057,549 Motion No. 19636
875 Howard St 2015-009141 70,881 1,227,394 Motion No. 19700


2016-2017 443,869 875,000 0 1,318,869 633 Folsom St 2014.1063 90,102


1500 Mission Street 2014-000362 0 90,102 


Motion No. 19887 - DNX Approval (City 
Gov't. Office Bldg. - Approx. 464,000 


GSF)
2017-2018 1,228,767 875,000 0 2,103,767 1 De Haro Street 2015-015010 86,301 86,301 
2018-2019 2,017,466 875,000 0 2,892,466 598 Brannan Street 2012.0640 711,136 


610 Brannan Street 2017-000663 1,384,578 Flower Mart
88 Bluxome Street 2015-012490 775,000 2,870,714 Tennis Club


2019-2020 21,752 875,000 0 896,752 601 Townsend Street
2019-017636OTH; 


2011.1147 (72,600) Administrative Revocation


100 California Street 2006.066 (76,500) PC Revocation, Motion No. 20554
300 California Street 2012.0605 (56,459) PC Revocation, Motion No. 20555


350 Rhode Island Street 1998.714 (87,700) PC Revocation, Motion No. 20556


185 Berry Street
2019-021980OTH; 


2012.0409 (101,982) Administrative Revocation


725 Harrison Street 2005.0759 505,000 
542-550 Howard St 2016-013312 275,746 Transbay Parcel F


Pier 70 - Bldg 12 2014-001272 56,298 Pier 70 Permit Issued
400 2nd Street 2012.1384 430,000 One Vassar


871,803 
Total 24,862,469


1  Each approval period begins on October 17
2  Carried over from previous year
3  Excludes 75,000 gsf dedicated to "small" projects per Section 321(b)(4)
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SMALL OFFICE APPROVALS - STATUS OF ALL PROJECTS COMPLETE


REVOKED
18 MOS. EXPIRED
NO INFORMATION / NOT APPLICABLE
UNDER CONSTRUCTION
AWAITING ADDITIONAL INFORMATION


Date Case No. Address APN Size Motion Status Completion Comments
1986-1987 1985.244 1199 Bush 0280-031 46,645 11026 complete 1991 St. Francis Hospital
1987-1988 1988.349 3235-18th Street 3591-001/030 45,350 11451 complete PG&E, aka 2180 Harrison Street
1988-1989 1988.568 2601 Mariposa 4016-001 49,850 11598 complete 1991 KQED


1988.287 1501 Sloat 7255-002 39,000 11567 doesn't count n/a revoked 12/00
1990-1991 1990.238 350 Pacific 0165-006 45,718 13114 doesn't count n/a revoked 12/00
1991-1992 1990.568 1075 Front 0111-001 32,000 13381 complete 1993


1987.847 601 Duboce 3539-001 36,000 13254 doesn't count n/a revoked 12/00
1992-1993 No Projects Approved During Allocation Period
1993-1994 No Projects Approved During Allocation Period
1994-1995 No Projects Approved During Allocation Period
1995-1996 No Projects Approved During Allocation Period
1996-1997 No Projects Approved During Allocation Period
1997-1998 No Projects Approved During Allocation Period
1998-1999 1998.362 1301 Sansome 0085-005 31,606 14784 complete 1999
1999-2000 1998.369 435 Pacific 0175-028 32,500 14971 complete 2003


2000.459 2801 Leavenworth 0010-001 40,000 15922 complete 2001 The Cannery


1998.497 215 Fremont 3738-012 47,950 15939 complete 2002
1999.668 38-44 Tehama 3736-111 49,950 15967 doesn't count n/a reapproved as large project


1998.090 845 Market
3705-09:18 


into 3705-049 49,100 15949 complete 2006 Bloomingdale's


2000-2001 1999.821 178 Townsend 3788-012 49,002 16025 doesn't count n/a


18mos exp 5/2/02; 2005.0470 new E & K appl for residential, 
building permit application no.200608290851 for residential 
submitted on 8/29/07; 9/4/08 CPC approves conversion to 
Residential (M17688) - Revoked on 1/23/09


2000.987 530 Folsom 3736-017 45,944 16023 complete 2006


1999.300 272 Main 3739-006 46,500 16049 doesn't count n/a


18mos exp 6/7/02; permit 200502185810 filed 2/05. 12/15/08 - 
Building Permit Application No. 200811136470 issued for 
demolition of two buildings on property.  To be used for temp 
Transbay facility. REVOCATION LETTER ISSUED 3/16/09


2000.1162 35 Stanford 3788-038 48,000 16070 complete 2007


2000.774 2800 Leavenworth 0011-007/008 34,945 16071 complete 2001 The Anchorage
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


2000.552 199 New Montgomery 3722-021 49,345 16104 doesn't count n/a revoked 1/6/05


2000.1269 3433 Third 5203-23 42,000 16107 doesn't count n/a
building permit application no. 200011014657 withdrawn on 
11/9/06.  REVOCATION LETTER ISSUED 9/25/07


1999.795 177 Townsend 3794-4,7 46,775 16122 doesn't count n/a revoked 1/6/05


2000.539 500 Pine
258-4 to 


9/033 44450 16113 complete n/a BPA No. 200011024683 complete as of 3/22/17. 


2000.986 150 Powell 327-22 39,174
16118/164


23 doesn't count n/a


time limit for construction extended (see Case No. 
2002.0363B). Project converted to residential use (see Case 
No. 2006.1299)


1998.281 185 Berry 3803-005 49,500 16143 doesn't count n/a new approval 2005


2000.190 201 Second 3736-097 44,500 16148 doesn't count n/a converted to residential use


2000.660 35 Hawthorne 3735-047 40,350 16174 doesn't count n/a
converted to residential use - see 2004.0852 and building 
permit application no. 200509082369


2000.122 48 Tehama 3736-084/085 49,300 16235 doesn't count n/a revoked at Planning Commission hearing on 6/9/11


2000.723 639 Second
3789-


005/857:971 49,500 16241 doesn't count n/a revoked 1/6/05


1999.423 699 Second
3789-


004/857:971 49,500 16240 doesn't count n/a revoked 1/10/05


2001-2002 2001.0050 3251 18th Street 3591-018 49,500 16451 doesn't count n/a


6/28/07 - building permit application no. 200706285450 
submitted to revise project and reduce office space to approx. 
10,000 gsf. - REVOCATION LETTER ISSUED 8/16/07


2002-2003 2002.0223 501 Folsom Street 3749-001 32,000 16516 complete 2006
2003-2004 No Projects Approved During Allocation Period
2004-2005 2005.0106 185 Berry Street 3803-005 49,000 17070 complete 2008
2005-2006 No Projects Approved During Allocation Period


2006-2007 No Case 654 Minnesota 4042-003 & 004 43,939 none complete 2009
Confirmed by UCSF via 7/13/2007 letter from UCSF and 
associated LoD


2007-2008 No Projects Approved During Allocation Period
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


2008-2009 2006.1294 110 The Embarcadero 3715-002 41,940 17804 doesn't count n/a
18mos exp 7/14/10 - E appealed to BoS and overturned on 
3/17/09.  Application withdrawn and case closed on 12/30/09.


2009-2010 2009.0847 660 Alabama Street 4020-002 39,691 17973 complete 2011
CFC for building permit application no. 201001144798 issued 
on 3/23/11


2010-2011 No Projects Approved During Allocation Period
2011-2012 2011.0468 208 Utah / 201 Potrero 3932-017 48,732 18608 complete 2012 BPA No. 201205090093


2012.0014 808 Brannan Street 3780-004D 43,881 18559 complete 2013 BPA No. 201201031584
2012.0128 375 Alabama Street 3966-002 48,189 18574 complete 2013 BPA No. 201209210308
2011.1049 385 7th / 1098 Harrison 3754-017 42,039 18700 complete 2013 BPA No. 201212115895
2011.1410 275 Brannan Street 3789-009 48,500 18672 complete 2013 BPA No. 201207164925


2012-2013 No Projects Approved During Allocation Period
2013-1014 2013.0992 3130 20th Street 4083-002 32,081 19188 complete n/a BPA No. 201409297604 issued 10/28/16. 


2013.0627 660 3rd Street 3788-008 40000 19234 complete 2015 BPA No. 201411252480 issued on 2/24/15.
2014-2015 2013.1600 340 Bryant Street 3764-061 47536 19311 complete n/a BPA 201305177189 issued 7/15/15.


2014-002385 101 Townsend Street 3794-015 41,206 19338 complete 2015 BPA No. 201505055374  for change of use completed 9/10/15. 
2014.0567 2101 Mission Street 3575-091 46,660 19445 complete 2018 BPA No. 201312033192  issued 11/3/15. CFC issued 5/10/18.


2015-2016 2014.1315 135 Townsend Street 3794-022 49,995 19517 complete 2017 BPA No. 201601086717  complete 3/10/17. 


2013.1511 360 Spear Street 3745-009 49,992 19515
under 


construction n/a
BP No. 201809119777 issued on 9/28/18. awaiting final 
inspection and completion


2015-000509 1125 Mission Street 3727-091 35,842 19538 complete 2017 BPA No. 201511021472 complete 3/14/17.


2016-2017 2015-000878 300 Grant Avenue 0287-014 29,703 19813
under 


construction n/a BPA No. 201612275920 issued on 12/22/17.


2015-011529 2525 16th Street 3966-001 43,569 19799
under 


construction n/a
BPA No. 201604185006 issued on 9/5/18. awaiting final 
inspection and completion


2016-010294 1088-1090 Sansome Street 0135-009 49,814 19889 complete 2019 BPA No. 201910073788 complete 12/30/19
2015-017998 144 Townsend Street 3788-009A 42,510 19846 complete 2019 BPA No. 201806263016 complete 1/8/19


2012.1410 77-85 Federal Street 3774-444 49,840 19996
under 


construction n/a BPA No. 201306200082 issued on 6/14/18.


2017-2018 2017-011465 945 Market Street 3704-240 47,552 20137
under 


construction n/a
BPA No. 201805017929 issued on 5/18/18. awaiting final 
inspection and completion


2016-016161 120 Stockton Street 0313-017 49,999 20173
under 


construction n/a BPA No. 201805048215 issued on 11/15/18.


2017-001690 345 4th Street 3751-165 49,901 20222
under 


construction n/a BPA No.  201807194942 issued on 7/30/19.
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


2017-016476 420 Taylor Street 0316-010 38,791 20289
under 


construction n/a
BPA No. 201712146457 withdrawn; BPA No. 201901160492 
issued on 7/26/19.


2018-2019 No Projects Approved During Allocation Period
2019-2020 2018-007267 865 Market Street 3705-042 49,999 20591 approved n/a


2016-010589 2300 Harrison Street 3593-001 27,017 20596 approved n/a awaiting permit to be filed
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LARGE OFFICE APPROVALS - STATUS OF ALL PROJECTS COMPLETE


REVOKED
18 MOS. EXPIRED
NO INFORMATION / NOT APPLICABLE
UNDER CONSTRUCTION


AWAITING ADDITIONAL INFORMATION


Date Case No. Address APN Size Motion Status Completion Comments


1986-1987 1986.085 600 California
0241-003 into 0241-


027 318,030 11077 complete 1992


1984.432 235 Pine 0267-015 147,500 11075 complete 1991
1984.274 33 Columbus 0195-004 81,300 11070 doesn't count n/a revoked 12/00
1985.079 343 Sansome 0239-002 160,449 11076 complete 1991


1987-1988 No Projects Approved During Allocation Period
1988-1989 1984.199 524 Howard 3721-013 199,965 11683 doesn't count n/a reapproved in 1998 under Case No. 1998.843.


1989-1990 1987.613 150 California
0236-003 into 0236-


019 195,503 11828 complete 2001


1990-1991 1989.589 300 Howard
3719-005 into 3719-


018 382,582 13218 complete 2001 aka 199 Fremont Street
1991-1992 No Projects Approved During Allocation Period
1992-1993 No Projects Approved During Allocation Period
1993-1994 No Projects Approved During Allocation Period
1994-1995 1994.105 101 Second Street 3721-072 386,655 13886 doesn't count n/a Reapproved in 1997 under Case No. 1997.484.
1995-1996 No Projects Approved During Allocation Period


1996-1997 1997.484 101 Second Street
3721-72:75 into 3721-


089 368,800 14454 complete 2000


1997-1998 1997.215 55 Second Street
3708-019A/033/034 


into 3708-096 283,301 14542 complete 2002 aka One Second Street


1996.643 244-256 Front 0236-018 58,650 14601 complete 2001 aka 275 Sacramento Street
1997.787 650 Townsend 3783-009 269,680 14520 complete 2001 aka 699-08th Street
No Case 455 Golden Gate 0765-002/003 420,000 none complete 1998 State office building.  See also case no. 1993.707.
1997.674 945 Battery 0135-001 52,715 14672 complete 1998
1997.470 475 Brannan 3787-031 61,000 14685 complete 2001


1998.144 250 Steuart
3741-028 into 3741-


035 540,000 14604 complete 2002 aka 2 Folsom/250 Embarcadero
1998-1999 1998.135 One Market 3713-006 51,822 14756 complete 2000


1998.843 524 Howard 3721-013 201,989 14801 doesn't count n/a revoked 6/11 under Case No. 2011.0503
1998.646 Pier One 9900-001 88,350 none complete 2003 Port office building
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


1998.321 554 Mission
3708-015/017/018 into  


3708-095 645,000 14893 complete 2003 aka 560/584 Mission


1999.167 700 Seventh
3799-001 into 3799-


008 273,650 14895 complete 2006 aka 625 Townsend
1999.566 475 Brannan 3787-031 2,500 14884 complete 2001 addition to previous approval - 1997.470


1998.268 631 Folsom 3750-090 170,000 14750 doesn't count n/a
project converted to residential - allocation revoked 
12/00.


1999-2000 1999.106 670 Second 3788-043/044 60,000 14907 complete 2001
1999.027 160 King 3794-025 176,000 14956 complete 2002
1998.714 350 Rhode Island 3957-001 250,000 14988 complete 2004 87,700sf Revoked by PC in 2019.


1998.902 First & Howard 3721; 3736; 3737 854,000 15006 complete


405 Howard - 
2005; 505-


525 Howard - 
under review; 
500 Howard - 


2003


18 mos exp 9/2/01. Includes 3 of 4 buildings at First & 
Howard (see bldg #1  - 400 Howard - below): bldg #2 - 
405 Howard (3737-030) - 460,000 gsf office - 
200002172133 - complete); bldg #3 - 505-525 Howard  
(3736-121/114) - 178,000 gsf office - 200610316514 
currently (8/4/08) under review by Planning (see also 
2008.0001 for additional allocation); bldg #4 -500 
Howard  (3721-119) - 216,000 gsf office - 
200006172952 - complete).
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


1999.176 235 Second
3736-061 into 3736-


123 180,000 15004 complete 2002


2000.127 500 Terry Francois
3838; 3839 into 8721-


001/010 280,000 15010 complete 2008 MB 26a


1998.766 535 Mission 3721-068 252,000 15027 doesn't count n/a revoked and reapproved as residential


1998.635 2101 Bryant 4080-007 148,000 15044 doesn't count n/a
project converted to residential - allocation revoked 
1/10/05


2000.329 550 Terry Francois
3839; 3840 into 8721-


001/011 225,004 15055 complete 2002 MB 28
1999.583 899 Howard 3733-079 153,500 15062 complete 2005


2000-2001 1998.902 First & Howard 3720-008 295,000 16069 complete 2008 First & Howard - Building #1 (400 Howard)


2000.1293 550 Terry Francois
3839: 3840 into 8721-


001/011 60,150 16110 complete 2002 addition to 2000.329.


2000.1295 Mission Bay 26/2
3840; 3841 into 8721-


001-012 145,750 16111 doesn't count n/a
AKA MB 26 East. returned to cap for approval of 
2002.0301


1999.603 555 Mission 3721-69,70,78… 499,000 16130 doesn't count n/a
project revised - allocation revoked and reapproved 
under Case No. 2007.0798.


2000.277 801 Market 3705-48 112,750 16140 doesn't count n/a project abandoned per letter from sponsor


2001-2002 2000.541 350 Bush 269-2,2a,3,22… 344,500 16273 complete 2019
Building permit application no. 200708078938 issued 
12/19/14. 


2001.0444 38-44 Tehama 3736-111 75,000 16280 complete 2003


2000.319 235 Second 3736-61,62,64-67 64,000 16279 complete 2002
modify 1999.176 - convert warehouse from PDR to 
office.


2001.0689 250 Brannan 3774-25 113,540 16285 complete 2002


2001.0798 555 Mission 3721-69,70,78-81, 120 549,000 16302 complete 2008
2002.0301 Mission Bay 42/4 8709-10 80,922 16397 doesn't count n/a revoked and reapproved as 2002.1216 (1600 Owens)
2002.0300 1700 Owens 8709-007 0 16398 complete 2007 Alexandria District (160,100). West Campus. 164,828
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
2002-2003 No Case 7th/Mission GSA 3702-15 … 514,727 none complete 2007 Federal Building


2002.0691
499 Illinois/201-16th 
Street 3940-001 429,542 16483 doesn't count n/a


revoked and reapproved as 2006.0384 (201 16th 
Street)  MB Block X4


2003-2004 2001.1039 55 9th Street 3701-063 268,000 16760 doesn't count n/a


200408111247 issued 5/19/05 - Authorization 
REVOKED by Planning Commission Motion Nos. 
17521 and 17522 for proposal to convert project to 
residential use. 


2000.1229 Pier 30-32 3770-001 370,000 none doesn't count n/a


E, K & ! Cases created, no B case created.  BCDC 
permit approved in 2003 and allocation made for 
accounting purposes, but permit never acted upon. 
2/09 - 370,000 added back to cap because project 
does not appear to be moving forward. 


No Case
Presidio - Letterman 
Digital Arts 839,301 none complete 2006


2004-2005 No Projects Approved During Allocation Period


2005-2006 2006.0384 201-16th Street 3940-001 430,000 17223 complete 2008
aka 1409-1499 Illinois/MB Block X-4. 18 mos exp 
10/6/07.  Project (200607186938) complete 11/19/08


2006-2007 2006.1212 1500 Owens 8709-006 0 17333 complete 2009


Alexandria District - West Campus (158,500); 
200611298694 issued 5/24/07 (aka MBS Blk 41-43, 
Parcel 5). Under construction. Estimated completion in 
March 2009. 


2006.1216 1600 Owens 8709-004/010 0 17332 complete 2016 BPA 200711097802 completed 2/4/16. 


2006.1509


Alexandria District - 
North Campus (MB 26/1-
3; 1455 Third Street/455 
Mission Bay South 
Blvd/450 South Street)


8721-012/8720-
011/016/017 0 17401


complete/under 
construction n/a


Alexandria District - North Campus (373,487); aka 
MBS Blk 26, Parcels 1-3, project proposes 3 buildings - 
building permit application no. 200704279921 (455 
Mission Bay South Blvd.) COMPLETE on 11/17/09 for 
5 story office/lab; 200705090778 (450 South Street) 
COMPLETE on 10/23/09 for "parking garage with 7 
stories new building."  BPA 201508245071 for 12-story 
office issued 11/2/16 and 201508245062 issued 
11/3/16 for 7 story office/retail building. 
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


2006.1536 1515 Third Street 8721-012 0 17400 under construction n/a


Alexandria District - North Campus (202,893); aka 
MBS Blk 27, Parcel 1  see also 2006.1509. BPA 
200806265407 withdrawn 11/3/16; new BPA 
201508245062 issued 11/3/16 for 7 story office/retail 
building. 


2005.1062 650 Townsend 3783-009 375,151 17440 complete 2009


18 mos exp 12/7/08.  200705151356 issued 2/20/08 - 
Conversion of existing structure into office - no major 
construction required. Final Inspection (3/16/09)


2006.0616 120 Howard 3717-019 67931 17466 complete n/a Construction completed in 2012


2006.1273 535 Mission 3721-068, 083 293750 17470 complete n/a


18 mos exp 2/2/09; 2/12/08 - 200508049463 issued by 
CPB on 8/21/08.  Appealed to Board of Permit Appeals 
on 8/29/08 (Appeal No. 08-137) - appeal withdrawn 
and permit reinstated on 8/29/08.  Separate permits 
issued for pile indicators, site cleanup and fencing. 
10/24/08 - Construction started in early 2013.


2007-2008 2006.0660 100 California 0236-017 76,500 17544 approved n/a Revoked by PC.


2008.0001 505-525 Howard 3736-001:004/114/121 74,500 17641 complete n/a


18 mos exp 12/26/09.  200610316514 for new 
construction COMPLETED on 3/11/14. "First & 
Howard"  bldg 3 - see 1998.902. 2005.0733 on file to 
legalize existing surface parking lot.


No Case 680 Folsom Street 3735-013 117,000 none complete n/a Redevelopment (Yerba Buena)


2008.0850 Alexandria District various 1122980 17709 approved n/a


Establishes Alexandria Mission Bay Life Sciences and 
Technology Development District ("Alexandria District") 
to consolidate previous and future allocations.


2008.0484 600 Terry Francois 8722-001 0 17710 approved n/a
Alexandria District - East Campus (312,932) - 
schematic design.


2008.0483 650 Terry Francois 8722-001 0 17711 approved n/a
Alexandria District - East Campus (291,367) - 
schematic design.


2008.0690 1450 Owens 8709-006 0 17712 approved n/a
Alexandria District - West Campus (61,581) - 
schematic design as of 4/2011


2008-2009 No Projects Approved During Allocation Period


2009-2010 2009.1026 850-870 Brannan Street 3780-
006/007/007A/072 138,580 18095 complete 2013 aka 888 Brannan Street
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


2007.0946
Candlestick Point - 
Hunter's Point


Candlestick Point and 
Hunter's Point 


Shipyard 800000 18102 approved n/a


NO ALLOCATION GRANTED YET. First  800,000 gsf 
of office development within the Candlestick Point - 
Hunter's Point Project Area to receive priority office 
allocation over all projects except the Transbay Transit 
Tower or those within Mission Bay South.


2006.1106 222 Second Street 3735-063 430650 18170 complete n/a BPA No. 200711309386


2010-2011 No Case Alexandria District various 200000 17709 approved n/a
additional allocation per terms of Motion 17709 by 
Letter of  Determination


2006.1524 350 Mission Street 3710-017 335000 18268 complete n/a
2007.0903 Treasure Island 1939-001/002 0 18332 approved n/a Priority Resolution Only for 100,000gsf.


2011-2012 No Case Alexandria District various 27020 17709 approved n/a
additional allocation per terms of Motion 17709 by 
Letter of  Determination


2011.0583 850-870 Brannan Street 3780-006, 007, 007A, 
and 072 113,753 18527 complete 2013 aka 888 Brannan Street


2011.1147 601 Townsend Street 3799-001 72,600 18619 approved n/a Administrative Revocation


2009.0885 1100 Van Ness Ave 0694-010 242,987 18599 doesn't count n/a
CPMC - Cat Hill MOB; rescinded & reallocated in 2013 
cycle


2011.0895 460-462 Bryant St 3763-015A 59475 18685 complete n/a BPA No. 201312194664 issued on 5/22/14.
2012.0041 444 DeHaro St 3979-001 90500 18653 complete 2013 BPA No. 201312194626 issued on 12/31/13.
2012.0409 185 Berry St 3803-005 101,982 18690 complete n/a Administrative Revocation


2012.0371 100 Potrero Ave. 3920-001 70070 18704 complete 2013
EN Legitimization. BPA No. 201212286973 issued 
5/6/13.


2009.0886 3615 Cesar Chavez 6576-021 99,848 18595 doesn't count n/a
CPMC - St. Luke's MOB; rescinded & reallocated in 
2013 cycle


2012-2013 2012.0257 101 1st Street 3720-001 1,370,577 18725 complete n/a
Transbay Tower; aka 425 Mission St. BPA No. 
201303132080.


2007.0456 181 Fremont Street 0308-001 361038 18764 complete 2019


BPA No. 201305015894 issued 12/26/13. TCOs issued 
on 5/10 and 8/13/19. BPA No. 202002205012 issued 
to obtain final inspection.


2012.1046 1550 Bryant Street 3923-006 108,399 18732 complete 2013 EN Legitimization. BPA No. 201302069627


2012.1482 1800 Owens 8727-005 700,000 18807 complete 2017
Mission Bay Block 40. BPA No. 201409045458 issued 
11/12/15.


2009.0885 1100 Van Ness Ave 0694-010 242,987 18890 complete 2019 CPMC - Cat Hill MOB;  BPA 201112090400
2009.0886 3615 Cesar Chavez 6576-021 94799 18886 under construction n/a CPMC - St. Luke's MOB
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


2007.0385 345 Brannan Street 3788-039 102285 19000 complete 2015
BPA 200810275193 completed and CFC issued 
10/14/15


2012.0799 270 Brannan Street 3774-026 189000 18988 complete 2016


BPA No. 201312174402 issued on 4/25/14. Foundation 
and Superstructure Addendum approved. Architectural 
Addendum under review by DBI/DPW/PUC. 
"Groundbreaking" in August 2014.


2012.0906 333 Brannan Street 3788-042 175,450 18952 complete 2015
BPA No. 201306280744 completed and CFC issued 
10/14/15. 


2013.0276 350 Mission Street 3710-017 79,680 18956 complete 2017
Salesforce (No. 2). BPA No. 201108011461 complete 
3/23/17. 


2013.0585 999 Brannan Street 3782-003 143292 18950 complete 2014
EN Legitimization. BPA No. 201306280728 issued 
4/28/14.


2013-2014 2012.0605 300 California Street 0238-002 56,459 19034 approved n/a Revoked by PC.


2013.0226 665 3rd Street 3788-041 123,700 19012 complete 2013
BPA No. 201311222636 issued on 12/31/13 to legalize 
office space.


2013.0544 410 Townsend Street 3785-002A 76,000 19062 complete 2015 BPA No. 201306260587 issued on10/29/15. 


2013.0493 888 Brannan Street
3780-006, 007, 007A, 


and 072 10000 19049 complete 2014 AirBnB (No. 2) to convert GF parking to office.


2013.0007 81-85 Bluxome Street 3786-018 55,000 19088 complete 2016
BPA No. 201404072588 completed and CFC issued on 
12/1/16.


2014-2015 2012.1187 501-505 Brannan Street 3786-038 137,446 19295 complete 2018 BPA No. 201508285498 issued on 2/8/16.


2012.0203 100 Hooper Street 3808-003 284471 19315 under construction n/a
BPA Nos. 201410239755 and 201410209377 issued 
12/17/15. awaiting final inspection and completion


2012.0722 390 Main Street 3746-002 n/a complete 2017 Conversion of former gov. agencies to office space. 
2014-002085 250 Howard Street 3718-012, 025, 027 766,745 19413 complete 2,019 BPA No. 201504274732 completed on 10/17/19. 
2014.0679 510 Townsend Street 3784-007, 080 269,063 19440 complete 2019


2011.0409 901-925 Mission Street
3725-005, 006, 008, 
009, 012, 098, 093 633,500


19467, 
19468 under construction n/a


5M Project: 
BPA 201806293425 issued 8/2/19 for 415 Natoma 
(Motion No. 19467, 593,500 sf of allocation, "H-1" site)
BPA for M-1 Site (40,000 sf, Motion 19468) TBD


2015-2016 2013.1545 645 Harrison Street 3763-105 98,964 19524  complete 2,019 BPA No. 201703101213 issued on 4/3/2017. BPA No. 
201906052563 issued for final inspection.


2014-002701 MBS Blocks 29 & 31 8722-001 0 19502 complete 2019


GSW Event Center (Design Only); BPA No. 
201606149952 (11-story office bldg.) issued on 


4/11/17. 
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


2008.0850 1455 & 1515 3rd St 8721-029, 033 0 19619  under construction n/a


Uber/Alexandria (Design Only); BPA No. 
201508245071 (12-story office bldg.) issued 11/2/16; 
BPA No. 201508245062 (7-story office/retail bldg.) 
issued 11/3/16. 


2006.1523 50 1st St 3708/055 1,057,549 19636  under construction n/a BPA No. 201510301303 issued 7/5/17. 
2015-009141 875 Howard St 3733/079 70,881 19700 complete 2018 BPA No. 201707182101 completed on 3/5/18.


2016-2017 2014.1063 633 Folsom St 3750/079 90,102 19815  under construction n/a BPA No. 201706018184 issued on 3/21/18. 


2014-000362 1500 Mission St
3506-006, 007, 008-


011 0 n/a  under construction n/a BPA No. 201606200387 issued on 10/3/17. (aka 49 
South Van Ness)


2017-2018 2015-015010 1 De Haro St 3800-004, 005 86,301  under construction n/a BPA No. 201710121125 issued on 12/5/18.


2018-2019 2012.0640 598 Brannan Street 3777-045, 050, 052 711,136 20460 approved n/a
BPA Nos. 201909060913 and 201909060914 
approved by Planning 11/26/19, not issued.


2017-000663 610 Brannan Street
3778-001B, 002B, 
004, 005, 047, 048 1,384,578 20485 approved n/a


BPA Nos. 2019.0806.8051, 8052, 8053, 8054, 8055; 
project variant is project being constructed


2015-012490 88 Bluxome Street 3786-037 775,000 20494 approved n/a
BPA Nos. 201903215884, 201903215873 approved by 
Planning 10/17/19, issued 6/16/20


2019-2020 2005.0759 725 Harrison Street
3762-106, 108, 109, 


112, 116, 117 505,000 20598 approved n/a
BPA No. 201911157378 for Phase 1 office filed under 
review by Planning


2016-013312 542-550 Howard St
3721-016, 135, 136, 


138 275,746 20617 approved n/a BPA No. 201903215849 filed under review by Planning
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		Summary

		Pending

		Pre-Application

		Approved - Small

		Approved - Large

		Status - Small

		Status - Large









From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
Cc: CTYPLN - COMMISSION SECRETARY; CTYPLN - CP TEAM (TAC - Preservation); RUIZ-ESQUIDE, ANDREA (CAT);

WONG, VICTORIA (CAT)
Subject: HPC Calendars for July 15, 2020
Date: Thursday, July 09, 2020 5:26:36 PM
Attachments: 20200715_hpc.docx

20200715_hpc.pdf
HPC Advance - 20200715.xlsx
HPC Hearing Results 2020.docx

Commissioners,
Attached are your Calendars for July 15, 2020.
 
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
mailto:CPC.COMMISSIONSECRETARY@sfgov.org
mailto:CPC.TAC-Preservation-Team@sfgov.org
mailto:Andrea.Ruiz-Esquide@sfcityatty.org
mailto:Victoria.Wong@sfcityatty.org
mailto:jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
http://www.sfplanning.org/
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REMOTE HEARING

via video and teleconferencing





Wednesday, July 15, 2020

12:30 p.m.

Regular Meeting



Commissioners:

Aaron Hyland, President 

Diane Matsuda, Vice President

Kate Black, Chris Foley, Richard S.E. Johns, 

Jonathan Pearlman, Lydia So



Commission Secretary:

Jonas P. Ionin









[bookmark: _Hlk36802641]Hearing Materials are available at:

Website: http://www.sfplanning.org

Planning Department, 1650 Mission Street, 4th Floor, Suite 400

Voice recorded Agenda only: (415) 558-6422





Commission Hearing Broadcasts:

Live stream: https://www.sfgovtv.org/planning









Disability and language accommodations available upon request to:

 commissions.secretary@sfgov.org or (415) 558-6309 at least 48 hours in advance.



Know Your Rights Under the Sunshine Ordinance

[bookmark: _Hlk879281]Government's duty is to serve the public, reaching its decisions in full view of the public. Commissions, boards, councils and other agencies of the City and County exist to conduct the people's business. This ordinance assures that deliberations are conducted before the people and that City operations are open to the people's review. 



For more information on your rights under the Sunshine Ordinance (Chapter 67 of the San Francisco Administrative Code) or to report a violation of the ordinance, contact the Sunshine Ordinance Task Force at City Hall, 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, Room 409; phone (415) 554-7724; fax (415) 554-7854; or e-mail at sotf@sfgov.org. Copies of the Sunshine Ordinance can be obtained from the Clerk of the Sunshine Task Force, the San Francisco Library and on the City’s website at www.sfbos.org/sunshine.

 

Privacy Policy

Personal information that is provided in communications to the Planning Department is subject to disclosure under the California Public Records Act and the San Francisco Sunshine Ordinance. Personal information provided will not be redacted. 



Members of the public are not required to provide personal identifying information when they communicate with the Planning Department and its commissions. All written or oral communications that members of the public submit to the Department regarding projects or hearings will be made available to all members of the public for inspection and copying. The Department does not redact any information from these submissions. This means that personal information including names, phone numbers, addresses and similar information that a member of the public elects to submit to the Department and its commissions may appear on the Department’s website or in other public documents that members of the public may inspect or copy.

 

San Francisco Lobbyist Ordinance

Individuals and entities that influence or attempt to influence local legislative or administrative action may be required by the San Francisco Lobbyist Ordinance [SF Campaign and Governmental Conduct Code Section 21.00-2.160] to register and report lobbying activity.  For more information about the Lobbyist Ordinance, please contact the San Francisco Ethics Commission at 25 Van Ness Avenue, Suite 220, San Francisco, CA 94102; phone (415) 252-3100; fax (415) 252-3112; and online http://www.sfgov.org/ethics.

 

Accessible Meeting Information

Commission hearings are held in Room 400 at City Hall, 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place in San Francisco. City Hall is open to the public Monday through Friday from 8:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m. and is accessible to persons using wheelchairs and other assistive mobility devices. Ramps are available at the Grove, Van Ness and McAllister entrances. A wheelchair lift is available at the Polk Street entrance.  



Transit: The nearest accessible BART station is Civic Center. Accessible MUNI Metro lines are the F, J, K, L, M, N, T (exit at Civic Center or Van Ness stations). MUNI bus routes also serving the area are the 5, 6, 9, 19, 21, 47, 49, 71, and 71L. For more information regarding MUNI accessible services, call (415) 701-4485 or call 311.



Parking: Accessible parking is available at the Civic Center Underground Parking Garage (McAllister and Polk), and at the Performing Arts Parking Garage (Grove and Franklin). Accessible curbside parking spaces are located all around City Hall. 



Disability Accommodations: To request assistive listening devices, sign language interpreters, readers, large print agendas or other accommodations, please contact the Commission Secretary at (415) 558-6309, or commissions.secretary@fgov.org at least 48 hours in advance of the hearing.



Language Assistance: To request an interpreter for a specific item during the hearing, please contact the Commission Secretary at (415) 558-6309, or commissions.secretary@fgov.org at least 48 hours in advance of the hearing.



Allergies: In order to assist the City in accommodating persons with severe allergies, environmental illness, multiple chemical sensitivity or related disabilities, please refrain from wearing scented products (e.g. perfume and scented lotions) to Commission hearings.



SPANISH:  Agenda para la Comisión de Preservación de Edificios y Lugares Históricos (Historic Preservation Commission).  Si desea asistir a la audiencia, y quisiera obtener información en Español o solicitar un aparato para asistencia auditiva, llame al 415-558-6309. Por favor llame por lo menos 48 horas de anticipación a la audiencia.

CHINESE: 歷史保護委員會議程。聽證會上如需要語言協助或要求輔助設備，請致電415-558-6309。請在聽證會舉行之前的至少48個小時提出要求。

TAGALOG: Adyenda ng Komisyon para sa Pangangalaga ng Kasaysayan (Historic Preservation Commission Agenda). Para sa tulong sa lengguwahe o para humiling ng Pantulong na Kagamitan para sa Pagdinig (headset), mangyari lamang na tumawag sa 415-558-6309. Mangyaring tumawag nang maaga (kung maaari ay 48 oras) bago sa araw ng Pagdinig. 

RUSSIAN: Повестка дня Комиссии по защите памятников истории. За помощью переводчика или за вспомогательным слуховым устройством на время слушаний обращайтесь по номеру 415-558-6309. Запросы должны делаться минимум за 48 часов до начала слушания.



[bookmark: _Hlk37062483]Remote Access to Information and Participation 



[bookmark: _Hlk37426845]In accordance with Governor Newsom’s statewide order for all residents to Shelter-in-place - and the numerous preceding local and state proclamations, orders and supplemental directions - aggressive directives have been issued to slow down and reduce the spread of the COVID-19 virus. 



On May 29, 2020, the Historic Preservation Commission was authorized to conduct their hearings remotely. Therefore, the Historic Preservation Commission meeting will be held via videoconferencing and allow for remote public comment. The Commission strongly encourages interested parties to submit their comments in writing, in advance of the hearing to commissions.secretary@sfgov.org. Visit the SFGovTV website (www.sfgovtv.org) to stream the live meetings or watch on a local television station. 

A public comment call-in line number will be provided on the Department’s webpage www.sfplanning.org and during the live SFGovTV broadcast.



As the COVID-19 emergency progresses, please visit the Planning website regularly to be updated on the current situation as it affects the hearing process and the Historic Preservation Commission.



 ROLL CALL:		

	President:	Aaron Hyland

	Vice President:	Diane Matsuda

		Commissioners:                	Kate Black, Chris Foley, Richard S.E. Johns, Jonathan Pearlman, Lydia So



A.	GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT



At this time, members of the public may address the Commission on items of interest to the public that are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Commission except agenda items. With respect to agenda items, your opportunity to address the Commission will be afforded when the item is reached in the meeting.  Each member of the public may address the Commission for up to three minutes.



The Brown Act forbids a commission from taking action or discussing any item not appearing on the posted agenda, including those items raised at public comment.  In response to public comment, the commission is limited to: 



(1)  responding to statements made or questions posed by members of the public; or

(2)  requesting staff to report back on a matter at a subsequent meeting; or 

(3)  directing staff to place the item on a future agenda.  (Government Code Section 54954.2(a))



B.	DEPARTMENT MATTERS



1.	Director’s Announcements	

	

2.	Review of Past Events at the Planning Commission, Staff Report and Announcements

C.	COMMISSION MATTERS 



3.	President’s Report and Announcements

	

4.	Consideration of Adoption:

· Draft Minutes for June 17, 2020



Adoption of Commission Minutes – Charter Section 4.104 requires all commissioners to vote yes or no on all matters unless that commissioner is excused by a vote of the Commission.  Commissioners may not be automatically excluded from a vote on the minutes because they did not attend the meeting.



5.	Commission Comments & Questions

· Disclosures.

· Inquiries/Announcements.  Without discussion, at this time Commissioners may make announcements or inquiries of staff regarding various matters of interest to the Commissioner(s).

· Future Meetings/Agendas.  At this time, the Commission may discuss and take action to set the date of a Special Meeting and/or determine those items that could be placed on the agenda of the next meeting and other future meetings of the Historic Preservation Commission.



6.	2016-003351CWP	(S. CALTAGIRONE: (415) 558-6625)

RESOLUTION CENTERING PRESERVATION PLANNING ON RACIAL AND SOCIAL EQUITY – Adoption of a Resolution centering Preservation Planning on racial and social equity;  acknowledging and apologizing for the history of inequitable planning and historic preservation policies that have resulted in racial disparities; recommending that the Department implement its Racial and Social Equity Action Plan; recommending that the Department develop proactive strategies to address structural and institutional racism, in collaboration with Black and Indigenous communities and Communities of Color; recommending that the Department amend its hiring and promotion practices to ensure that the Department’s staff reflects the diversity and demographics of the community; and, recommending that the Department build accountability through metrics and reporting.

Preliminary Recommendation: Adopt

		Note: On July 1, 2020, without hearing, Continued to July 15, 2020.



D.	CONSIDERATION OF ITEMS PROPOSED FOR CONTINUANCE



The Commission will consider a request for continuance to a later date.  The Commission may choose to continue the item to the date proposed below, to continue the item to another date, or to hear the item on this calendar.



7.	2018-009197COA	(S. FERGUSON: (415) 575-9074)

1772 VALLEJO STREET – north side between Gough and Franklin streets. Assessor’s Block 0552, Lot 029 (District 2) – Request for Certificate of Appropriateness for a three-story rear addition. The property is designated City Landmark No. 31 under Article 10 of the Planning Code. The property is zoned RH-2 (Residential-House, Two Family) District and 40-X Height and Bulk District.

Preliminary Recommendation:  Approve

Note:  On May 6, 2020, after hearing and closing public comment; Continued to May 20, 2020 by a vote of +7 -0. On May 20, 2020, without hearing, continued to June 3, 2020. On June 3, 2020, without hearing, continued to June 17, 2020. On June 17, 2020, after closing public comment, continued to July 1, 2020 by a vote of +7 -0. On July 1, 2020, without hearing, continued to July 15, 2020.

(Proposed for Continuance to August 19, 2020)



8.	2018-013643COA	(N. KWIATKOWSKA: (415) 575-9185)

556-560 SCOTT STREET – Located on the east side of Scott Street between Hayes and Fell Streets, Assessor’s Block 0824, Lot 012 (District 5). Request for Certificate of Appropriateness for replacement and addition of wood-sash windows and doors and infilling a non-historic garage opening with wood cladding to accommodate Accessory Dwelling Units and legalization of an unauthorized unit. The subject property is a contributor to the Alamo Square Landmark District and is located within the RM-2 (Residential-Mixed, Moderate Density) Zoning District and 40-X Height and Bulk District.

Preliminary Recommendation: Approve

Note: On May 20, 2020, without hearing, continued to June 17, 2020. On June 17, 2020, after closing public comment, continued to July 15, 2020 by a vote of +7 -0.

(Proposed for Continuance to September 2, 2020)



9.	2020-000052PCA	(V. FLORES: (415) 575-9173)

STANDARD ENVIRONMENTAL REQUIREMENTS [BF TBD] – Various Code Amendments – Ordinance amending the Administrative Code to authorize the Planning Commission to standardize policies that avoid or lessen common environmental impacts of Development Projects, as defined; create a program to apply those policies as requirements to Development Projects that meet certain applicability criteria, in order to protect public health, safety, welfare and the environment while expediting environmental review for housing and other Development Projects; and to make conforming amendments to the Planning, Environment and Police Codes; affirming the Planning Department’s determination under the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA); and making findings of consistency with the General Plan and the eight priority policies of Planning Code Section 101.1, and findings of public necessity, convenience and welfare findings under Planning Code, Section 302.

Preliminary Recommendation:  Adopt a Recommendation for Approval

Note: On April 15, 2020, after hearing and closing public comment; Continued to May 6, 2020 by a vote of +7 -0. On May 6, 2020, after closing public comment; Continued to July 15, 2020 by a vote of +7 -0.

(Proposed for Indefinite Continuance)






E.	REGULAR CALENDAR  



10.	2020-005179PCA	(V. FLORES: (415) 575-9173)

CONTINUATION OF USE FOR CERTAIN NONCONFORMING PARKING LOTS - MISSION STREET NEIGHBORHOOD COMMERCIAL TRANSIT DISTRICT [BF 200421] – Planning Code Amendments – Ordinance amending the Planning Code to allow in the Mission Street Neighborhood Commercial Transit District the continuance of a nonconforming parking lot that is on the site of a designated City landmark; affirming the Planning Department’s determination under the California Environmental Quality Act; making findings of consistency with the General Plan, and the eight priority policies of Planning Code, Section 101.1; and adopting findings of public necessity, convenience, and general welfare under Planning Code, Section 302.

Preliminary Recommendation:  Approve

Note: On July 1, 2020, without hearing, continued to July 15, 2020.



11a.	2019-005728COA	(M. GIACOMUCCI: (415) 575-8714)

945-947 MINNESOTA STREET – east side of Minnesota Street between 20th and 22nd streets, Lot 018 in Assessor's Block 4107 (District 10) - Request for a Certificate of Appropriateness pursuant to Planning Code Section 1006 to restore the front façade, reconstruct a two-story rear stair, infill a ground-floor open area under an existing rear addition, and construct visible decks at the third floor and roof levels on a contributing building within the Dogpatch Landmark District, RH-3 Zoning District, and 40-X Height and Bulk District.

Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions



11b.	2019-005728VAR	(M. GIACOMUCCI: (415) 575-8714)

945-947 MINNESOTA STREET – east side of Minnesota Street between 20th and 22nd streets, Lot 018 in Assessor's Block 4107 (District 10) - Request for a Variance from the rear yard requirement under Section 134 of the Planning Code to construct a rear stair, spiral stair, 3rd floor deck, and roof deck within the required rear yard. The subject property is located within the Dogpatch Landmark District, RH-3 Zoning District, and 40-X Height and Bulk District.



12.	2019-006264DES	(F. MCMILLEN: (415) 575-9076)

1315 WALLER STREET - Located on the south side of Waller Street between Masonic Avenue and Delmar Street, Assessor’s Block 1255, Lot 080 (District 6). Request to Adopt a Resolution in support of the nomination of the property to the National Register of Historic Places for its association with the peak of nineteenth century residential development in the Haight Ashbury neighborhood and as an excellent example of Queen Anne style architecture. The property is zoned RH-3 (Residential – House, Three Family) and in a 40-X Height and Bulk District.

Preliminary Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution 



ADJOURNMENT




Historic Liaison

Jeff Joslin

jeff.joslin@sfgov.org

(415) 575-9117



Hearing Procedures

The Historic Preservation Commission holds public hearings on the first and third Wednesday, of most months. The full hearing schedule for the calendar year and the Commission Rules & Regulations may be found online at: www.sfplanning.org. 



Public Comments: Persons attending a hearing may comment on any scheduled item. 

· When speaking before the Commission in City Hall, Room 400, please note the timer indicating how much time remains.  Speakers will hear two alarms.  The first soft sound indicates the speaker has 30 seconds remaining.  The second louder sound indicates that the speaker’s opportunity to address the Commission has ended.



Sound-Producing Devices Prohibited: The ringing of and use of mobile phones and other sound-producing electronic devices are prohibited at this meeting. Please be advised that the Chair may order the removal of any person(s) responsible for the ringing or use of a mobile phone, pager, or other similar sound-producing electronic devices (67A.1 Sunshine Ordinance: Prohibiting the use of cell phones, pagers and similar sound-producing electronic devices at and during public meetings).



For most cases that are considered by the Historic Preservation Commission, after being introduced by the Commission Secretary, shall be considered by the Commission in the following order:



1. Presentation by Staff;

2. Presentation by the Project Sponsor’s Team (which includes: the sponsor, representative, legal counsel, architect, engineer, expeditor and/or any other advisor) for a period not to exceed ten (10) minutes, at the discretion of the Chair;

3. Public testimony from supporters of the Project not to exceed three (3) minutes, at the discretion of the Chair;

4. Presentation by Organized Opposition recognized by the Commission President through written request prior to the hearing for a period not to exceed ten (10) minutes, at the discretion of the Chair;

5. Public testimony from opponents of the Project not to exceed three (3) minutes, at the discretion of the Chair;

6. Staff follow-up and/or conclusions;

7. Public comment portion of the hearing shall be closed and deliberation amongst the Commissioners shall be opened by the Chair;

8. A motion to approve; approve with conditions; approve with amendments and/or modifications; disapprove; or continue to another hearing date, if seconded, shall be voted on by the Commission.



Every Official Act taken by the Commission must be adopted by a majority vote of all members of the Commission, a minimum of four (4) votes.  A failed motion results in the disapproval of the requested action, unless a subsequent motion is adopted. Any Procedural Matter, such as a continuance, may be adopted by a majority vote of members present, as long as the members present constitute a quorum (four (4) members of the Commission).



Hearing Materials

Each item on the Agenda may include the following documents:

· Planning Department Case Executive Summary

· Planning Department Case Report

· Draft Motion or Resolution with Findings and/or Conditions

· Public Correspondence



Materials submitted to the Historic Preservation Commission prior to a scheduled hearing will become part of the public record only when the materials are also provided to the Commission Secretary and/or Project Planner.  Correspondence may be emailed directly to the Commission Secretary at: commissions.secretary@sfgov.org.  



Persons unable to attend a hearing may submit written comments regarding a scheduled item to: Historic Preservation Commission, 1650 Mission Street, Suite 400, San Francisco, CA  94103-2414.  Written comments received by the close of the business day prior to the hearing will be brought to the attention of the Historic Preservation Commission and made part of the official record.  



Advance Submissions: To allow Commissioners the opportunity to review material in advance of a hearing, materials must be received by the Planning Department reception eight (8) days prior to the scheduled public hearing.  All submission packages must be delivered to1650 Mission Street, Suite 400, by 5:00 p.m. and should include fifteen (15) copies.



Day-of Submissions: Material related to a calendared item may be distributed at the hearing. Please provide ten (10) copies for distribution. 



Appeals

The following is a summary of appeal rights associated with the various actions that may be taken at a Historic Preservation Commission hearing.



		Case Type

		Case Suffix

		Appeal Period*

		Appeal Body



		Certificate of Appropriateness

		COA (A)

		30 calendar days

		Board of Appeals**



		CEQA Determination - EIR

		ENV (E)

		30 calendar days

		Board of Supervisors



		Permit to Alter/Demolish

		PTA (H)

		30 calendar days

		Board of Appeals**







**An appeal of a Certificate of Appropriateness or Permit to Alter/Demolish may be made to the Board of Supervisors if the project requires Board of Supervisors approval or if the project is associated with a Conditional Use Authorization appeal.  An appeal of an Office Allocation may be made to the Board of Supervisors if the project requires a Conditional Use Authorization.



For more information regarding the Board of Appeals process, please contact the Board of Appeals at (415) 575-6880.  For more information regarding the Board of Supervisors process, please contact the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors at (415) 554-5184 or board.of.supervisors@sfgov.org. 



Challenges

Pursuant to Government Code Section 65009, if you challenge, in court, the approval of (1) a Certificate of Appropriateness, (2) a Permit to Alter, (3) a Landmark or Historic District designation, you may be limited to raising only those issues you or someone else raised at the public hearing described in this notice, or in written correspondence delivered to the Historic Preservation Commission, at, or prior to, the public hearing.



Proposition F

Under Campaign and Governmental Conduct Code Section 1.127, no person or entity with a financial interest in a land use matter pending before the Board of Appeals, Board of Supervisors, Building Inspection Commission, Commission on Community Investment and Infrastructure, Historic Preservation Commission, Planning Commission, Port Commission, or the Treasure Island Development Authority Board of Directors, may make a campaign contribution to a member of the Board of Supervisors, the Mayor, the City Attorney, or a candidate for any of those offices, from the date the land use matter commenced until 12 months after the board or commission has made a final decision or any appeal to another City agency from that decision has been resolved.  For more information about this restriction, visit sfethics.org.
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Know Your Rights Under the Sunshine Ordinance 
Government's duty is to serve the public, reaching its decisions in full view of the public. Commissions, boards, councils and other agencies of the 
City and County exist to conduct the people's business. This ordinance assures that deliberations are conducted before the people and that City 
operations are open to the people's review.  
 
For more information on your rights under the Sunshine Ordinance (Chapter 67 of the San Francisco Administrative Code) or to report a violation of 
the ordinance, contact the Sunshine Ordinance Task Force at City Hall, 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, Room 409; phone (415) 554-7724; fax (415) 
554-7854; or e-mail at sotf@sfgov.org. Copies of the Sunshine Ordinance can be obtained from the Clerk of the Sunshine Task Force, the San 
Francisco Library and on the City’s website at www.sfbos.org/sunshine. 
  
Privacy Policy 
Personal information that is provided in communications to the Planning Department is subject to disclosure under the California Public Records Act 
and the San Francisco Sunshine Ordinance. Personal information provided will not be redacted.  
 
Members of the public are not required to provide personal identifying information when they communicate with the Planning Department and its 
commissions. All written or oral communications that members of the public submit to the Department regarding projects or hearings will be made 
available to all members of the public for inspection and copying. The Department does not redact any information from these submissions. This 
means that personal information including names, phone numbers, addresses and similar information that a member of the public elects to submit 
to the Department and its commissions may appear on the Department’s website or in other public documents that members of the public may 
inspect or copy. 
  
San Francisco Lobbyist Ordinance 
Individuals and entities that influence or attempt to influence local legislative or administrative action may be required by the San Francisco Lobbyist 
Ordinance [SF Campaign and Governmental Conduct Code Section 21.00-2.160] to register and report lobbying activity.  For more information about 
the Lobbyist Ordinance, please contact the San Francisco Ethics Commission at 25 Van Ness Avenue, Suite 220, San Francisco, CA 94102; phone (415) 
252-3100; fax (415) 252-3112; and online http://www.sfgov.org/ethics. 
  
Accessible Meeting Information 
Commission hearings are held in Room 400 at City Hall, 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place in San Francisco. City Hall is open to the public Monday 
through Friday from 8:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m. and is accessible to persons using wheelchairs and other assistive mobility devices. Ramps are available at 
the Grove, Van Ness and McAllister entrances. A wheelchair lift is available at the Polk Street entrance.   
 
Transit: The nearest accessible BART station is Civic Center. Accessible MUNI Metro lines are the F, J, K, L, M, N, T (exit at Civic Center or Van Ness 
stations). MUNI bus routes also serving the area are the 5, 6, 9, 19, 21, 47, 49, 71, and 71L. For more information regarding MUNI accessible services, 
call (415) 701-4485 or call 311. 
 
Parking: Accessible parking is available at the Civic Center Underground Parking Garage (McAllister and Polk), and at the Performing Arts Parking 
Garage (Grove and Franklin). Accessible curbside parking spaces are located all around City Hall.  
 
Disability Accommodations: To request assistive listening devices, sign language interpreters, readers, large print agendas or other accommodations, 
please contact the Commission Secretary at (415) 558-6309, or commissions.secretary@fgov.org at least 48 hours in advance of the hearing. 
 
Language Assistance: To request an interpreter for a specific item during the hearing, please contact the Commission Secretary at (415) 558-6309, or 
commissions.secretary@fgov.org at least 48 hours in advance of the hearing. 
 
Allergies: In order to assist the City in accommodating persons with severe allergies, environmental illness, multiple chemical sensitivity or related 
disabilities, please refrain from wearing scented products (e.g. perfume and scented lotions) to Commission hearings. 
 
SPANISH:  Agenda para la Comisión de Preservación de Edificios y Lugares Históricos (Historic Preservation Commission).  Si desea asistir a la 
audiencia, y quisiera obtener información en Español o solicitar un aparato para asistencia auditiva, llame al 415-558-6309. Por favor llame por lo 
menos 48 horas de anticipación a la audiencia. 


CHINESE: 歷史保護委員會議程。聽證會上如需要語言協助或要求輔助設備，請致電415-558-6309。請在聽證會舉行之前的至少


48個小時提出要求。 


TAGALOG: Adyenda ng Komisyon para sa Pangangalaga ng Kasaysayan (Historic Preservation Commission Agenda). Para sa tulong sa lengguwahe o 
para humiling ng Pantulong na Kagamitan para sa Pagdinig (headset), mangyari lamang na tumawag sa 415-558-6309. Mangyaring tumawag nang 
maaga (kung maaari ay 48 oras) bago sa araw ng Pagdinig.  


RUSSIAN: Повестка дня Комиссии по защите памятников истории. За помощью переводчика или за вспомогательным слуховым 
устройством на время слушаний обращайтесь по номеру 415-558-6309. Запросы должны делаться минимум за 48 часов до 
начала слушания.



mailto:sotf@sfgov.org

http://www.sfbos.org/sunshine

http://www.sfgov.org/ethics

mailto:commissions.secretary@fgov.org
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Remote Access to Information and Participation  
 


In accordance with Governor Newsom’s statewide order for all residents to Shelter-in-place - and the 
numerous preceding local and state proclamations, orders and supplemental directions - aggressive 
directives have been issued to slow down and reduce the spread of the COVID-19 virus.  
 
On May 29, 2020, the Historic Preservation Commission was authorized to conduct their hearings 
remotely. Therefore, the Historic Preservation Commission meeting will be held via videoconferencing 
and allow for remote public comment. The Commission strongly encourages interested parties to 
submit their comments in writing, in advance of the hearing to commissions.secretary@sfgov.org. Visit 
the SFGovTV website (www.sfgovtv.org) to stream the live meetings or watch on a local television 
station.  


A public comment call-in line number will be provided on the Department’s webpage 
www.sfplanning.org and during the live SFGovTV broadcast. 
 
As the COVID-19 emergency progresses, please visit the Planning website regularly to be updated on 
the current situation as it affects the hearing process and the Historic Preservation Commission. 
 


 ROLL CALL:   
 President: Aaron Hyland 
 Vice President: Diane Matsuda 


  Commissioners:                 Kate Black, Chris Foley, Richard S.E. Johns, Jonathan 
Pearlman, Lydia So 


 
A. GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT 
 


At this time, members of the public may address the Commission on items of interest to the public 
that are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Commission except agenda items. With 
respect to agenda items, your opportunity to address the Commission will be afforded when the 
item is reached in the meeting.  Each member of the public may address the Commission for up to 
three minutes. 
 
The Brown Act forbids a commission from taking action or discussing any item not appearing on 
the posted agenda, including those items raised at public comment.  In response to public 
comment, the commission is limited to:  
 
(1)  responding to statements made or questions posed by members of the public; or 
(2)  requesting staff to report back on a matter at a subsequent meeting; or  
(3)  directing staff to place the item on a future agenda.  (Government Code Section 54954.2(a)) 


 
B. DEPARTMENT MATTERS 


 
1. Director’s Announcements  
  
2. Review of Past Events at the Planning Commission, Staff Report and Announcements 



mailto:commissions.secretary@sfgov.org

http://www.sfgovtv.org/

http://www.sfplanning.org/
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C. COMMISSION MATTERS  
 


3. President’s Report and Announcements 
  
4. Consideration of Adoption: 


• Draft Minutes for June 17, 2020 
 


Adoption of Commission Minutes – Charter Section 4.104 requires all commissioners to 
vote yes or no on all matters unless that commissioner is excused by a vote of the 
Commission.  Commissioners may not be automatically excluded from a vote on the 
minutes because they did not attend the meeting. 
 


5. Commission Comments & Questions 
• Disclosures. 
• Inquiries/Announcements.  Without discussion, at this time Commissioners may 


make announcements or inquiries of staff regarding various matters of interest to 
the Commissioner(s). 


• Future Meetings/Agendas.  At this time, the Commission may discuss and take 
action to set the date of a Special Meeting and/or determine those items that 
could be placed on the agenda of the next meeting and other future meetings of 
the Historic Preservation Commission. 


 
6. 2016-003351CWP (S. CALTAGIRONE: (415) 558-6625) 


RESOLUTION CENTERING PRESERVATION PLANNING ON RACIAL AND SOCIAL EQUITY – 
Adoption of a Resolution centering Preservation Planning on racial and social equity;  
acknowledging and apologizing for the history of inequitable planning and historic 
preservation policies that have resulted in racial disparities; recommending that the 
Department implement its Racial and Social Equity Action Plan; recommending that the 
Department develop proactive strategies to address structural and institutional racism, in 
collaboration with Black and Indigenous communities and Communities of Color; 
recommending that the Department amend its hiring and promotion practices to ensure 
that the Department’s staff reflects the diversity and demographics of the community; 
and, recommending that the Department build accountability through metrics and 
reporting. 
Preliminary Recommendation: Adopt 


  Note: On July 1, 2020, without hearing, Continued to July 15, 2020. 
 
D. CONSIDERATION OF ITEMS PROPOSED FOR CONTINUANCE 
 


The Commission will consider a request for continuance to a later date.  The Commission may 
choose to continue the item to the date proposed below, to continue the item to another date, or 
to hear the item on this calendar. 


 
7. 2018-009197COA (S. FERGUSON: (415) 575-9074) 


1772 VALLEJO STREET – north side between Gough and Franklin streets. Assessor’s Block 
0552, Lot 029 (District 2) – Request for Certificate of Appropriateness for a three-story rear 



https://commissions.sfplanning.org/hpcpackets/20200617_hpc_min.pdf

https://commissions.sfplanning.org/hpcpackets/DRAFT%20HPC%20Equity%20Resolution_Final.pdf

https://commissions.sfplanning.org/hpcpackets/HPC-COA%20-%201772%20Vallejo%20St%20-%202017-013752COA.pdf
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addition. The property is designated City Landmark No. 31 under Article 10 of the Planning 
Code. The property is zoned RH-2 (Residential-House, Two Family) District and 40-X Height 
and Bulk District. 
Preliminary Recommendation:  Approve 
Note:  On May 6, 2020, after hearing and closing public comment; Continued to May 20, 
2020 by a vote of +7 -0. On May 20, 2020, without hearing, continued to June 3, 2020. On 
June 3, 2020, without hearing, continued to June 17, 2020. On June 17, 2020, after closing 
public comment, continued to July 1, 2020 by a vote of +7 -0. On July 1, 2020, without 
hearing, continued to July 15, 2020. 
(Proposed for Continuance to August 19, 2020) 


 
8. 2018-013643COA (N. KWIATKOWSKA: (415) 575-9185) 


556-560 SCOTT STREET – Located on the east side of Scott Street between Hayes and Fell 
Streets, Assessor’s Block 0824, Lot 012 (District 5). Request for Certificate of 
Appropriateness for replacement and addition of wood-sash windows and doors and 
infilling a non-historic garage opening with wood cladding to accommodate Accessory 
Dwelling Units and legalization of an unauthorized unit. The subject property is a 
contributor to the Alamo Square Landmark District and is located within the RM-2 
(Residential-Mixed, Moderate Density) Zoning District and 40-X Height and Bulk District. 
Preliminary Recommendation: Approve 
Note: On May 20, 2020, without hearing, continued to June 17, 2020. On June 17, 2020, 
after closing public comment, continued to July 15, 2020 by a vote of +7 -0. 
(Proposed for Continuance to September 2, 2020) 


 
9. 2020-000052PCA (V. FLORES: (415) 575-9173) 


STANDARD ENVIRONMENTAL REQUIREMENTS [BF TBD] – Various Code Amendments – 
Ordinance amending the Administrative Code to authorize the Planning Commission to 
standardize policies that avoid or lessen common environmental impacts of Development 
Projects, as defined; create a program to apply those policies as requirements to 
Development Projects that meet certain applicability criteria, in order to protect public 
health, safety, welfare and the environment while expediting environmental review for 
housing and other Development Projects; and to make conforming amendments to the 
Planning, Environment and Police Codes; affirming the Planning Department’s 
determination under the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA); and making findings 
of consistency with the General Plan and the eight priority policies of Planning Code 
Section 101.1, and findings of public necessity, convenience and welfare findings under 
Planning Code, Section 302. 
Preliminary Recommendation:  Adopt a Recommendation for Approval 
Note: On April 15, 2020, after hearing and closing public comment; Continued to May 6, 
2020 by a vote of +7 -0. On May 6, 2020, after closing public comment; Continued to July 
15, 2020 by a vote of +7 -0. 
(Proposed for Indefinite Continuance) 


 
  



https://commissions.sfplanning.org/hpcpackets/2020-000052PCA%20HPC.pdf
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E. REGULAR CALENDAR   
 


10. 2020-005179PCA (V. FLORES: (415) 575-9173) 
CONTINUATION OF USE FOR CERTAIN NONCONFORMING PARKING LOTS - MISSION STREET 
NEIGHBORHOOD COMMERCIAL TRANSIT DISTRICT [BF 200421] – Planning Code 
Amendments – Ordinance amending the Planning Code to allow in the Mission Street 
Neighborhood Commercial Transit District the continuance of a nonconforming parking lot 
that is on the site of a designated City landmark; affirming the Planning Department’s 
determination under the California Environmental Quality Act; making findings of 
consistency with the General Plan, and the eight priority policies of Planning Code, Section 
101.1; and adopting findings of public necessity, convenience, and general welfare under 
Planning Code, Section 302. 
Preliminary Recommendation:  Approve 
Note: On July 1, 2020, without hearing, continued to July 15, 2020. 
 


11a. 2019-005728COA (M. GIACOMUCCI: (415) 575-8714) 
945-947 MINNESOTA STREET – east side of Minnesota Street between 20th and 22nd 
streets, Lot 018 in Assessor's Block 4107 (District 10) - Request for a Certificate of 
Appropriateness pursuant to Planning Code Section 1006 to restore the front façade, 
reconstruct a two-story rear stair, infill a ground-floor open area under an existing rear 
addition, and construct visible decks at the third floor and roof levels on a contributing 
building within the Dogpatch Landmark District, RH-3 Zoning District, and 40-X Height and 
Bulk District. 
Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions 


 
11b. 2019-005728VAR (M. GIACOMUCCI: (415) 575-8714) 


945-947 MINNESOTA STREET – east side of Minnesota Street between 20th and 22nd 
streets, Lot 018 in Assessor's Block 4107 (District 10) - Request for a Variance from the rear 
yard requirement under Section 134 of the Planning Code to construct a rear stair, spiral 
stair, 3rd floor deck, and roof deck within the required rear yard. The subject property is 
located within the Dogpatch Landmark District, RH-3 Zoning District, and 40-X Height and 
Bulk District. 
 


12. 2019-006264DES (F. MCMILLEN: (415) 575-9076) 
1315 WALLER STREET - Located on the south side of Waller Street between Masonic 
Avenue and Delmar Street, Assessor’s Block 1255, Lot 080 (District 6). Request to Adopt a 
Resolution in support of the nomination of the property to the National Register of Historic 
Places for its association with the peak of nineteenth century residential development in 
the Haight Ashbury neighborhood and as an excellent example of Queen Anne style 
architecture. The property is zoned RH-3 (Residential – House, Three Family) and in a 40-X 
Height and Bulk District. 
Preliminary Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution  
 


ADJOURNMENT 
  



https://commissions.sfplanning.org/hpcpackets/2020-005179PCA%20HPC.pdf

https://commissions.sfplanning.org/hpcpackets/2019-005728COA.pdf

https://commissions.sfplanning.org/hpcpackets/2019-005728COA.pdf

https://commissions.sfplanning.org/hpcpackets/2019-006264DES-1315%20Waller%20Street-Review-Comment.pdf
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Historic Liaison 
Jeff Joslin 
jeff.joslin@sfgov.org 
(415) 575-9117 
 
Hearing Procedures 
The Historic Preservation Commission holds public hearings on the first and third Wednesday, of most months. The full hearing 
schedule for the calendar year and the Commission Rules & Regulations may be found online at: www.sfplanning.org.  
 
Public Comments: Persons attending a hearing may comment on any scheduled item.  
 When speaking before the Commission in City Hall, Room 400, please note the timer indicating how much time remains.  


Speakers will hear two alarms.  The first soft sound indicates the speaker has 30 seconds remaining.  The second louder 
sound indicates that the speaker’s opportunity to address the Commission has ended. 


 
Sound-Producing Devices Prohibited: The ringing of and use of mobile phones and other sound-producing electronic devices are 
prohibited at this meeting. Please be advised that the Chair may order the removal of any person(s) responsible for the ringing or 
use of a mobile phone, pager, or other similar sound-producing electronic devices (67A.1 Sunshine Ordinance: Prohibiting the use 
of cell phones, pagers and similar sound-producing electronic devices at and during public meetings). 
 
For most cases that are considered by the Historic Preservation Commission, after being introduced by the Commission 
Secretary, shall be considered by the Commission in the following order: 
 


1. Presentation by Staff; 
2. Presentation by the Project Sponsor’s Team (which includes: the sponsor, representative, legal counsel, architect, 


engineer, expeditor and/or any other advisor) for a period not to exceed ten (10) minutes, at the discretion of the Chair; 
3. Public testimony from supporters of the Project not to exceed three (3) minutes, at the discretion of the Chair; 
4. Presentation by Organized Opposition recognized by the Commission President through written request prior to the 


hearing for a period not to exceed ten (10) minutes, at the discretion of the Chair; 
5. Public testimony from opponents of the Project not to exceed three (3) minutes, at the discretion of the Chair; 
6. Staff follow-up and/or conclusions; 
7. Public comment portion of the hearing shall be closed and deliberation amongst the Commissioners shall be opened 


by the Chair; 
8. A motion to approve; approve with conditions; approve with amendments and/or modifications; disapprove; or 


continue to another hearing date, if seconded, shall be voted on by the Commission. 
 
Every Official Act taken by the Commission must be adopted by a majority vote of all members of the Commission, a minimum of 
four (4) votes.  A failed motion results in the disapproval of the requested action, unless a subsequent motion is adopted. Any 
Procedural Matter, such as a continuance, may be adopted by a majority vote of members present, as long as the members 
present constitute a quorum (four (4) members of the Commission). 
 
Hearing Materials 
Each item on the Agenda may include the following documents: 


• Planning Department Case Executive Summary 
• Planning Department Case Report 
• Draft Motion or Resolution with Findings and/or Conditions 
• Public Correspondence 


 
Materials submitted to the Historic Preservation Commission prior to a scheduled hearing will become part of the public record 
only when the materials are also provided to the Commission Secretary and/or Project Planner.  Correspondence may be emailed 
directly to the Commission Secretary at: commissions.secretary@sfgov.org.   
 
Persons unable to attend a hearing may submit written comments regarding a scheduled item to: Historic Preservation 
Commission, 1650 Mission Street, Suite 400, San Francisco, CA  94103-2414.  Written comments received by the close of the 
business day prior to the hearing will be brought to the attention of the Historic Preservation Commission and made part of the 
official record.   
 



mailto:jeff.joslin@sfgov.org

http://www.sfplanning.org/

mailto:commissions.secretary@sfgov.org





San Francisco Historic Preservation Commission  Wednesday, July 15, 2020 


 


Notice of Remote Hearing & Agenda        Page 8 of 8 


Advance Submissions: To allow Commissioners the opportunity to review material in advance of a hearing, materials must be 
received by the Planning Department reception eight (8) days prior to the scheduled public hearing.  All submission packages 
must be delivered to1650 Mission Street, Suite 400, by 5:00 p.m. and should include fifteen (15) copies. 
 
Day-of Submissions: Material related to a calendared item may be distributed at the hearing. Please provide ten (10) copies for 
distribution.  
 
Appeals 
The following is a summary of appeal rights associated with the various actions that may be taken at a Historic Preservation 
Commission hearing. 
 


Case Type Case Suffix Appeal Period* Appeal Body 
Certificate of Appropriateness COA (A) 30 calendar days Board of Appeals** 
CEQA Determination - EIR ENV (E) 30 calendar days Board of Supervisors 
Permit to Alter/Demolish PTA (H) 30 calendar days Board of Appeals** 


 
**An appeal of a Certificate of Appropriateness or Permit to Alter/Demolish may be made to the Board of Supervisors if the project 
requires Board of Supervisors approval or if the project is associated with a Conditional Use Authorization appeal.  An appeal of an 
Office Allocation may be made to the Board of Supervisors if the project requires a Conditional Use Authorization. 
 
For more information regarding the Board of Appeals process, please contact the Board of Appeals at (415) 575-6880.  For more 
information regarding the Board of Supervisors process, please contact the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors at (415) 554-5184 or 
board.of.supervisors@sfgov.org.  
 
Challenges 
Pursuant to Government Code Section 65009, if you challenge, in court, the approval of (1) a Certificate of Appropriateness, (2) a 
Permit to Alter, (3) a Landmark or Historic District designation, you may be limited to raising only those issues you or someone 
else raised at the public hearing described in this notice, or in written correspondence delivered to the Historic Preservation 
Commission, at, or prior to, the public hearing. 
 
Proposition F 
Under Campaign and Governmental Conduct Code Section 1.127, no person or entity with a financial interest in a land use 
matter pending before the Board of Appeals, Board of Supervisors, Building Inspection Commission, Commission on Community 
Investment and Infrastructure, Historic Preservation Commission, Planning Commission, Port Commission, or the Treasure Island 
Development Authority Board of Directors, may make a campaign contribution to a member of the Board of Supervisors, the 
Mayor, the City Attorney, or a candidate for any of those offices, from the date the land use matter commenced until 12 months 
after the board or commission has made a final decision or any appeal to another City agency from that decision has been 
resolved.  For more information about this restriction, visit sfethics.org. 



mailto:board.of.supervisors@sfgov.org
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Advance

				To:		Historic Preservation Commission

				From:		Jonas P. Ionin, Director of Commission Affairs

				Re:		Advance Calendar

						All items and dates are tentative and subject to change.



				July 15, 2020						 

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		CONT.		NOTES		Planner

		2020-000052PCA		Standard Environmental Requirements 				fr: 3/18; 4/1; 4/15; 5/6						Flores

						Planning Code Amendment		to: Indefinite

		2016-003351CWP		Racial & Social Equity				fr: 7/1						Chion

						Resolution

		2020-005179PCA		Nonconforming Parking Lots - Mission Street Neighborhood Commercial Transit District				fr: 7/1						Flores

						Planning Code Amendment

		2018-013643COA		556-560 Scott Street				fr: 5/20; 6/17						Kwiatkowska

						CoA

		2019-006264DES		1315 Waller Street										McMillen

						National Register nomination

		2019-005728COAVAR		945-947 Minnesota Street 										Giacomucci

						CoA

				August 5, 2020						 

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		CONT.		NOTES		Planner

		2018-009197COA		1772 Vallejo Street				fr: 4/15; 5/6; 5/20; 6/3; 6/17; 7/1						Ferguson

						Three story rear addition

		2020-004998COA		35 Onondaga Street										Cisneros

						COA for exterior alterations to the former Alemany Hospital

		2016-003351CWP		Racial & Social Equity Initiative - Phase II										Flores

						Informational

				August 19, 2020						 

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		CONT.		NOTES		Planner

		2019-022401COA		300 Bartlett Street										Cisneros

						CoA

				September 2, 2020						 

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		CONT.		NOTES		Planner

				September 16, 2020						 

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		CONT.		NOTES		Planner

				October 7, 2020						 

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		CONT.		NOTES		Planner

				October 21, 2020						 

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		CONT.		NOTES		Planner

				November 4, 2020						 

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		CONT.		NOTES		Planner

				November 18, 2020						 

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		CONT.		NOTES		Planner

				December 2, 2020						 

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		CONT.		NOTES		Planner

				December 16, 2020						 

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		CONT.		NOTES		Planner

		2016-008192SRV		Glide Memorial Church										McMillen

						National Register nomination

				January 6, 2021						 

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		CONT.		NOTES		Planner
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Action Items

		HPC Action Items								 

		Date		Item						CONT.		NOTES		HEARING DATE

		3/7/12		Priorities on Landmark Designation Work Program										TBD

						Pending completion of Preserve America Grant Tasks

		3/21/12		Discussion of incentives and preservation tools for historic cultural uses/resources										TBD

						Follow-up based on 12/5/12 Hearing

		6/20/12		HPC Review and Comment of CEQA Ducuments										TBD

						Pending request with Environmental Planning

		12/19/12		Condition of Mothers Building										TBD

						With RecPark and Arts Commission Representatives

		2/6/13		Update on monastery materials to return back to Santa Maria de 'Ovila Monastery in Spain										TBD

						Request by Commissioner Martinez

		2/6/13		Status update on Settlement Agreement re: mitigation monitoring and enforcement										TBD

						Request by President Damkroger & Commissioner Martinez

		2/6/13		Status of Golden Gate Park Landmark Designation, including Stow Lake Boat House										TBD

						Request by President Damkroger

		3/6/13		Update on Preservation Website										5/15/13

						Request by Commissioner Wolfram

		10/2/13		Inventory of Interpretive displays associated with EIRs										TBD

						Request by Commissioner Johns

		5/15/13		2nd Update on Preservation Website										TBD

						Request by Commissioner Wolfram

		10/2/13		Inventory of Interpretive displays associated with EIRs										TBD

						Request by Commissioner Johns

		2/5/14		Discuss HPC promotion and involvement in 20% Federal Rehabilitation Tax Credit Program										TBD

						Request by Vice President Wolfram, with representatives from OHP

		2/19/14		Update on Draft Preservation Element										TBD

						Request by Commissioner Matsuda, President Hasz 

		2/19/14		Discuss local application of Secretary of the Interior's Standards										TBD

						Request by Commissioner Pearlman

		2/19/14		Status of Golden Gate Park Landmark Designation, including Stow Lake Boat House										TBD

						Request by Commissioner Matsuda
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To:	Staff

From:	Jonas P. Ionin, Director of Commission Affairs

Re:	Historic Preservation Commission Hearing Results

	

NEXT RESOLUTION No:  1125

NEXT MOTION No:  0421

NEXT COMMENT LETTER:  0089

M = Motion; R = Resolution; L = HPC Comment Letter

  June 17, 2020 HPC Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		

		Draft Minutes For HPC May 6, 2020

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+6 -0 (Foley absent)



		

		

		Motion Directing Staff to Draft a Resolution supporting the Department’s efforts re: Racial & Social Equity

		

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		

		

		Letter Supporting The Legacy Business Program

		Caltagirone

		Adopted with Amendments

		+7 -0



		

		2018-009197COA

		1772 Vallejo Street

		Ferguson

		Continued to July 1, 2020

		+7 -0



		

		2018-013643COA

		556-560 Scott Street

		Kwiatkowska

		Continued to July 15, 2020

		+7 -0



		

		2019-017767DES

		Lake Street Landmark District

		LaValley

		Continued Indefinitely

		+7 -0



		M-0419

		2015-014170COA-02

		804-806 22nd Street

		Giacomucci

		After being pulled off of Consent; Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-0420

		2015-013876PTA

		207 Powell Street

		Westhoff

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		

		2017-004557ENV

		550 O’farrell Street

		McKellar

		Reviewed and Commented

		







   June 3, 2020 HPC Cancellation and Continuances:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2018-009197COA

		1772 Vallejo Street

		Ferguson

		Continued to June 17, 2020

		



		

		2015-014170COA-02

		804-806 22nd Street

		Giacomucci

		Continued to June 17, 2020

		







  May 20, 2020 HPC Cancellation and Continuances:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2018-009197COA

		1772 Vallejo Street

		Ferguson

		Continued to June 3, 2020

		



		

		2018-013643COA

		556-560 Scott Street

		Kwiatkowska

		Continued to June 17, 2020

		







  May 6, 2020 HPC Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		

		Draft Minutes for ARC February 5, 2020

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		

		

		Draft Minutes for HPC April 15, 2020

		Ionin

		Adopted as Amended and Corrected

		+7 -0



		

		

		Certified Local Government Program (CLG) Annual Report

		Boudreaux

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		

		2020-000052PCA

		Standard Environmental Requirements [BF TBD]

		Flores

		Continued to July 15, 2020

		+7 -0



		

		2018-009197COA

		1772 Vallejo Street

		Ferguson

		After hearing and closing public comment; Continued to May 20, 2020.

		+7 -0



		R-1124

		2019-022536DES

		4767-4773 Mission Street

		McMillen

		Approved

		+7 -0



		

		

		Legacy Business Program

		Caltagirone

		Reviewed and Commented

		







   April 15, 2020 HPC Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2018-009197COA

		1772 Vallejo Street

		Ferguson

		Continued to May 6, 2020

		+7 -0



		M-0416

		2019-017569COA

		735 Montgomery Street

		Salgado

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-0417

		2019-016968COA

		1086-1088 Fulton Street

		Kwiatkowska

		Approved

		+7 -0



		M-0418

		2020-000441COA

		53-57 Potomac Street

		Ferguson

		Approved

		+7 -0



		

		2020-000052PCA

		Standard Environmental Requirements [BF TBD]

		Flores

		After hearing and closing public comment; Continued to May 6, 2020

		+7 -0



		R-1120

		2020-003292LBR

		715 Harrison Street

		Caltagirone

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		R-1121

		2020-003293LBR

		1414 Ocean Avenue

		Caltagirone

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		R-1122

		2020-003294LBR

		25 Van Ness Avenue

		Caltagirone

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		R-1123

		2020-003295LBR

		285 South Van Ness Avenue

		Caltagirone

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0







  April 15, 2020 ARC Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2019-021832COA

		300 Bartlett Street

		Cisneros

		Reviewed and Commented

		







April 1, 2020 ARC Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2019-021832COA

		300 Bartlett Street

		Cisneros

		Continued to April 15, 2020

		







April 1, 2020 HPC Hearing Results:

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

		53-57 POTOMAC STREET

		Ferguson

		Continued to April 15, 2020

		



		

		2018-009197COA

		1772 VALLEJO STREET

		Ferguson

		Continued to April 15, 2020

		



		

		2019-022536DES

		4767-4773 Mission Street

		McMillen

		Continued to May 6, 2020

		







March 18, 2020 ARC Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2019-021832COA

		300 Bartlett Street

		Cisneros

		Continued to April 1, 2020

		







March 18, 2020 HPC Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2019-022126COA-03

		55 Hagiwara Tea Garden Drive

		Taylor

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

		







February 19, 2020 HPC Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		

		Draft Minutes for February 5, 2020

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		M-0412

		2016-013739COA-02

		933-935 Valencia Street

		Kwiatkowska

		Approved

		+7 -0



		M-0413

		2019-001839COA

		1128 Market Street

		Vimr

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-0414

		2019-001318COA

		740 Tennessee Street

		Giacomucci

		Approved with Conditions as amended to include:

1. Historic wood siding rather that plaster;

2. Distinctly different wood siding to be used for the bay windows; and 

3. Wood windows for the rear elevation.

		+7 -0



		M-0415

		2019-022126COA-02

		55 Hagiwara Tea Garden Drive

		Taylor

		Approved with Conditions as amended to eliminate the proposed lighted sign.

		+5 -0 (Hyland recused; So absent)







February 5, 2020 ARC Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2019-004772COA

		3250-70 18th Street

		Giacomucci

		Reviewed and Commented

		







February 5, 2020 HPC Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		

		Draft Minutes for January 15, 2020

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		

		2019-022536DES

		4767-4773 Mission Street

		McMillen

		Continued to March 18, 2020

		+7 -0



		M-0411

		2019-019493PTA

		972 Mission Street

		Salgado

		Approved

		+7 -0



		R-1118

		2019-023608CRV

		FY 2019-2021 Proposed Department Budget and Work Program

		Landis

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval as amended

		+7 -0



		

		2019-016220OTH

		Mural Projects

		Gunther

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		R-1119

		2019-022536DES

		4767-4773 Mission Street

		McMillen

		Initiated

		+7 -0







January 15, 2020 ARC Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2018-009197COA

		1772 Vallejo Street, Landmark #31

		Ferguson

		Reviewed and Commented

		







January 15, 2020 HPC Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		

		Draft Minutes for December 18, 2019

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		

		

		Election of Officers

		Ionin

		Hyland – President;

Matsuda – Vice.



Pearlman, Black, So – ARC;

Matsuda – Cultural Heritage Liaison.

		+7 -0



		

		2019-023608CRV

		FY 2020-2022 Proposed Department Budget and Work Program

		Landis

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		

		

		SB 330: Housing Crisis Act of 2019

		Bintliff

		None - Informational

		



		R-1115

		2020-000031LBR

		2883 Mission Street

		Caltagirone

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		R-1116

		2020-000032LBR

		160 Ellis Street

		Caltagirone

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval as amended

		+7 -0



		R-1117

		2020-000035LBR

		1201 Divisadero Street

		Caltagirone

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		M-0407

		2019-022126COA

		55 Hagiwara Tea Garden Drive

		Taylor

		Approved with Conditions as amended:

1. Eliminating the provision for any extension beyond March 31, 2021; and

2. Recommending Rec&Park conduct community outreach regarding the effect of lighting and implement measures to mitigate its impact.

		+4 -1 (Hyland recused; Foley absent)



		M-0408

		2018-010825COA

		694 Tennessee Street

		Giacomucci

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Foley, Matsuda absent)



		

		2018-010825VAR

		694 Tennessee Street

		Giacomucci

		Acting ZA Closed the public hearing and indicated an Intent to Grant

		



		M-0409

		2017-001073COA

		1701 Franklin Street

		Vimr

		Approved with Conditions

		+4 -0 (Pearlman recused; Foley, Matsuda absent)



		M-0410

		2019-007049COA

		600 Stockton Street

		Vimr

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Foley, Matsuda absent)







image1.jpeg









From: CPC-Commissions Secretary
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: HPC/Social Equity
Date: Thursday, July 09, 2020 3:09:33 PM

Commission Affairs
San Francisco Planning Department
1650 Mission Street, Suite 400 San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 415.575.9111 | www.sfplanning.org
San Francisco Property Information Map

REDUCED CAPACITY DURING THE SHELTER IN PLACE ORDER -- The Planning Department is open for
business. Most of our staff are working from home and we’re available by e-mail. Our Public Portal, where you can
file new applications, and our award-winning Property Information Map are available 24/7. Similarly, the Board of
Appeals and Board of Supervisors are accepting appeals via e-mail despite office closures. To protect everyone’s
health, all of our in-person services at 1650 and 1660 Mission Street are suspended, and the Planning and Historic
Preservation Commissions are cancelled until April 9, at the earliest. Click here for more information.

-----Original Message-----
From: David Prowler <david@prowler.org>
Sent: Thursday, July 09, 2020 2:50 PM
To: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>; Gordon-Jonckheer, Elizabeth (CPC)
<elizabeth.gordon-jonckheer@sfgov.org>; CPC.Equity <CPC.Equity@sfgov.org>
Subject: HPC/Social Equity

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted sources.

Thank you for the invitation to comment on the HPC’s role in social equity.

My observation is that the HPC’s mandate - building preservation, without a responsibility to balance social needs
such as housing - has contributed to the City’s housing shortage.

I do believe that this, along with an overly broad definition of historic or significant, endless design review and
exclusionary zoning,  has contributed to the economic and class disparities that plague our City.

David Prowler

mailto:commissions.secretary@sfgov.org
mailto:Josephine.Feliciano@sfgov.org


From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR BREED ANNOUNCES THE FLEXIBLE HOUSING SUBSIDY POOL TO

TRANSITION HUNDREDS OF VULNERABLE HOMELESS RESIDENTS INTO PERMANENT HOUSING
Date: Thursday, July 09, 2020 11:07:35 AM
Attachments: 07.09.20 Flexible Housing Subsidy Pool.pdf

 
 
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
Date: Thursday, July 9, 2020 at 9:01 AM
To: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>
Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR BREED ANNOUNCES THE FLEXIBLE
HOUSING SUBSIDY POOL TO TRANSITION HUNDREDS OF VULNERABLE
HOMELESS RESIDENTS INTO PERMANENT HOUSING
 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Thursday, July 9, 2020
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org
 

*** PRESS RELEASE ***
MAYOR BREED ANNOUNCES THE FLEXIBLE HOUSING

SUBSIDY POOL TO TRANSITION HUNDREDS OF
VULNERABLE HOMELESS RESIDENTS INTO PERMANENT

HOUSING
As the City pivots from COVID-19 response to recovery, the City partners with non-profits to
fund and operate a bold initiative to ensure that hundreds of unhoused residents never return

to homelessness
 
San Francisco, CA — Today, Mayor London N. Breed and the All In Campaign, powered by
Tipping Point Community, announced that 200 unhoused San Franciscans who have been
temporarily placed in hotels under the City’s emergency response to COVID-19 would move
into long-term homes by the end of the year through a Flexible Housing Subsidy Pool. 
 
“Even as we have implemented emergency responses to COVID-19, we have remained
focused on long term solutions to homelessness, particularly more housing,” said Mayor
Breed. “The Flexible Housing Subsidy Pool is an innovative and cost-effective way to get our
unhoused residents out of temporary shelters, off the streets, and into permanent homes.”

mailto:jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
mailto:Josephine.Feliciano@sfgov.org
mailto:jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
http://www.sfplanning.org/
mailto:mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org
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


fund and operate a bold initiative to ensure that hundreds of unhoused residents never return to 
homelessness 


 
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
 
“Even as we have implemented emergency responses to COVID-19, we have remained focused 
on long term solutions to homelessness, particularly more housing,” said Mayor Breed. “The 
Flexible Housing Subsidy Pool is an innovative and cost-effective way to get our unhoused 
residents out of temporary shelters, off the streets, and into permanent homes.” 
 
The “Flex Pool,” as it is commonly known, is a housing strategy that matches people 
experiencing homelessness to vacant private market apartments across the city, and provides 
supportive services so that they remain stably housed. This model has proven effective, helping 
over 8,000 people transition from homelessness to permanent homes with supportive services in 
Los Angeles since 2014. San Francisco has already started utilizing the Flex Pool on a small 
scale and will significantly build on these efforts over the course of the year. 
 
The San Francisco Flex Pool is a partnership between the Department of Homelessness and 
Supportive Housing (HSH), Brilliant Corners, and philanthropy including Tipping Point 
Community, Dignity Health, and Crankstart. HSH will refer eligible individuals into the Flex 
Pool. Brilliant Corners will identify landlords and property owners who have vacant units 
available, support prospective tenants through the leasing process, and provide housing retention 
services to tenants throughout the duration of their lease. Tenants will contribute 30% of their 
income towards their rent, while receiving rental subsidies and supportive services that help them 
stay housed for the long term. Philanthropic dollars will pay for the first 18 months of Flex Pool 
operations. 
 
“We are committed to securing permanent homes for as many of the people who have been 
sheltered as a result of COVID-19 as we possibly can. The Flex Pool is an important step in 



mailto:mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org
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fulfilling that commitment,” said Abigail Stewart-Kahn, Interim Director of the Department of 
Homeless and Supportive Housing. 
 
“The combination of supportive services and rent subsidies is a sustainable formula for securing 
the housing people need to be healthy,” said Ashley Brand, system director of community and 
homeless health for CommonSpirit Health and Dignity Health. “As a health system, we have a 
mission to improve health, especially for people who are vulnerable, and we’re grateful for 
partnerships like this that help those struggling to find a safe place to live.” 
 
Data shows that homelessness and COVID-19 both disproportionately impact the Black 
community. As the City lifts shelter-in-place restrictions, this program will ensure that hundreds 
of our most vulnerable unhoused residents, many of whom are Black and at greater risk for 
contracting COVID-19, secure permanent homes where they can better protect their health. The 
partners are committed to ensuring that the Flex Pool plays a role in reducing the racial 
disparities among San Francisco’s homeless population.  
 
“To truly demonstrate our commitment to racial equality, we must make good on our promise to 
secure housing for the many Black people who have been disproportionately impacted by 
homelessness for years, even decades,” said Chris Block, Tipping Point’s Chronic Homelessness 
Initiative Director.  
 
Given the current rental market, it is less expensive to lease apartments in many neighborhoods 
than it is to pay nightly hotel rates. By moving people out of hotels, the program will free up 
more space for people who are currently on our streets to access hotel rooms, while expanding 
the supply of supportive housing throughout San Francisco. 
 
“Flexible housing subsidy pools are the most efficient model for matching people to existing 
housing resources. While it can take three to five years to build a new 50-unit affordable 
building, a Flex Pool can house 200 people or more in a matter of months – and help them to 
stay housed,” said William F. Pickel, CEO of Brilliant Corners. 
 
The City has already moved some people into permanent housing through the Flex Pool, 
including Roland Limjoco, 47, who had been homeless for several years and moved into his new 
studio in early June.  
 
“I feel less stressed now... I was so stressed every day. It was hard being homeless. I remember 
the times I was staying on the street, and I had a really bad experience. I was so excited when I 
moved in. Here in my new place it is great, quiet, and I have a nice view. I never had this before. 
I also now have an elevator which is great due to my knee problems,” said Limjoco. 
 
About All In 
The All In campaign is a diverse coalition focused on solutions to homelessness in San 
Francisco. The campaign’s first call to action is to secure homes for 1,100 people experiencing 
homelessness throughout San Francisco’s 11 supervisorial districts. Solving homelessness is a 
shared responsibility that requires involvement from the entire City. As one of the wealthiest and 
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most innovative cities in the world, we have the resources and ingenuity to address homelessness 
boldly and compassionately. Now is the moment to go all in. https://www.sfallin.org/  
 
About Tipping Point Community 
Tipping Point’s mission is to break the cycle of poverty for people in the Bay Area who don’t 
have the resources to meet their basic needs. Since 2005, Tipping Point has raised more than 
$260 million for early childhood, education, employment, and housing solutions in the region. 
Our board covers 100% of our operating costs, so every dollar donated goes where it’s needed 
most. Last year, we helped more than 130,000 people take steps out of poverty. 
Visit www.tippingpoint.org to learn more. https://tippingpoint.org/homelessness  
 
 


### 



https://www.sfallin.org/

https://tippingpoint.org/homelessness





 
The “Flex Pool,” as it is commonly known, is a housing strategy that matches people
experiencing homelessness to vacant private market apartments across the city, and provides
supportive services so that they remain stably housed. This model has proven effective,
helping over 8,000 people transition from homelessness to permanent homes with supportive
services in Los Angeles since 2014. San Francisco has already started utilizing the Flex Pool
on a small scale and will significantly build on these efforts over the course of the year.
 
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
available, support prospective tenants through the leasing process, and provide housing
retention services to tenants throughout the duration of their lease. Tenants will contribute
30% of their income towards their rent, while receiving rental subsidies and supportive
services that help them stay housed for the long term. Philanthropic dollars will pay for the
first 18 months of Flex Pool operations.
 
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
 
“The combination of supportive services and rent subsidies is a sustainable formula for
securing the housing people need to be healthy,” said Ashley Brand, system director of
community and homeless health for CommonSpirit Health and Dignity Health. “As a health
system, we have a mission to improve health, especially for people who are vulnerable, and
we’re grateful for partnerships like this that help those struggling to find a safe place to live.”
 
Data shows that homelessness and COVID-19 both disproportionately impact the Black
community. As the City lifts shelter-in-place restrictions, this program will ensure that
hundreds of our most vulnerable unhoused residents, many of whom are Black and at greater
risk for contracting COVID-19, secure permanent homes where they can better protect their
health. The partners are committed to ensuring that the Flex Pool plays a role in reducing the
racial disparities among San Francisco’s homeless population. 
 
“To truly demonstrate our commitment to racial equality, we must make good on our promise
to secure housing for the many Black people who have been disproportionately impacted by
homelessness for years, even decades,” said Chris Block, Tipping Point’s Chronic
Homelessness Initiative Director. 
 
Given the current rental market, it is less expensive to lease apartments in many
neighborhoods than it is to pay nightly hotel rates. By moving people out of hotels, the
program will free up more space for people who are currently on our streets to access hotel
rooms, while expanding the supply of supportive housing throughout San Francisco.
 
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
including Roland Limjoco, 47, who had been homeless for several years and moved into his
new studio in early June.
 
“I feel less stressed now... I was so stressed every day. It was hard being homeless. I
remember the times I was staying on the street, and I had a really bad experience. I was so
excited when I moved in. Here in my new place it is great, quiet, and I have a nice view. I
never had this before. I also now have an elevator which is great due to my knee problems,”
said Limjoco.
 
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
shared responsibility that requires involvement from the entire City. As one of the wealthiest
and most innovative cities in the world, we have the resources and ingenuity to address
homelessness boldly and compassionately. Now is the moment to go all in.
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
Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES NEW MOBILE TESTING SITE IN THE

MISSION AND RIGHT TO RECOVER PROGRAM TO PROVIDE FINANCIAL SUPPORT FOR RESIDENTS WHO TEST
POSITIVE FOR COVID-19

Date: Thursday, July 09, 2020 11:06:34 AM
Attachments: 07.09.20 Mission Testing Site_Right to Recover.pdf

 
 
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
Date: Thursday, July 9, 2020 at 11:03 AM
To: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>
Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES NEW
MOBILE TESTING SITE IN THE MISSION AND RIGHT TO RECOVER PROGRAM TO
PROVIDE FINANCIAL SUPPORT FOR RESIDENTS WHO TEST POSITIVE FOR
COVID-19
 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Thursday, July 9, 2020
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org
 

*** PRESS RELEASE ***
MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES NEW MOBILE

TESTING SITE IN THE MISSION AND RIGHT TO RECOVER
PROGRAM TO PROVIDE FINANCIAL SUPPORT FOR

RESIDENTS WHO TEST POSITIVE FOR COVID-19
Testing site will operate on Thursdays from 10:00am – 3:00pm in coordination with services

provided at the Latino Task Force Resource Hub.
 

Right to Recover program is part of wraparound services provided by the City and community
partners, which are vital to tackling inequities within our vulnerable populations and reducing

COVID-19 transmissions.
 
San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed today announced the launch of a new mobile
COVID-19 testing site at the Latino Task Force (LTF) Resource Hub in the Mission. The LTF
Resource Hub connects residents with wraparound services, including the new Right to
Recover program. Co-locating this testing site with existing resources provides a low-barrier,

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
Resource Hub connects residents with wraparound services, including the new Right to Recover 
program. Co-locating this testing site with existing resources provides a low-barrier, accessible 
testing site the Latino community and members of the Mission community who are regularly 
visiting the LTF Resource Hub for other services. The City’s Right to Recover program 
encourages residents to get tested for COVID-19 while offering a safety net for people that face 
financial hardship if they need to isolate following a positive test result. 
 
“Testing and contact tracing are an essential part of our City’s ongoing response to COVID-19. 
Many of the people who are leaving their homes to go to work and keep our city running during 
this global pandemic are lower-wage workers who can’t afford to miss a paycheck, and sadly, 
this virus has further heightened the disparities that already existed in our city,” said Mayor 
Breed. “When someone tests positive for COVID-19, we want them to be able to focus on 
getting the care they need and taking the necessary steps to slow the spread of the virus, without 
having to worry about how they’ll pay their bills. Everyone should have the right to prioritize 
their health.” 
 
COVID-19 has disproportionately affected communities of color in San Francisco, California, 
and across the United States. In San Francisco, Latinos make up 50% of reported cases of 
COVID-19 even though Latinos make up just 15% of the city’s population. Many Latino, 
immigrant, African American, Asian, and low-income communities in San Francisco are further 
disadvantaged by the fact that they do not qualify for the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic 
Security Act, unemployment insurance, or loan programs because of their immigration status. 
Prior to the global outbreak of COVID-19, rates of chronic illness, poor housing conditions, and 
low wages were already concentrated in these groups and the virus has disproportionately 
impacted these communities as well. 



mailto:mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org
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“The science is clear, and the facts are straight. In order to reduce the spread of infection, 
essential workers must get tested at a higher rate, they also need to know that if they 
volunteer to be tested, and test positive, that they will be able to safely quarantine for their own 
protection and the health of the public at large,” said Supervisor Hillary Ronen. “This new site at 
the Latino Taskforce Resource Hub will give essential workers an easy and culturally competent 
access to testing and all the services available to them, including Right to Recover. I want to 
thank Latino Taskforce for their advocacy and DPH and the Mayor’s Office for responding to 
this need and making this test site happen. The Mission Community deserves this critical first 
step to help identify positive cases, help them recover and make our neighborhood healthy 
again.” 
 
“Thank you to the Mission Hub for continuing to be a vital resource for the Latinx Community 
in the historic Mission Language Vocational School,” said Supervisor Ahsha Safaí. “Not only 
can families access groceries, but now they can get free testing and resources to safely 
quarantine. Thank you to the Latino Task Force and all the volunteers who make this great work 
possible.” 
 
Testing Site 
There are currently four other testing sites in the Mission, including Castro Mission Health 
Center and Mission Neighborhood Health Center. By linking testing with existing resources and 
trusted community partners, this new mobile site further expands the City’s testing outreach and 
education to the Mission community. The Mission currently has a high rate of positive cases 
among those who have been tested, with 107.6 positive cases per 10,000 residents. To date, there 
are 642 positive cases among an estimated 59,639 residents in the Mission neighborhood. 
 
The new mobile testing site is the latest resource expansion at the LTF Resource Hub, and will 
provide free walk-thru testing on Thursdays. Testing is available for anyone who is leaving home 
to work, thinks they may have been exposed, or is experiencing at least one symptom on 
COVID-19. Insurance and identification are not required. The site began operating today and 
will operate on Thursdays from 10:00am to 3:00pm. People with appointments and drop-ins will 
be checked in by LTF Resource Hub staff and escorted to the testing tent designated for 
specimen collection. 
 
DPH will administer the tests, providing tests results by phone, and conducting contact tracing 
and offering social services if test results are positive. Contact tracing is an essential component 
of follow up for positive test results, and participants will be informed about the importance of 
working with contact tracers to slow the spread of the virus. 
 
DPH and the Latino Task Force will work together to provide a comprehensive and culturally 
integrated community-based approach which will include a Community Wellness Team 
composed of bilingual, Spanish-speaking community workers. 
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“We listened to community and responded when identifying the next location for mobile testing 
in San Francisco,” said Dr. Grant Colfax, Director of Health. “Our partnership with the Latino 
Task Force recognizes the disproportionate impact of COVID-19 on the Latinx community and 
that equity must be front and center in our guiding our efforts. The addition of mobile testing to 
the Resource Hub will offer low-barrier testing to community residents in a safe and supportive 
environment with wraparound services.” 
 
“Contact tracing is completely voluntary and all the information we collect from the individual 
will be protected and confidential,” said Dr. Tomás Aragón, San Francisco Health Officer. “The 
phone call we make to you is about building trust. It’s about explaining what we are doing with 
the information you help provide to us and why we are asking for it. We are public health and we 
are here to connect you to wraparound services that will minimize disruptions and ensure your 
safety and health.” 
 
Latino Task Force Resource Hub 
The LTF Resource Hub has been operating over the past few months and provides food 
distribution and other services. On Mondays, Wednesdays, and Fridays, the center distributes 
food, and serves approximately 6,000 families per week. On Wednesday and Thursdays from 
10:00am to 4:00pm, the LTF Resource Hub provides services including: 


- Connecting people with income relief programs,  
- Helping people file for unemployment,  
- Helping people find employment,  
- Assisting people sign up for health care, 
- Assistance applying for affordable housing. 


 
For more information about the Resource Hub and the Latino Task Force, visit 
https://www.ltfrespuestalatina.com/  
 
Right to Recover Program  
The City’s $2 million “Right to Recover” program works hand-in-hand with COVID-19 testing 
sites across the City. It provides those who qualify with a wage replacement while they recover. 
Based on San Francisco minimum wage, a two-week wage replacement amounts to $1,285. The 
program’s financial support will serve up to 1,500 San Franciscans who test positive for COVID-
19 to focus on their health and recovery regardless of their immigration status. 
 
The purpose of Right to Recover and the City’s other relief programs, including the Family 
Relief Fund and the Immigrant Workers Fund program, is to fill the gaps of federal funding by 
putting money in the hands of the people that need it the most. The goal is to encourage residents 
and workers to get tested for COVID-19 and not worry about economic hardship during 
isolation. The programs aim to remove barriers to allow access to relief for those who may not 
trust government programs due to their immigration status and experience in the criminal justice 
system.  
 
Under the Right to Recover program, when a person tests positive for COVID-19, the 
Department of Public Health (DPH) conducts an interview with that person. During the 



https://www.ltfrespuestalatina.com/
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interview, DPH will ask if they have access to replacement wages while they isolate. If not, they 
will connect the individual to the Right to Recover program. The City will not ask or record any 
questions about citizenship or immigration status. In addition to this relief program, DPH will 
also share other wraparound services to support residents around food security, housing 
assistance, and workforce services.  
 
The Right to Recover program is designed to ensure that those who qualify also receive a 
comprehensive and culturally competent assessment of their ability to isolate and properly self-
care by community partners. This program is made possible by community partners including the 
Mission Economic Development Agency (MEDA), Young Community Developers (YCD), 
Central City Hospitality House, and Self-Help for the Elderly in collaboration with the Office of 
Economic and Workforce Development (OEWD), DPH, and the Human Rights Commission. 
 
“We need workers to feel secure in getting tested, without concern for how they are going to 
make rent or put food on the table if they test positive. The Right to Recover program ensures 
that workers who live in San Francisco and struggle to make ends meet have a safety net to make 
the very best health decisions,” said Joaquín Torres, Director of the Office of Economic and 
Workforce Development. “By increasing access to testing, we’re proactively promoting the 
health of workers and our City’s recovery.”  
 
“The virus has impacted the Mission community and we are at Ground ZERO. We have to 
protect our families because you may have coronavirus and not know it. Expanding testing in our 
community is urgent to ensure the safety and wellness of the Latino population in 
San Francisco,” said Roberto Hernandez, Latino Task Force Co-Founder. “We are proud to 
launch this new mobile testing site here at the Latino Task Force Resource Hub. From weekly 
food distribution and home deliveries, supporting individuals who need healthcare or help 
signing up for Medi-Cal, to assisting with filing for unemployment or finding a job, we strive to 
continue offering vital services that serve the essential needs of each person and our families.” 
 
“As an organization we are elated to work alongside community partners regarding all San 
Franciscans Right to Recover,” said Dion-Jay Brookter, Executive Director of Young 
Community Developers, Inc. (YCD). “We have already been engaging, strategizing and meeting 
with one another on how to address the challenges of our community residents most in need 
through this initiative.” 
 
“As proven by April’s in-depth UCSF public health study, there is a high concentration of 
positive tests for COVID-19 in the Mission’s Latino community, as our families are more likely 
to be essential workers in the food industry, at construction sites and the like,” said Luis 
Granados, CEO, MEDA. “Additionally, our families live in overcrowded conditions, making 
social distancing a challenge. The Right to Recover program will allow some of these Latino 
essential workers to quarantine as needed, without fear of income loss: This is an essential first 
step to eradicating the virus not just in the Mission, but in San Francisco overall. MEDA looks 
forward to working with the City and philanthropy on other innovative programs to address the 
systemic, long-term obstacles faced by our Latino community around housing, food, health care 
and jobs.” 
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The City’s relief programs are made possible from the Give2SF COVID-19 Response and 
Recovery Fund. In March, Mayor Breed announced three priority areas for the Give2SF Fund: 
food security, access to housing, and support for workers and small businesses, with a focus on 
assisting undocumented people and mixed-status households who otherwise may not have access 
to social safety net programs; seniors and people with disabilities; and small businesses. To 
donate to Give2SF, go to www.Give2SF.org. 
 
For more information on the Right to Recover program, call the Office of Economic and 
Workforce Development (OEWD) Workforce Hotline at (415) 701-4817 where representatives 
are available 7 days a week to answers calls in multiple language, or email 
workforce.connection@sfgov.org. In the meantime, people can also check 
oewd.org/covid19/workers to learn more or call 311.  
 
For more information about the operations of the mobile COVID-19 testing site at the Latino 
Task Force Hub, visit sf.gov/GetTestedSF.   
 
Additional Support for Families, Residents, and Workers  
Resources to support San Franciscans during COVID-19 include: 
 
Food Security 


• Isolation/Quarantine (IQ) Food Helpline – The City’s centralized resource for food 
insecure people in isolation or quarantine due to COVID-19. This resource provides free 
groceries or prepared meals to people who have been diagnosed as COVID-19 positive, 
are a Person Under Investigation (PUI) awaiting test results, or are considered a “close 
contact” and cannot otherwise access food. Individuals may be referred to this resource 
by a medical provider, public health staff, social services organization, or 3-1-1. 


• CalFresh – Access to food for low-income individuals and households via EBT card that 
can be used at retail food, farmers markets, grocery stores and some restaurants. Learn 
more. 


• Pandemic EBT – Children can receive a food benefit while their school is closed, for up 
to $365 per eligible child. You can apply online for P-EBT if your children are eligible 
for free or reduced-price meals and they did not get a P-EBT card. 


• Great Plates Delivered – Food delivery of three meals a day to adults 65+ who are 
sheltering in place and adults 60-64 who are high risk of contracting COVID-19. Learn 
more.  


• Home-Delivered Meals and Groceries – Meal delivery for homebound adults who are 
unable to shop due to a mental or physical condition. Learn more.  


• Community-based Take Away Meals – Offers meals to adults 60+ at site located 
throughout San Francisco. Learn more. 


• Food Pantries – Weekly and bi-monthly groceries at sites located in San Francisco. 
Learn more. 


 
 



http://www.give2sf.org/

mailto:workforce.connection@sfgov.org

https://oewd.org/covid19/workers

https://sf.gov/GetTestedSF

https://www.sfhsa.org/services/health-food/calfresh

https://www.sfhsa.org/services/health-food/calfresh

https://www.sfhsa.org/services/health-food/groceries-and-meals/pandemic-ebt-p-ebt

https://www.sfhsa.org/services/health-food/groceries-and-meals/great-plates-delivered-meal-program

https://www.sfhsa.org/services/health-food/groceries-and-meals/great-plates-delivered-meal-program

https://www.sfhsa.org/services/health-food/home-delivered-meals-program

https://www.sfhsa.org/services/health-food/congregate-meals-program

https://www.sfhsa.org/services/health-food/food-pantry-programs
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Housing 
• COVID-19 Eviction and Rent Increase Moratoriums – Emergency tenant protections, 


including more time to pay your rent, suspension of evictions during the pandemic, and a 
rent freeze in City-subsidized housing. Learn more.  


• Give2SF Housing Stabilization Program – Financial help to pay rent, utilities, and 
other housing costs if you have been financially impacted by COVID-19. Learn more.  


• COVID-19 Homeowner Emergency Loan Program (HELP) – No-payment loans of 
up to $25,000 to cover HOA dues, property taxes, and lump-sum deferred mortgage 
payments. Learn more. 
 


 
### 



https://sf.gov/information/about-covid-19-eviction-and-rent-increase-moratoriums

https://sf.gov/apply-help-housing-costs-coronavirus-pandemic

https://sfmohcd.org/COVID19HELP





accessible testing site the Latino community and members of the Mission community who are
regularly visiting the LTF Resource Hub for other services. The City’s Right to Recover
program encourages residents to get tested for COVID-19 while offering a safety net for
people that face financial hardship if they need to isolate following a positive test result.
 
“Testing and contact tracing are an essential part of our City’s ongoing response to COVID-
19. Many of the people who are leaving their homes to go to work and keep our city running
during this global pandemic are lower-wage workers who can’t afford to miss a paycheck, and
sadly, this virus has further heightened the disparities that already existed in our city,” said
Mayor Breed. “When someone tests positive for COVID-19, we want them to be able to focus
on getting the care they need and taking the necessary steps to slow the spread of the virus,
without having to worry about how they’ll pay their bills. Everyone should have the right to
prioritize their health.”
 
COVID-19 has disproportionately affected communities of color in San Francisco, California,
and across the United States. In San Francisco, Latinos make up 50% of reported cases of
COVID-19 even though Latinos make up just 15% of the city’s population. Many Latino,
immigrant, African American, Asian, and low-income communities in San Francisco are
further disadvantaged by the fact that they do not qualify for the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and
Economic Security Act, unemployment insurance, or loan programs because of their
immigration status. Prior to the global outbreak of COVID-19, rates of chronic illness, poor
housing conditions, and low wages were already concentrated in these groups and the virus
has disproportionately impacted these communities as well.
 
“The science is clear, and the facts are straight. In order to reduce the spread of infection,
essential workers must get tested at a higher rate, they also need to know that if they
volunteer to be tested, and test positive, that they will be able to safely quarantine for their
own protection and the health of the public at large,” said Supervisor Hillary Ronen. “This
new site at the Latino Taskforce Resource Hub will give essential workers an easy and
culturally competent access to testing and all the services available to them, including Right to
Recover. I want to thank Latino Taskforce for their advocacy and DPH and the Mayor’s
Office for responding to this need and making this test site happen. The Mission Community
deserves this critical first step to help identify positive cases, help them recover and make our
neighborhood healthy again.”
 
“Thank you to the Mission Hub for continuing to be a vital resource for the Latinx Community
in the historic Mission Language Vocational School,” said Supervisor Ahsha Safaí. “Not only
can families access groceries, but now they can get free testing and resources to safely
quarantine. Thank you to the Latino Task Force and all the volunteers who make this great
work possible.”
 
Testing Site
There are currently four other testing sites in the Mission, including Castro Mission Health
Center and Mission Neighborhood Health Center. By linking testing with existing resources
and trusted community partners, this new mobile site further expands the City’s testing
outreach and education to the Mission community. The Mission currently has a high rate of
positive cases among those who have been tested, with 107.6 positive cases per 10,000
residents. To date, there are 642 positive cases among an estimated 59,639 residents in the
Mission neighborhood.
 



The new mobile testing site is the latest resource expansion at the LTF Resource Hub, and will
provide free walk-thru testing on Thursdays. Testing is available for anyone who is leaving
home to work, thinks they may have been exposed, or is experiencing at least one symptom on
COVID-19. Insurance and identification are not required. The site began operating today and
will operate on Thursdays from 10:00am to 3:00pm. People with appointments and drop-ins
will be checked in by LTF Resource Hub staff and escorted to the testing tent designated for
specimen collection.
 
DPH will administer the tests, providing tests results by phone, and conducting contact tracing
and offering social services if test results are positive. Contact tracing is an essential
component of follow up for positive test results, and participants will be informed about the
importance of working with contact tracers to slow the spread of the virus.
 
DPH and the Latino Task Force will work together to provide a comprehensive and culturally
integrated community-based approach which will include a Community Wellness Team
composed of bilingual, Spanish-speaking community workers.
 
“We listened to community and responded when identifying the next location for mobile
testing in San Francisco,” said Dr. Grant Colfax, Director of Health. “Our partnership with the
Latino Task Force recognizes the disproportionate impact of COVID-19 on the Latinx
community and that equity must be front and center in our guiding our efforts. The addition of
mobile testing to the Resource Hub will offer low-barrier testing to community residents in a
safe and supportive environment with wraparound services.”
 
“Contact tracing is completely voluntary and all the information we collect from the individual
will be protected and confidential,” said Dr. Tomás Aragón, San Francisco Health Officer.
“The phone call we make to you is about building trust. It’s about explaining what we are
doing with the information you help provide to us and why we are asking for it. We are public
health and we are here to connect you to wraparound services that will minimize disruptions
and ensure your safety and health.”
 
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

Connecting people with income relief programs,
Helping people file for unemployment,
Helping people find employment,
Assisting people sign up for health care,
Assistance applying for affordable housing.

 
For more information about the Resource Hub and the Latino Task Force, visit
https://www.ltfrespuestalatina.com/
 
Right to Recover Program
The City’s $2 million “Right to Recover” program works hand-in-hand with COVID-19
testing sites across the City. It provides those who qualify with a wage replacement while they
recover. Based on San Francisco minimum wage, a two-week wage replacement amounts to
$1,285. The program’s financial support will serve up to 1,500 San Franciscans who test

https://www.ltfrespuestalatina.com/


positive for COVID-19 to focus on their health and recovery regardless of their immigration
status.
 
The purpose of Right to Recover and the City’s other relief programs, including the Family
Relief Fund and the Immigrant Workers Fund program, is to fill the gaps of federal funding by
putting money in the hands of the people that need it the most. The goal is to encourage
residents and workers to get tested for COVID-19 and not worry about economic hardship
during isolation. The programs aim to remove barriers to allow access to relief for those who
may not trust government programs due to their immigration status and experience in the
criminal justice system.
 
Under the Right to Recover program, when a person tests positive for COVID-19, the
Department of Public Health (DPH) conducts an interview with that person. During the
interview, DPH will ask if they have access to replacement wages while they isolate. If not,
they will connect the individual to the Right to Recover program. The City will not ask or
record any questions about citizenship or immigration status. In addition to this relief program,
DPH will also share other wraparound services to support residents around food security,
housing assistance, and workforce services.
 
The Right to Recover program is designed to ensure that those who qualify also receive a
comprehensive and culturally competent assessment of their ability to isolate and properly
self-care by community partners. This program is made possible by community partners
including the Mission Economic Development Agency (MEDA), Young Community
Developers (YCD), Central City Hospitality House, and Self-Help for the Elderly in
collaboration with the Office of Economic and Workforce Development (OEWD), DPH, and
the Human Rights Commission.
 
“We need workers to feel secure in getting tested, without concern for how they are going to
make rent or put food on the table if they test positive. The Right to Recover program ensures
that workers who live in San Francisco and struggle to make ends meet have a safety net to
make the very best health decisions,” said Joaquín Torres, Director of the Office of Economic
and Workforce Development. “By increasing access to testing, we’re proactively promoting
the health of workers and our City’s recovery.” 
 
“The virus has impacted the Mission community and we are at Ground ZERO. We have to
protect our families because you may have coronavirus and not know it. Expanding testing in
our community is urgent to ensure the safety and wellness of the Latino population in
San Francisco,” said Roberto Hernandez, Latino Task Force Co-Founder. “We are proud to
launch this new mobile testing site here at the Latino Task Force Resource Hub. From weekly
food distribution and home deliveries, supporting individuals who need healthcare or help
signing up for Medi-Cal, to assisting with filing for unemployment or finding a job, we strive
to continue offering vital services that serve the essential needs of each person and our
families.”
 
“As an organization we are elated to work alongside community partners regarding all San
Franciscans Right to Recover,” said Dion-Jay Brookter, Executive Director of Young
Community Developers, Inc. (YCD). “We have already been engaging, strategizing and
meeting with one another on how to address the challenges of our community residents most
in need through this initiative.”
 



“As proven by April’s in-depth UCSF public health study, there is a high concentration of
positive tests for COVID-19 in the Mission’s Latino community, as our families are more
likely to be essential workers in the food industry, at construction sites and the like,” said Luis
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
forward to working with the City and philanthropy on other innovative programs to address
the systemic, long-term obstacles faced by our Latino community around housing, food, health
care and jobs.”
 
The City’s relief programs are made possible from the Give2SF COVID-19 Response and
Recovery Fund. In March, Mayor Breed announced three priority areas for the Give2SF Fund:
food security, access to housing, and support for workers and small businesses, with a focus
on assisting undocumented people and mixed-status households who otherwise may not have
access to social safety net programs; seniors and people with disabilities; and small businesses.
To donate to Give2SF, go to www.Give2SF.org.
 
For more information on the Right to Recover program, call the Office of Economic and
Workforce Development (OEWD) Workforce Hotline at (415) 701-4817 where
representatives are available 7 days a week to answers calls in multiple language, or email
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

Isolation/Quarantine (IQ) Food Helpline – The City’s centralized resource for food
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
CalFresh – Access to food for low-income individuals and households via EBT card
that can be used at retail food, farmers markets, grocery stores and some restaurants.
Learn more.
Pandemic EBT – Children can receive a food benefit while their school is closed, for
up to $365 per eligible child. You can apply online for P-EBT if your children are
eligible for free or reduced-price meals and they did not get a P-EBT card.
Great Plates Delivered – Food delivery of three meals a day to adults 65+ who are
sheltering in place and adults 60-64 who are high risk of contracting COVID-19. Learn
more.
Home-Delivered Meals and Groceries – Meal delivery for homebound adults who are
unable to shop due to a mental or physical condition. Learn more.
Community-based Take Away Meals – Offers meals to adults 60+ at site located
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


Food Pantries – Weekly and bi-monthly groceries at sites located in San Francisco.
Learn more.

 
Housing

COVID-19 Eviction and Rent Increase Moratoriums – Emergency tenant
protections, including more time to pay your rent, suspension of evictions during the
pandemic, and a rent freeze in City-subsidized housing. Learn more.
Give2SF Housing Stabilization Program – Financial help to pay rent, utilities, and
other housing costs if you have been financially impacted by COVID-19. Learn more.
COVID-19 Homeowner Emergency Loan Program (HELP) – No-payment loans of
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
To: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: CEQA Implementation - Standard Environmental Requirements (SER) Program (Planning Department Case

No. 2020-000052PCA)
Date: Wednesday, July 08, 2020 9:22:30 AM
Attachments: SFPC CEQA SER Letter 7-8-20.pdf

 
 
 
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
 
 

From: SF Preservation Consortium <sfpreservationconsortium@yahoo.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, July 08, 2020 5:27 AM
To: Breed, Mayor London (MYR) <mayorlondonbreed@sfgov.org>; Haney, Matt (BOS)
<matt.haney@sfgov.org>; MandelmanStaff, [BOS] <mandelmanstaff@sfgov.org>; Mar, Gordon
(BOS) <gordon.mar@sfgov.org>; Peskin, Aaron (BOS) <aaron.peskin@sfgov.org>; Preston, Dean
(BOS) <dean.preston@sfgov.org>; Fewer, Sandra (BOS) <sandra.fewer@sfgov.org>; Ronen, Hillary
<hillary.ronen@sfgov.org>; Safai, Ahsha (BOS) <ahsha.safai@sfgov.org>; Stefani, Catherine (BOS)
<catherine.stefani@sfgov.org>; Walton, Shamann (BOS) <shamann.walton@sfgov.org>; Yee,
Norman (BOS) <norman.yee@sfgov.org>; Board of Supervisors, (BOS)
<board.of.supervisors@sfgov.org>; Angela.Calvillo@SFBOS.ORG; Koppel, Joel (CPC)
<joel.koppel@sfgov.org>; Moore, Kathrin (CPC) <kathrin.moore@sfgov.org>; Chan, Deland (CPC)
<deland.chan@sfgov.org>; Diamond, Susan (CPC) <sue.diamond@sfgov.org>; Fung, Frank (CPC)
<frank.fung@sfgov.org>; Imperial, Theresa (CPC) <theresa.imperial@sfgov.org>; Johnson, Milicent
(CPC) <milicent.johnson@sfgov.org>; Ionin, Jonas (CPC) <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>; CPC-Commissions
Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>; Hyland, Aaron (CPC) <aaron.hyland@sfgov.org>;
Matsuda, Diane (CPC) <diane.matsuda@sfgov.org>; Black, Kate (CPC) <kate.black@sfgov.org>; Foley,
Chris (CPC) <chris.foley@sfgov.org>; Johns, Richard (CPC) <richard.se.johns@sfgov.org>; Pearlman,
Jonathan (CPC) <jonathan.pearlman@sfgov.org>; So, Lydia (CPC) <lydia.so@sfgov.org>; Hillis, Rich
(CPC) <rich.hillis@sfgov.org>; Joslin, Jeff (CPC) <jeff.joslin@sfgov.org>; Boudreaux, Marcelle (CPC)
<marcelle.boudreaux@sfgov.org>; Sucre, Richard (CPC) <richard.sucre@sfgov.org>; Gordon-
Jonckheer, Elizabeth (CPC) <elizabeth.gordon-jonckheer@sfgov.org>; Gibson, Lisa (CPC)
<lisa.gibson@sfgov.org>; Vanderslice, Allison (CPC) <allison.vanderslice@sfgov.org>; Starr, Aaron
(CPC) <aaron.starr@sfgov.org>; Flores, Veronica (CPC) <Veronica.Flores@sfgov.org>; RUIZ-ESQUIDE,
ANDREA (CAT) <Andrea.Ruiz-Esquide@sfcityatty.org>; Mike Buhler <Mbuhler@sfheritage.org>

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



 
 


 


        S A N   F R A N C I S C O  P R E S E R V A T I O N  C O N S O R T I U M 


 
                        P.O. Box 330447 


                  San Francisco, CA  94133-0447 


                July 8, 2020 


 


Stewart Morton 


Chair and 


Treasurer 


 


Donald Andreini 


Secretary 


 


Judith Hoyem 


Government Liaison 


 


 


President Joel Koppel 


San Francisco Planning Commission  


and 


President Aaron Jon Hyland, AIA, NCARB   


San Francisco Historic Preservation Commission 


Attn: Jonas P. Ionin, Commissions Secretary 


1650 Mission Street, Suite 400 


San Francisco, CA  94103‐2479 
 


 


Subject:  CEQA Implementation - Standard Environmental Requirements (SER) 


Program Amendments to the Planning, Administrative, Environment 


and Police Codes (Planning Department Case No. 2020-000052PCA) 
 


 


Dear President Koppel and President Hyland: 


 


Established in 2001, the San Francisco Preservation Consortium (Consortium) 


works in partnership with individuals, neighborhood groups and other 


associations to advocate for effective land use legislation and responsible 


historic, architectural and cultural preservation practices in accordance with 


accepted professional standards and best practices.  The Consortium's advocacy 


ensures that the City and its neighborhoods sustain their living history and 


character as they evolve.   


 


On behalf of the Consortium’s 160 members, I ask the Planning Commission 


(Commission) and the Historic Preservation Commission (HPC) to table 


adoption of the proposed Standard Environmental Requirements (SER) Program 


Amendments to the Planning, Administrative, Environment and Police Codes 


until at least two months after the current COVID-19 emergency shelter-in-place 


requirements have been lifted to afford the public adequate time to review and 


comment on these proposed sweeping changes to the implementation of the 


California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) and Section 106 of the National 


Historic Preservation Act (Section 106) in San Francisco.1  We strongly object to 


the piecemeal adoption of the SER Program Amendments absent the identification 


of specific SERs and SER Program implementation procedures for the protection of 


historical resources.   


 
1 The Commission most recently continued this item to their July 30, 2020 meeting and 


the HPC continued it to their July 15, 2020 meeting. 


 


 1 


 







Approximately 75% of the buildings in San Francisco are 50 years old or greater and may be considered 


potential historical resources.  The use of yet-to-be determined SERs appears to exempt a large class of 


projects from historical resource evaluation all together because projects that would currently require 


Mitigated Negative Declarations (MNDs) would, under the SER Program, be categorically exempt.  The 


current system often fails to correctly identify the class of historical resource or potential historical 


resource at the outset of a project.  The SER Program might allow even more historical resources and 


potential historical resources to slip through the cracks as much of the city remains unsurveyed.  The 


Western Addition and nearly the entire west side of San Francisco still need far more survey work and 


designation of historic districts and potential historic districts.  With the exception of Fort Funston, there 


is not a single historic district located on the west side of the city.  Even most of the east side remains 


unprotected.  Many demolitions are now taking place in the Sea Cliff and Pacific Heights neighborhoods.   


 


We believe the proposed SER Program will place an undue burden on the public to track a much greater 


volume exemption determinations and approval actions.  It will also impose considerable procedural 


hurdles to evaluating whether alterations to designated historical resources, especially those 


contributing to historic districts or potential historic districts, would have adverse cumulative effects 


under CEQA.  The Planning Department (Department) already applies the standards unevenly.  In some 


cases, this has meant that demolition of a contributory resource, or alterations that do not meet the 


Secretary of the Interior's Standards for the Treatment of Historic Properties, are deemed significant 


adverse impacts that cannot be mitigated under CEQA requiring preparation of an Environmental 


Impact Report (EIR).  Whereas in other instances, the Department has allowed demolition of 


contributing resources without an EIR as long as it determines the overall eligibility of the historic 


district is maintained.  Proposals to alter or demolish a potential contributor to a potential historic 


district are among the most difficult impacts to evaluate under CEQA and it appears these distinctions 


and evaluations might be completely lost with the adoption of the SER Program. 


 


Further, the SER Program Amendments do not adequately address the roles of the Commission and the 


HPC in accordance with the provisions of Articles 10 and 11 of the Planning Code.  The City’s Historic 


Preservation Officer/CLG Coordinator position remains unfilled which calls into question our Certified 


Local Government (CLG) Program status.  Said staff member must meet the minimum professional 


qualifications defined in 36 CFR Part 61.  Moreover, the Department has at least three funded vacant 


positions for preservation planners slated to work on the Citywide Survey.  The Consortium urges the 


Department to prioritize the Citywide Survey over the SER Program Amendments to streamline the 


environmental review process for historical resources. 


 


These are just a few of our initial comments which are difficult to make given the inadequate level of 


detail provided in the attached HPC packet.  Again, we urge the Commission and the HPC to hold off on 


adopting the SER Program Amendments until the public and policy makers have had adequate time to 


evaluate, comment on and seek appropriate modifications to them.   


 


Sincerely, 


 


  
Stewart Morton, Chair 


San Francisco Preservation Consortium 
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Individual Signatory Consortium Members Include: 


 


Donald Andreini, District 8 


Dennis Antenore, Former Planning Commissioner, Founder of Friends of City Planning, District 5 


Lucia Bogatay, President of the Presidio Historical Association 


Robert W. Cherny, Former Member of the SF Landmarks Preservation Advisory Board 


Courtney Clarkson, District 2 


Merle Easton, AIA , Past President of the Victorian Alliance 


Erin Farrell, District 10 


Steven Haigh, Past President of the Victorian Alliance 


Inge Horton, Former Chair of the Sunset Parkside and Action Committee - Historic Resources Inventory Committee 


Katherine Howard, Friends of the Music Concourse, Golden Gate Park Preservation Alliance and SF Ocean Edge 


Caroline Kleinman, District 1 


Stewart Morton, Founding Board Member of SF Heritage, Former Member of the SF Landmarks Preservation 


Advisory Board appointed by Mayors Moscone, Feinstein & Jordan, Chair of the San Francisco Preservation 


Consortium, and active advocate of historical architecture for over 50 years 


Katherine Petrin, Architectural Historian, District 3 


Bradley Wiedmaier, Former Research Assistant to Esther McCoy, Architectural Historian, and to Robert Judson 


Clark, Princeton University, Professor Emeritus 


Steve Williams, Esq.  


Howard Wong, AIA, District 3 


 


 


 


cc: Mayor London N. Breed 


Board of Supervisors 


Angela Calvillo, Clerk of the Board 


Planning Commission  


Historic Preservation Commission  


Jonas P. Ionin, Commissions Secretary  


Rich Hillis, Director of Planning 


Jeff Joslin, Director of Current Planning 


Marcelle Boudreaux, Principal Preservation Planner 


Rich Sucre, Principal Planner 


Elizabeth Gordon-Jonckheer, Principal Planner 


Lisa Gibson, Director of Environmental Planning 


Allison Vanderslice, Principal Preservation Planner for Environmental Review 


Aaron Starr, Manager of Legislative Affairs 


Veronica Flores, Legislative Affairs 


Andrea Ruiz Esquide, Deputy City Attorney 


Mike Buhler, President, SF Heritage 


 


 


 


Attachment:  Executive Summary - Standard Environmental Requirements Ordinance, 4/15/20 
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This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

Cc: Consortium <sfpreservationconsortium@yahoogroups.com>
Subject: CEQA Implementation - Standard Environmental Requirements (SER) Program (Planning
Department Case No. 2020-000052PCA)
 

 

SAN FRANCISCO PRESERVATION CONSORTIUM
P.O. Box 330447
San Francisco, CA 94133-0447
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
San Francisco, CA 94103‐2479
 
Subject: CEQA Implementation - Standard Environmental Requirements (SER)
Program Amendments to the Planning, Administrative, Environment and Police Codes
(Planning Department Case No. 2020-000052PCA)
 
Dear President Koppel and President Hyland:
 
Established in 2001, the San Francisco Preservation Consortium (Consortium) works in
partnership with individuals, neighborhood groups and other associations to advocate for
effective land use legislation and responsible historic, architectural and cultural preservation
practices in accordance with accepted professional standards and best practices. The
Consortium's advocacy ensures that the City and its neighborhoods sustain their living history
and character as they evolve.
 
On behalf of the Consortium’s 160 members, I ask the Planning Commission (Commission)
and the Historic Preservation Commission (HPC) to table adoption of the proposed Standard
Environmental Requirements (SER) Program Amendments to the Planning, Administrative,
Environment and Police Codes until at least two months after the current COVID-19
emergency shelter-in-place requirements have been lifted to afford the public adequate time to
review and comment on these proposed sweeping changes to the implementation of the
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) and Section 106 of the National Historic
Preservation Act (Section 106) in San Francisco.  (The Commission most recently continued
this item to their July 30, 2020 meeting and the HPC continued it to their July 15, 2020
meeting.)  We strongly object to the piecemeal adoption of the SER Program Amendments
absent the identification of specific SERs and SER Program implementation procedures for
the protection of historical resources.
 
Approximately 75% of the buildings in San Francisco are 50 years old or greater and may be



considered
potential historical resources. The use of yet-to-be determined SERs appears to exempt a large
class of
projects from historical resource evaluation all together because projects that would currently
require
Mitigated Negative Declarations (MNDs) would, under the SER Program, be categorically
exempt. The
current system often fails to correctly identify the class of historical resource or potential
historical
resource at the outset of a project. The SER Program might allow even more historical
resources and
potential historical resources to slip through the cracks as much of the city remains
unsurveyed. The
Western Addition and nearly the entire west side of San Francisco still need far more survey
work and
designation of historic districts and potential historic districts. With the exception of Fort
Funston, there
is not a single historic district located on the west side of the city. Even most of the east side
remains
unprotected. Many demolitions are now taking place in the Sea Cliff and Pacific Heights
neighborhoods.
 
We believe the proposed SER Program will place an undue burden on the public to track a
much greater
volume exemption determinations and approval actions. It will also impose considerable
procedural
hurdles to evaluating whether alterations to designated historical resources, especially those
contributing to historic districts or potential historic districts, would have adverse cumulative
effects
under CEQA. The Planning Department (Department) already applies the standards unevenly.
In some
cases, this has meant that demolition of a contributory resource, or alterations that do not meet
the
Secretary of the Interior's Standards for the Treatment of Historic Properties, are deemed
significant
adverse impacts that cannot be mitigated under CEQA requiring preparation of an
Environmental
Impact Report (EIR). Whereas in other instances, the Department has allowed demolition of
contributing resources without an EIR as long as it determines the overall eligibility of the
historic
district is maintained. Proposals to alter or demolish a potential contributor to a potential
historic
district are among the most difficult impacts to evaluate under CEQA and it appears these
distinctions
and evaluations might be completely lost with the adoption of the SER Program.
 
Further, the SER Program Amendments do not adequately address the roles of the
Commission and the
HPC in accordance with the provisions of Articles 10 and 11 of the Planning Code. The City’s
Historic



Preservation Officer/CLG Coordinator position remains unfilled which calls into question our
Certified
Local Government (CLG) Program status. Said staff member must meet the minimum
professional
qualifications defined in 36 CFR Part 61. Moreover, the Department has at least three funded
vacant
positions for preservation planners slated to work on the Citywide Survey. The Consortium
urges the
Department to prioritize the Citywide Survey over the SER Program Amendments to
streamline the
environmental review process for historical resources.
 
These are just a few of our initial comments which are difficult to make given the inadequate
level of
detail provided in the attached HPC packet. Again, we urge the Commission and the HPC to
hold off on
adopting the SER Program Amendments until the public and policy makers have had adequate
time to
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
Dennis Antenore, Former Planning Commissioner, Founder of Friends of City Planning,
District 5
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
Inge Horton, Former Chair of the Sunset Parkside and Action Committee - Historic Resources
Inventory Committee
Katherine Howard, Friends of the Music Concourse, Golden Gate Park Preservation Alliance
and SF Ocean Edge
Caroline Kleinman, District 1
Stewart Morton, Founding Board Member of SF Heritage, Former Member of the SF
Landmarks Preservation Advisory Board appointed by Mayors Moscone, Feinstein & Jordan,
Chair of the San Francisco Preservation Consortium, and active advocate of historical
architecture for over 50 years
Katherine Petrin, Architectural Historian, District 3
Bradley Wiedmaier, Former Research Assistant to Esther McCoy, Architectural Historian, and
to Robert Judson Clark, Princeton University, Professor Emeritus
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
 
Attachment: Executive Summary - Standard Environmental Requirements Ordinance, 4/15/20
https://commissions.sfplanning.org/hpcpackets/2020-000052PCA%20HPC.pdf
 

https://commissions.sfplanning.org/hpcpackets/2020-000052PCA%20HPC.pdf


From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: *** STATEMENT *** MAYOR LONDON BREED AND SUPERVISOR SHAMANN WALTON ON THE DEATH OF

SIX-YEAR-OLD JACE YOUNG
Date: Monday, July 06, 2020 3:58:50 PM
Attachments: 07.06.20 Statement from Mayor Breed and Supervisor Walton_Jace Young.pdf

 
 
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
Date: Monday, July 6, 2020 at 3:47 PM
To: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>
Subject: *** STATEMENT *** MAYOR LONDON BREED AND SUPERVISOR
SHAMANN WALTON ON THE DEATH OF SIX-YEAR-OLD JACE YOUNG
 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Monday, July 6, 2020
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org
 

*** STATEMENT ***
MAYOR LONDON BREED AND SUPERVISOR SHAMANN

WALTON ON THE DEATH OF SIX-YEAR-OLD JACE YOUNG
 
San Francisco, CA – “There are no words that will ease the pain of the senseless killing of a
six-year-old boy. Our prayers are with the family of Jace Young at this moment, along with
his friends and his entire community.
 
But make no mistake: thoughts and prayers are not enough.
 
We must do more. The surging Black Lives Matter Movement is about ending police violence,
but it’s also about more than that. It’s about investing in our Black children’s lives and ending
the gun violence that continues from generation to generation, because a boy like Jace Young
should have been able to grow up safely in his own community. We must hold ourselves
accountable and end this viscous cycle. We must talk to our children, talk to our extended
families, talk to our loved ones, talk about the cruel death of a six-year-old boy. We must
address the systemic factors that continue to perpetuate this senseless loss of life.
 
Because the loss of any life is tragic, but losing a six-year-old child to gun violence rips at the
heart of our city. Jace Young was at the very beginning of his life. A resident of Huntersview,

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
 
San Francisco, CA – “There are no words that will ease the pain of the senseless killing of a six-
year-old boy. Our prayers are with the family of Jace Young at this moment, along with his 
friends and his entire community. 
 
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
should have been able to grow up safely in his own community. We must hold ourselves 
accountable and end this viscous cycle. We must talk to our children, talk to our extended 
families, talk to our loved ones, talk about the cruel death of a six-year-old boy. We must address 
the systemic factors that continue to perpetuate this senseless loss of life. 
 
Because the loss of any life is tragic, but losing a six-year-old child to gun violence rips at the 
heart of our city. Jace Young was at the very beginning of his life. A resident of Huntersview, he 
was a bright light in the neighborhood. He was a little boy who should have been given the 
opportunity to go to school, play with his friends, and lead a life that would make his family 
proud. Instead, he was brutally gunned down on the Fourth of July. This Black child’s life 
mattered! 
 
Growing up in San Francisco, we both saw too many people killed by gun violence. We saw the 
anger, despair and hopelessness that swallowed our communities in the wake of this irreparable 
damage. We saw mothers weeping and fathers broken. We both dedicated our lives to changing 
the circumstances that systematically put Black people in harm’s way. Clearly, we must do more. 
 
When we talk about supporting the African-American community, we have to remember the 
young people like Jace who have the right to live their lives in peace. Black kids deserve the 
opportunities to grow up and thrive just like every other kid. But as long as the weapons and the 
violence – and the complacency – continue to disproportionately bear down on the Black 
community, those opportunities will too often drown in our own blood. 
 
We have to take a closer look at how we are investing in our communities so that we are actually 
making a difference in the lives of Black people. It’s not just about marching. It’s about doing 



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
 


 


the hard work after the march, engaging practically and constructively to lift people up out of the 
cycle of poverty and violence that has ripped us apart for far too long. 
 
This cannot be business as usual. We must put down the guns – everyone must put down the 
guns – and turn our sights on the long, hard work ahead. We must change the conditions and the 
institutions that have failed the Black community. And that starts with us. We must be the 
change.” 
 
 


### 







he was a bright light in the neighborhood. He was a little boy who should have been given the
opportunity to go to school, play with his friends, and lead a life that would make his family
proud. Instead, he was brutally gunned down on the Fourth of July. This Black child’s life
mattered!
 
Growing up in San Francisco, we both saw too many people killed by gun violence. We saw
the anger, despair and hopelessness that swallowed our communities in the wake of this
irreparable damage. We saw mothers weeping and fathers broken. We both dedicated our lives
to changing the circumstances that systematically put Black people in harm’s way. Clearly, we
must do more.
 
When we talk about supporting the African-American community, we have to remember the
young people like Jace who have the right to live their lives in peace. Black kids deserve the
opportunities to grow up and thrive just like every other kid. But as long as the weapons and
the violence – and the complacency – continue to disproportionately bear down on the Black
community, those opportunities will too often drown in our own blood.
 
We have to take a closer look at how we are investing in our communities so that we are
actually making a difference in the lives of Black people. It’s not just about marching. It’s
about doing the hard work after the march, engaging practically and constructively to lift
people up out of the cycle of poverty and violence that has ripped us apart for far too long.
 
This cannot be business as usual. We must put down the guns – everyone must put down the
guns – and turn our sights on the long, hard work ahead. We must change the conditions and
the institutions that have failed the Black community. And that starts with us. We must be the
change.”
 
 

###



From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED NOMINATES MALIA COHEN TO SERVE ON THE POLICE

COMMISSION
Date: Monday, July 06, 2020 12:45:17 PM
Attachments: 07.06.20 Police Commission.pdf

 
 
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
Date: Monday, July 6, 2020 at 12:40 PM
To: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>
Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED NOMINATES MALIA
COHEN TO SERVE ON THE POLICE COMMISSION
 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Monday, July 6, 2020
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org
 

*** PRESS RELEASE ***
MAYOR LONDON BREED NOMINATES MALIA COHEN TO

SERVE ON THE POLICE COMMISSION
Cohen, member of the California State Board of Equalization, would bring experience

advocating for social justice and police reform to the Commission
 
San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed today announced that she is nominating
Malia M. Cohen to serve on the Police Commission, the seven-member body charged with
setting policy for the Police Department and conducting disciplinary hearings when police
conduct charges are filed.
 
“I am proud to nominate Malia M. Cohen to the Police Commission. The recent high-profile
killings of Black Americans by police officers has focused the nation’s attention on the urgent
need to rethink the role that police play in our communities, and this is an issue that Malia has
been a leader on her whole career,” said Mayor Breed. “Whether it was fighting to create the
Department of Police Accountability or pushing to end the use of chokeholds by the Police
Department, Malia has consistently advocated for, and won, significant reforms to policing in
San Francisco in order to keep people safe. I’m confident that she’ll continue to move this
issue forward on the Police Commission.”
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
 
San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed today announced that she is nominating Malia 
M. Cohen to serve on the Police Commission, the seven-member body charged with setting 
policy for the Police Department and conducting disciplinary hearings when police conduct 
charges are filed. 
 
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
San Francisco in order to keep people safe. I’m confident that she’ll continue to move this issue 
forward on the Police Commission.” 
 
“It is an honor to partner with Mayor Breed and our communities to rethink and improve the 
delivery of law enforcement services in San Francisco,” said Malia Cohen. “I look forward to 
joining with our Board of Supervisors, SFPD Chief William Scott, the men and women of his 
Department, and all who have fought to bring about decent and reformed law enforcement that 
puts the lives and well-being of all San Franciscans first. My hope is that all who come into 
contact with the SFPD, particularly African Americans and persons of color, will be treated with 
respect, and that the Mayor’s reforms will build bridges and become a model for our country 
during these troubled times.” 
 
Cohen served as the Chair of the California State Board of Equalization (BOE) in 2019, and she 
is the first African-American woman to serve on the Board. As a member of the BOE, Cohen 
represents nearly 10 million constituents in Northern and Central California. Prior to serving on 
the BOE, she was President of the San Francisco Board of Supervisors, where she represented 
District 10 for eight years and was Chair of the Budget and Finance Committee.  
 
Throughout her life, Cohen has fought for diversity and inclusion. As a member of the Board of 
Supervisors, Cohen was instrumental in banning the use of chokeholds by the San Francisco 
Police Department. In 2016, she led the effort to create the independent Department of Police 
Accountability, with expanded powers to audit the police department and investigate all police 
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shootings. In addition to her leadership on police reform, Cohen has championed policies and 
programs that protect public health, foster economic development, promote new affordable 
housing, and that create good jobs.  
 
Cohen was born and raised in San Francisco. She earned a Bachelor of Arts degree in Political 
Science from Fisk University, a historically Black university in Nashville, Tennessee, and a 
Masters in Science in Public Policy and Management from Carnegie Mellon University in 
Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania. She resides in the Bayview neighborhood with her husband, attorney 
Warren Pulley. 
 
Earlier this month, Mayor Breed announced a roadmap to fundamentally change the nature of 
policing in San Francisco and issued a set of policies to address structural inequities. She 
proposed four priorities to achieve this vision: ending the use of police in response to non-
criminal activity; addressing police bias and strengthening accountability; demilitarizing the 
police; and promoting economic justice. These policies build on the City’s ongoing work to meet 
the standards contained in President Obama’s 2015 Task Force on 21st Century Policing. 
 
 


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
contact with the SFPD, particularly African Americans and persons of color, will be treated
with respect, and that the Mayor’s reforms will build bridges and become a model for our
country during these troubled times.”
 
Cohen served as the Chair of the California State Board of Equalization (BOE) in 2019, and
she is the first African-American woman to serve on the Board. As a member of the BOE,
Cohen represents nearly 10 million constituents in Northern and Central California. Prior to
serving on the BOE, she was President of the San Francisco Board of Supervisors, where she
represented District 10 for eight years and was Chair of the Budget and Finance Committee.
 
Throughout her life, Cohen has fought for diversity and inclusion. As a member of the Board
of Supervisors, Cohen was instrumental in banning the use of chokeholds by the San
Francisco Police Department. In 2016, she led the effort to create the independent Department
of Police Accountability, with expanded powers to audit the police department and investigate
all police shootings. In addition to her leadership on police reform, Cohen has championed
policies and programs that protect public health, foster economic development, promote new
affordable housing, and that create good jobs.
 
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
police; and promoting economic justice. These policies build on the City’s ongoing work to
meet the standards contained in President Obama’s 2015 Task Force on 21st Century Policing.
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
Date: Thursday, July 2, 2020 at 11:01 AM
To: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>
Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES CITY
HAS BEEN AWARDED OVER $130 MILLION IN STATE FUNDS FOR AFFORDABLE
HOUSING DEVELOPMENT, TRANSPORTATION, AND INFRASTRUCTURE
IMPROVEMENTS
 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Thursday, July 2, 2020
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org
 

*** PRESS RELEASE ***
MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES CITY HAS BEEN
AWARDED OVER $130 MILLION IN STATE FUNDS FOR

AFFORDABLE HOUSING DEVELOPMENT,
TRANSPORTATION, AND INFRASTRUCTURE

IMPROVEMENTS
California Strategic Growth Council’s Affordable Housing and Sustainable Communities and

Infill Infrastructure Grant Programs will expedite the construction of crucial affordable
housing and infrastructure projects

 
San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed today announced the City has received more
than $130 million in State funding for affordable housing, transportation, and infrastructure
projects. Over $80 million in funding will support three affordable housing developments and
associated transportation improvements at Potrero Block B, 266 4th Street, and Balboa Park
Upper Yard. These three projects are supported by the California Strategic Growth Council’s
Affordable Housing and Sustainable Communities Program with funds from California
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


Infill Infrastructure Grant Programs will expedite the construction of crucial affordable housing 
and infrastructure projects 


 
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
Affordable Housing and Sustainable Communities Program with funds from California Climate 
Investments—Cap-and-Trade Dollars at Work. Additionally, the City was granted $51.7 million 
in financing for the construction of crucial infrastructure at Sunnydale and Potrero HOPE SF 
sites, Treasure Island and Yerba Buena Island, as well as work related to the BART Plaza 
redesign at Balboa Park. 
 
“This $130 million in grants from the State could not have come at a more critical time as we 
continue to deal with the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic. The funds will allow us to accelerate 
construction on more than 350 affordable homes and undertake major infrastructure 
improvements,” said Mayor Breed. “This will help us free up financing capacity for other badly 
needed affordable housing developments across San Francisco and put people back to work with 
well-paying construction jobs.” 
 
The grants for these projects are provided by the California Strategic Growth Council’s 
Affordable Housing and Sustainable Communities Program (AHSC) with funds from California 
Climate Investments. California Climate Investments is a statewide initiative that puts billions of 
Cap-and-Trade dollars to work reducing greenhouse gas emissions, strengthening the economy, 
and improving public health and the environment, particularly in disadvantaged communities.  
 
The AHSC funding will support three housing developments. Potrero Block B is part of the 
HOPE SF revitalization effort, the nation’s first large-scale community development and 
reparations initiative aimed at creating vibrant, inclusive, mixed-income communities without 
mass displacement of the original residents. Of the nearly $30 million the project was awarded 
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by AHSC, $20 million will fund the 157-unit affordable housing project developed by BRIDGE 
which is expected to break ground in summer 2021. An additional $6 million will fund 
improvements to the Third Street Transit project as well as bike and pedestrian safety upgrades 
on Cesar Chavez Street. $1.5 million will fund street improvements on Minnesota Street between 
22nd and 25th Streets in partnership with San Francisco Public Works. Potrero Block B was also 
successful in securing $11.7 million of funding for crucial infrastructure work on site. 
 
“I am thrilled that these important projects will receive state funding, and applaud our City’s 
efforts to build affordable housing,” said Senator Scott Wiener (D-San Francisco), Chair of the 
California Senate Housing Committee. “Now more than ever, due to COVID-19 and the 
economic fallout, people are suffering financially. Housing insecurity and homelessness are 
spiking, and we need long term solutions that get people housed. This is great news in a 
challenging time, and I look forward to seeing these projects serve our community.” 
 
266 4th Street will be located on a San Francisco Municipal Transportation Agency (SFMTA)-
owned site located directly above the Yerba Buena/Moscone Center SFMTA subway station, 
which is currently under construction. Of the approximately $20 million the project was awarded 
by AHSC, $13.6 million will go to fund the 70-unit affordable housing project developed by the 
Tenderloin Neighborhood Development Corporation with half the units designated for formerly 
homeless families. Additional funding will go to fund transportation projects—approximately 
$3.3 million will fund the purchase of new BART cars, and approximately $2.7 million will help 
fund the Better Market Street Project. 
 
“I am so happy to see San Francisco receive this funding to further our affordable housing 
goals,” said Assemblymember David Chiu (D-San Francisco). “As COVID-19 continues to 
impact our communities, adding to our affordable housing stock and ensuring San Franciscans 
have access to secure housing will keep us all healthy.” 
 
Balboa Park Upper Yard will be located on a Mayor’s Office of Housing and Community 
Development (MOHCD)-owned site located adjacent to the Balboa BART Station. In addition to 
131-units of affordable housing, of which 39 are subsidized by San Francisco Housing 
Authority, the ground floor of the project boasts almost 10,000 square feet of community space, 
including an early childhood education center, family resource center and neighborhood-serving 
serving retail. Construction on the project, developed by Mission Housing and Related 
California, is expected to begin in spring 2021. Of the nearly $30 million the project was 
awarded by AHSC, $20 million will fund the affordable housing component, with an additional 
$3.3 million allocated to purchase three new BART cars, $5 million to construct the southern 
Balboa Park BART Plaza and nearly $1.2 million for Ocean Avenue bike and pedestrian safety 
improvements, in partnership with the SFMTA. In addition, the Balboa Park Upper Yard project 
successfully secured an additional $3.5 million from the State grant to fully fund the BART 
Plaza redevelopment. 
 
“This is exciting news for San Francisco. These state funds enable us to address two pressing 
issues: affordable housing and climate change. More residents will reduce their carbon emissions 
by ditching their cars if they live near reliable public transit and safe bike/pedestrian routes. 
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These projects put us on track to having more inclusive and sustainable communities in our city,” 
said Assemblymember Phil Ting (D-San Francisco), Chair of the Assembly Budget Committee. 
 
The Treasure Island Development Authority, a City agency, was awarded a $30 million State 
grant to widen a key segment of Hillcrest Road on Yerba Buena. The road project will 
dramatically improve access to the San Francisco – Oakland Bay Bridge for current and future 
Treasure Island and Yerba Buena Island residents and provide a dedicated eastbound lane that 
will serve new AC Transit bus service to and from Oakland. The project will be integrated with 
other roadway and ramp improvements planned or currently under construction by Treasure 
Island Community Development and the San Francisco County Transportation Authority to 
enhance transit and traffic circulation. 
 
Sunnydale Block 3B was awarded $6.5 million for the construction of infrastructure by the state 
grant for the next phase of Sunnydale HOPE SF, further decreasing the City’s contribution to 
these crucial infrastructure improvements on site. Once complete, Block 3B will be a mixed-use 
family residential project, developed by Mercy Housing and Related California, with ground 
floor community serving spaces and retail located at the intersection of Sunnydale Avenue and 
Hahn Street. The project will contain 92 units of affordable family housing, including 69 set 
aside as public housing replacement units subsidized by Project Based Section 8 Vouchers from 
the San Francisco Housing Authority. 
 


### 







Climate Investments—Cap-and-Trade Dollars at Work. Additionally, the City was granted
$51.7 million in financing for the construction of crucial infrastructure at Sunnydale and
Potrero HOPE SF sites, Treasure Island and Yerba Buena Island, as well as work related to the
BART Plaza redesign at Balboa Park.
 
“This $130 million in grants from the State could not have come at a more critical time as we
continue to deal with the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic. The funds will allow us to accelerate
construction on more than 350 affordable homes and undertake major infrastructure
improvements,” said Mayor Breed. “This will help us free up financing capacity for other
badly needed affordable housing developments across San Francisco and put people back to
work with well-paying construction jobs.”
 
The grants for these projects are provided by the California Strategic Growth Council’s
Affordable Housing and Sustainable Communities Program (AHSC) with funds from
California Climate Investments. California Climate Investments is a statewide initiative that
puts billions of Cap-and-Trade dollars to work reducing greenhouse gas emissions,
strengthening the economy, and improving public health and the environment, particularly in
disadvantaged communities.
 
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
by AHSC, $20 million will fund the 157-unit affordable housing project developed by
BRIDGE which is expected to break ground in summer 2021. An additional $6 million will
fund improvements to the Third Street Transit project as well as bike and pedestrian safety
upgrades on Cesar Chavez Street. $1.5 million will fund street improvements on Minnesota
Street between 22nd and 25th Streets in partnership with San Francisco Public Works. Potrero
Block B was also successful in securing $11.7 million of funding for crucial infrastructure
work on site.
 
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
spiking, and we need long term solutions that get people housed. This is great news in a
challenging time, and I look forward to seeing these projects serve our community.”
 
266 4th Street will be located on a San Francisco Municipal Transportation Agency (SFMTA)-
owned site located directly above the Yerba Buena/Moscone Center SFMTA subway station,
which is currently under construction. Of the approximately $20 million the project was
awarded by AHSC, $13.6 million will go to fund the 70-unit affordable housing project
developed by the Tenderloin Neighborhood Development Corporation with half the units
designated for formerly homeless families. Additional funding will go to fund transportation
projects—approximately $3.3 million will fund the purchase of new BART cars, and
approximately $2.7 million will help fund the Better Market Street Project.
 
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
Development (MOHCD)-owned site located adjacent to the Balboa BART Station. In addition
to 131-units of affordable housing, of which 39 are subsidized by San Francisco Housing
Authority, the ground floor of the project boasts almost 10,000 square feet of community
space, including an early childhood education center, family resource center and
neighborhood-serving serving retail. Construction on the project, developed by Mission
Housing and Related California, is expected to begin in spring 2021. Of the nearly $30 million
the project was awarded by AHSC, $20 million will fund the affordable housing component,
with an additional $3.3 million allocated to purchase three new BART cars, $5 million to
construct the southern Balboa Park BART Plaza and nearly $1.2 million for Ocean Avenue
bike and pedestrian safety improvements, in partnership with the SFMTA. In addition, the
Balboa Park Upper Yard project successfully secured an additional $3.5 million from the State
grant to fully fund the BART Plaza redevelopment.
 

“This is exciting news for San Francisco. These state funds enable us to address two pressing
issues: affordable housing and climate change. More residents will reduce their carbon
emissions by ditching their cars if they live near reliable public transit and safe bike/pedestrian
routes. These projects put us on track to having more inclusive and sustainable communities in
our city,” said Assemblymember Phil Ting (D-San Francisco), Chair of the Assembly Budget
Committee.

 
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
will serve new AC Transit bus service to and from Oakland. The project will be integrated
with other roadway and ramp improvements planned or currently under construction by
Treasure Island Community Development and the San Francisco County Transportation
Authority to enhance transit and traffic circulation.
 
Sunnydale Block 3B was awarded $6.5 million for the construction of infrastructure by the
state grant for the next phase of Sunnydale HOPE SF, further decreasing the City’s
contribution to these crucial infrastructure improvements on site. Once complete, Block 3B
will be a mixed-use family residential project, developed by Mercy Housing and Related
California, with ground floor community serving spaces and retail located at the intersection
of Sunnydale Avenue and Hahn Street. The project will contain 92 units of affordable family
housing, including 69 set aside as public housing replacement units subsidized by Project
Based Section 8 Vouchers from the San Francisco Housing Authority.
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
Date: Tuesday, June 30, 2020 at 3:40 PM
To: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>
Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES LEASE
FOR 145 UNITS OF HOUSING FOR HOMELESS AND FORMERLY HOMELESS
HOUSEHOLDS
 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Tuesday, June 30, 2020
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org 
 

*** PRESS RELEASE ***
MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES LEASE FOR 145
UNITS OF HOUSING FOR HOMELESS AND FORMERLY

HOMELESS HOUSEHOLDS
Board of Supervisors today approved Mayor Breed’s resolution to lease a new building at

833 Bryant Street to provide 145 permanently affordable homes
 

San Francisco, CA — The Board of Supervisors today approved Mayor London N. Breed’s
resolution to lease 833 Bryant, which will provide 145 units of Permanent Supportive Housing
(PSH) for people experiencing homelessness. These new units are part of the City’s effort to
open up over 1,000 new permanent supportive housing units by the end of 2024. PSH provides
long-term affordable housing with on-site social services to people exiting chronic
homelessness. Currently, over 10,800 people live in the City’s PSH.
 
“We need to keep creating more housing in San Francisco and doing so as quickly as we can,
because housing is the solution to homelessness,” said Mayor Breed. “These new homes will
not only provide permanent housing for formerly homeless people, they will also open up
more spaces in our shelter system for people who are currently living on the streets. I want to
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


833 Bryant Street to provide 145 permanently affordable homes 
 


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
long-term affordable housing with on-site social services to people exiting chronic homelessness. 
Currently, over 10,800 people live in the City’s PSH. 
 
“We need to keep creating more housing in San Francisco and doing so as quickly as we can, 
because housing is the solution to homelessness,” said Mayor Breed. “These new homes will not 
only provide permanent housing for formerly homeless people, they will also open up more 
spaces in our shelter system for people who are currently living on the streets. I want to thank all 
our partners on this project for their work to create this new building and for working with the 
City to create these much-needed homes.” 
 
“This project not only provides much needed permanent supportive housing, but also takes an 
innovative approach in reducing time and costs,” said Abigail Stewart- Kahn, Interim Director of 
the San Francisco Department of Homelessness and Supportive Housing. “The 833 Bryant Street 
public private partnership demonstrates that supportive housing can be developed rapidly and 
effectively to serve chronically homeless people in our community.” 
 
833 Bryant, previously a surface parking lot in SoMa, is currently under construction. When 
complete in fall 2021, it will provide 145 permanently affordable homes with in-unit kitchens 
and bathrooms. The resolution would allow the City to lease the building to provide ongoing 
housing to households exiting homelessness. 
 
The master lease resolution that Mayor Breed introduced and that was approved today is 
competitive relative to other City PSH master lease projects with fewer amenities. At the end of 
the lease term, the City will have the option to purchase the land for $1, and the building will be 
permanently affordable. 
 
833 Bryant represents a new approach to financing 100% affordable housing in San Francisco. 
No City funds are used to construct the project. Instead, the Housing Accelerator Fund (HAF) 
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invested $35 million of a larger philanthropic donation from Tipping Point Community to 
acquire the surface parking lot, fund project design, entitlements, and start construction, now 
well underway. The project developer, Mercy Housing California, is securing low-income 
housing tax credits and tax-exempt bonds in partnership with Citibank and the State of California 
to finish construction, which will return a portion of the philanthropic funds to the HAF to invest 
in additional supportive housing projects. The City’s agreement to enter into a long-term lease, 
which will support debt service on the project’s permanent loan, allows for the tax-exempt bond 
rating to be linked to the City’s credit rating, resulting in more advantageous pricing and lower 
overall project costs. 
 
The City’s Department of Homelessness and Supportive Housing will ensure that the new homes 
permanently serve homeless households through the long-term lease and by providing operating 
subsidies. The goal of all these partners, on its way to full success, is to reduce the time and cost 
of building the supportive housing people experiencing homelessness so urgently need. 
 
“Philanthropy has the ability to act quickly and take risks to identify bold solutions to some of 
our community’s greatest challenges,” said Daniel Lurie, Chairman of the Board of Tipping 
Point Community. “This project is a great example of how private donors can provide risk 
capital for a proof of concept, and work with government to sustain the solution for the long 
run.” 
 
“Two years ago, the Housing Accelerator Fund set out on an ambitious mission: to cut the time it 
takes to build permanent supportive housing in half and to significantly reduce production costs,” 
said Rebecca Foster, CEO of the Housing Accelerator Fund. “In partnership with Mercy 
Housing, Tipping Point Community, and the City of San Francisco, we are thrilled to be 
achieving these goals. Many thanks to our partners for helping advance the innovations that will 
soon result in 145 new, beautiful homes for people experiencing homelessness.”   
 
“By deploying modular construction and an entrepreneurial financing approach, this project  
demonstrates the potential for time and costs savings for developing affordable housing in 
San Francisco,” said Doug Shoemaker, President, Mercy Housing California. 
 
The COVID-19 pandemic has demonstrated, now more than ever, that housing is essential to 
good health care and that all of our health and wellbeing is intertwined. Protecting the health of 
people experiencing homelessness is essential to safeguard the health of all. With this in mind, 
the City has not stopped the housing placement process and continues to connect people with 
PSH and rapid rehousing.    
 
The City is also actively aligning local and state resources and strategies to acquire hotels for 
long-term housing options. While there are many devastating impacts of COVID-19, the City 
plans to continue working with the public and private partners to grow and improve the housing 
solutions to homelessness. 
 
 


### 







thank all our partners on this project for their work to create this new building and for working
with the City to create these much-needed homes.”
 
“This project not only provides much needed permanent supportive housing, but also takes an
innovative approach in reducing time and costs,” said Abigail Stewart- Kahn, Interim Director
of the San Francisco Department of Homelessness and Supportive Housing. “The 833 Bryant
Street public private partnership demonstrates that supportive housing can be developed
rapidly and effectively to serve chronically homeless people in our community.”
 
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
competitive relative to other City PSH master lease projects with fewer amenities. At the end
of the lease term, the City will have the option to purchase the land for $1, and the building
will be permanently affordable.
 
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
well underway. The project developer, Mercy Housing California, is securing low-income
housing tax credits and tax-exempt bonds in partnership with Citibank and the State of
California to finish construction, which will return a portion of the philanthropic funds to the
HAF to invest in additional supportive housing projects. The City’s agreement to enter into a
long-term lease, which will support debt service on the project’s permanent loan, allows for
the tax-exempt bond rating to be linked to the City’s credit rating, resulting in more
advantageous pricing and lower overall project costs.
 
The City’s Department of Homelessness and Supportive Housing will ensure that the new
homes permanently serve homeless households through the long-term lease and by providing
operating subsidies. The goal of all these partners, on its way to full success, is to reduce the
time and cost of building the supportive housing people experiencing homelessness so
urgently need.
 
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
 
“Two years ago, the Housing Accelerator Fund set out on an ambitious mission: to cut the
time it takes to build permanent supportive housing in half and to significantly reduce
production costs,” said Rebecca Foster, CEO of the Housing Accelerator Fund. “In partnership
with Mercy Housing, Tipping Point Community, and the City of San Francisco, we are thrilled
to be achieving these goals. Many thanks to our partners for helping advance the innovations
that will soon result in 145 new, beautiful homes for people experiencing homelessness.”  
 



“By deploying modular construction and an entrepreneurial financing approach, this project 
demonstrates the potential for time and costs savings for developing affordable housing in
San Francisco,” said Doug Shoemaker, President, Mercy Housing California.
 
The COVID-19 pandemic has demonstrated, now more than ever, that housing is essential to
good health care and that all of our health and wellbeing is intertwined. Protecting the health
of people experiencing homelessness is essential to safeguard the health of all. With this in
mind, the City has not stopped the housing placement process and continues to connect people
with PSH and rapid rehousing.   
 
The City is also actively aligning local and state resources and strategies to acquire hotels for
long-term housing options. While there are many devastating impacts of COVID-19, the City
plans to continue working with the public and private partners to grow and improve the
housing solutions to homelessness.
 
 

###
 



From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ENCOURAGES SAN FRANCISCANS TO CELEBRATE

FOURTH OF JULY WEEKEND SAFELY AND LIMIT SPREAD OF COVID-19
Date: Tuesday, June 30, 2020 12:08:41 PM
Attachments: 06.30.20 4th of July.pdf

 
 
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
Date: Tuesday, June 30, 2020 at 12:00 PM
To: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>
Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ENCOURAGES SAN
FRANCISCANS TO CELEBRATE FOURTH OF JULY WEEKEND SAFELY AND LIMIT
SPREAD OF COVID-19
 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Tuesday, June 30, 2020
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org
 

*** PRESS RELEASE ***
MAYOR LONDON BREED ENCOURAGES SAN

FRANCISCANS TO CELEBRATE FOURTH OF JULY
WEEKEND SAFELY AND LIMIT SPREAD OF COVID-19
The City’s Fourth of July celebration and fireworks show are canceled this year; San

Francisco Fire Department reminds residents of fireworks dangers
 
San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed and City officials today encouraged
San Franciscans and Bay Area residents to celebrate the Fourth of July weekend safely to limit
the spread of COVID-19 and to prevent fires in the city.
 
San Francisco typically hosts a Fourth of July Waterfront Celebration with a fireworks show,
which usually attracts hundreds of thousands of visitors to the city. This year, the celebration
is canceled and residents are reminded to follow all San Francisco Public Health Orders,
including the requirement to wear face coverings and stay at least six feet apart, if they leave
their homes or visit San Francisco. San Francisco law prohibits the discharge of fireworks
except for public displays. San Franciscans are reminded that fireworks remain illegal and
pose a real danger to residents.

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
MAYOR LONDON BREED ENCOURAGES SAN FRANCISCANS 
TO CELEBRATE FOURTH OF JULY WEEKEND SAFELY AND 


LIMIT SPREAD OF COVID-19  
The City’s Fourth of July celebration and fireworks show are canceled this year; San Francisco 


Fire Department reminds residents of fireworks dangers 
 
San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed and City officials today encouraged 
San Franciscans and Bay Area residents to celebrate the Fourth of July weekend safely to limit 
the spread of COVID-19 and to prevent fires in the city.  
 
San Francisco typically hosts a Fourth of July Waterfront Celebration with a fireworks show, 
which usually attracts hundreds of thousands of visitors to the city. This year, the celebration is 
canceled and residents are reminded to follow all San Francisco Public Health Orders, including 
the requirement to wear face coverings and stay at least six feet apart, if they leave their homes 
or visit San Francisco. San Francisco law prohibits the discharge of fireworks except for public 
displays. San Franciscans are reminded that fireworks remain illegal and pose a real danger to 
residents. 
 
“The Fourth of July is normally a time to gather and celebrate with family, friends and 
neighbors. Unfortunately these are not normal times, and these types of gatherings are the 
environments in which COVID-19 spread,” said Mayor Breed. “It is critical that all of us 
continue to follow the Health Orders designed to protect our safety. Please think carefully and 
act responsibly this weekend.” 
 
“Each year, more than 12,000 fireworks-related injuries are treated in hospital emergency rooms 
and half of them are children,” said Fire Chief Jeanine Nicholson. “Firework accidents cause 
millions of dollars in property loss each year, including vegetation fires that threaten homes and 
whole communities.” 
 
“At Fisherman’s Wharf and in our northeastern neighborhoods, we are working to responsibly 
reopen,” said Supervisor Aaron Peskin, who represents the northeastern waterfront. “How we act 
this weekend will have a direct impact on our recovery so it is critical that residents and visitors 
abide by all Health Orders, including wearing facial coverings.” 
 
“The City and County of San Francisco annually welcomes families from areas near and far for 
our waterfront celebration and fireworks show,” said City Administrator Naomi M. Kelly. “This 
year we are canceling the celebration and fireworks show to keep our communities safe. We 
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encourage families and individuals to stay home and celebrate with members of their immediate 
households.” 
 
Over the weekend, residents are encouraged to call 9-1-1 only for police, fire, or medical 
emergencies. Calling 9-1-1 for fireworks calls may delay calls for service, and residents are 
encouraged to use 3-1-1 instead. 
 
“We want to make sure our officers can respond quickly and effectively to protect public safety 
in San Francisco,” said Police Chief William Scott. “Please reserve 9-1-1 for emergencies, such 
as crimes in progress or emergency medical needs. Calls about noise and noncriminal activity 
will only delay priority police, fire and medical response, so please use 3-1-1.” 
 
Residents and visitors should call 3-1-1, rather than 9-1-1, for the following calls: 


• Information about activities during the Fourth of July weekend 
• Fireworks noise 
• Illegal fireworks locations 
• Potential violations of the City’s Public Health Orders 


 
3-1-1 services can also be accessed at sf311.org or via the 3-1-1 app. 
 
 


### 



https://sf311.org/





 
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
 
“Each year, more than 12,000 fireworks-related injuries are treated in hospital emergency
rooms and half of them are children,” said Fire Chief Jeanine Nicholson. “Firework accidents
cause millions of dollars in property loss each year, including vegetation fires that threaten
homes and whole communities.”
 
“At Fisherman’s Wharf and in our northeastern neighborhoods, we are working to responsibly
reopen,” said Supervisor Aaron Peskin, who represents the northeastern waterfront. “How we
act this weekend will have a direct impact on our recovery so it is critical that residents and
visitors abide by all Health Orders, including wearing facial coverings.”
 
“The City and County of San Francisco annually welcomes families from areas near and far
for our waterfront celebration and fireworks show,” said City Administrator Naomi M. Kelly.
“This year we are canceling the celebration and fireworks show to keep our communities safe.
We encourage families and individuals to stay home and celebrate with members of their
immediate households.”
 
Over the weekend, residents are encouraged to call 9-1-1 only for police, fire, or medical
emergencies. Calling 9-1-1 for fireworks calls may delay calls for service, and residents are
encouraged to use 3-1-1 instead.
 
“We want to make sure our officers can respond quickly and effectively to protect public
safety in San Francisco,” said Police Chief William Scott. “Please reserve 9-1-1 for
emergencies, such as crimes in progress or emergency medical needs. Calls about noise and
noncriminal activity will only delay priority police, fire and medical response, so please use 3-
1-1.”
 
Residents and visitors should call 3-1-1, rather than 9-1-1, for the following calls:

Information about activities during the Fourth of July weekend
Fireworks noise
Illegal fireworks locations
Potential violations of the City’s Public Health Orders

 
3-1-1 services can also be accessed at sf311.org or via the 3-1-1 app.
 
 

###
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From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: Removing Confederate Monuments
Date: Tuesday, June 30, 2020 11:39:01 AM

 
 
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
 
 

From: "Pearlman, Jonathan (CPC)" <jonathan.pearlman@sfgov.org>
Date: Tuesday, June 30, 2020 at 11:36 AM
To: "Ionin, Jonas (CPC)" <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>
Subject: Removing Confederate Monuments
 
Jonas,
 
Please distribute to the HPC and Planning Commissioners.
 
With our own experience of removing the Early Days sculpture from the Pioneer Monument,
the current efforts to remove Confederate statues around the country can provide further
guidance to us for other statues that we may have to consider for removal. This article gives a
perspective from two national preservation organizations.
 
https://www.architecturalrecord.com/articles/14705-architectural-preservationists-and-historians-
consider-confederate-monument-removal?oly_enc_id=1339J6801812H3F
 
 
Jonathan
 
 
 
Jonathan Pearlman
ELEVATIONarchitects
1159 Green Street, Suite 4
San Francisco, CA 94109
 
439 Healdsburg Avenue
Healdsburg, CA 95448
 
(v) 415.537.1125 x101 San Francisco
(v) 707.433.2509 x101 Healdsburg
(c) 415.225.3973
 

mailto:jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
mailto:Josephine.Feliciano@sfgov.org
mailto:jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
http://www.sfplanning.org/
https://www.architecturalrecord.com/articles/14705-architectural-preservationists-and-historians-consider-confederate-monument-removal?oly_enc_id=1339J6801812H3F
https://www.architecturalrecord.com/articles/14705-architectural-preservationists-and-historians-consider-confederate-monument-removal?oly_enc_id=1339J6801812H3F




From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: *** STATEMENT *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ON CITY ATTORNEY AND CONTROLLER

RECOMMENDATIONS ON PUBLIC WORKS REFORMS
Date: Monday, June 29, 2020 1:30:37 PM
Attachments: 06.29.2020 City Attorney and Controller Recommendations.pdf

 
 
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
Date: Monday, June 29, 2020 at 12:52 PM
To: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>
Subject: *** STATEMENT *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ON CITY ATTORNEY AND
CONTROLLER RECOMMENDATIONS ON PUBLIC WORKS REFORMS
 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Monday, June 29, 2020
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org
 

*** STATEMENT ***
MAYOR LONDON BREED ON CITY ATTORNEY AND

CONTROLLER RECOMMENDATIONS ON PUBLIC WORKS
REFORMS

 
San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed today issued the following statement
committing to implement the initial recommendations made by City Attorney Dennis Herrera
and Controller Ben Rosenfield, resulting from their investigation into wrongdoing by San
Francisco Public Works:
 
“From the beginning of the federal investigation into San Francisco Public Works, I have said
that nothing matters more than restoring public trust in government. I am committed to doing
the work to strengthen oversight and accountability in all our departments to prevent future
wrongdoing and corruption.
 
Starting today, we will immediately take action to begin implementing the reforms
recommended by the City Attorney and Controller. If we can take Executive action, we will
do so immediately. If we need to pass laws, we will work with the Board of Supervisors to do
so. To that end, I am rescinding the delegation of authority that was granted to the Director of

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


that nothing matters more than restoring public trust in government. I am committed to doing the 


work to strengthen oversight and accountability in all our departments to prevent future 


wrongdoing and corruption. 


 


Starting today, we will immediately take action to begin implementing the reforms 


recommended by the City Attorney and Controller. If we can take Executive action, we will do 


so immediately. If we need to pass laws, we will work with the Board of Supervisors to do so. To 


that end, I am rescinding the delegation of authority that was granted to the Director of Public 


Works in 2011 relating to various approval and contracting actions, as recommended in this 


initial report. I know these are the first in a series of recommendations, and we need to continue 


to identify problematic issues that erode public trust across our city. We have work to do, but we 


will do that work. Our residents and City workers deserve nothing less. 


 


I want to thank the City Attorney and Controller for their work on these important reforms, 


which is a critical step to restoring the public trust. They have done this even as their offices 


have been integral in helping to meet the challenges facing our city during the COVID-19 


pandemic.” 


 


### 
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Public Works in 2011 relating to various approval and contracting actions, as recommended in
this initial report. I know these are the first in a series of recommendations, and we need to
continue to identify problematic issues that erode public trust across our city. We have work to
do, but we will do that work. Our residents and City workers deserve nothing less.
 
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
Subject: FW: 6/17 HPC Hearing - Draft HPC memo re 550 O"Farrell Street DEIR
Date: Thursday, June 25, 2020 10:45:15 AM
Attachments: 2017-004557ENV_HPC Memo 550 OFarrell.pdf
Importance: High

Apologies for the late submittal.
 
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
 
 

From: "McKellar, Jennifer (CPC)" <jennifer.mckellar@sfgov.org>
Date: Thursday, June 25, 2020 at 10:44 AM
To: "Silva, Christine (CPC)" <christine.silva@sfgov.org>, "Ionin, Jonas (CPC)"
<jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>, "Son, Chanbory (CPC)" <chanbory.son@sfgov.org>, "Feliciano,
Josephine (CPC)" <josephine.feliciano@sfgov.org>
Cc: "Sheyner, Tania (CPC)" <tania.sheyner@sfgov.org>, "Greving, Justin (CPC)"
<justin.greving@sfgov.org>
Subject: FW: 6/17 HPC Hearing - Draft HPC memo re 550 O'Farrell Street DEIR
 
Hi Christine, Jonas, Chan, Josie –
 
At this late stage, what is the best way to send the attached HPC memo from last weeks HPC hearing
for 550 O’Farrell St to the commission for today’s hearing. Apologies, for this last minute request, I
am sure you have loads to do right now!
 
Thanks,
Jen
 
Jennifer Barbour McKellar, Senior Planner
Environmental Planning Division
San Francisco Planning Department 
1650 Mission Street, Suite 400 San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 415.575.8754| www.sfplanning.org
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
https://sfplanning.org/node/1978
https://sfplanning.org/covid-19#permit-anchor-7
https://sfplanning.org/node/1964



 


 


 


 
 
 
June 19, 2020 
 
 
Ms. Lisa Gibson 
Environmental Review Officer 
San Francisco Planning Department 
1650 Mission Street, 4th Floor 
San Francisco, CA 94103 
 
Dear Ms. Gibson, 
 
On June 17, 2020, the Historic Preservation Commission (HPC) held a public hearing in 
order for the commissioners to provide comments to the San Francisco Planning 
Department on the Draft Environmental Impact Report (DEIR) for the proposed 550 
O’Farrell Street Project (2017-004557ENV).  As noted at the hearing, public comment 
provided at the June 17, 2020 hearing, will not be responded to in the Responses to 
Comments document. After discussion, the HPC arrived at the comments below on the 
DEIR: 


 
• HPC members reiterated that this was the first project where a draft of the 


alternatives went for review by the full HPC, whereas previously draft alternatives 
were only reviewed by the Architectural Review Committee (ARC). The HPC felt 
the change in procedure had greatly improved the process by allowing the full HPC 
to provide comments earlier during the development of alternatives. This change 
in process also allowed commissioners to give feedback on the design of the project 
at an earlier phase. 


• The HPC found the analysis of historic resources in DEIR to be adequate and 
accurate. The HPC concurs with the finding that the proposed project would result 
in a significant, unavoidable impact to the identified historic resource.  


• The HPC did not have any comments on the Mitigation Measures and found them 
to be adequate. 


• The HPC agreed that the DEIR analyzed a reasonable and appropriate range of 
preservation alternatives to address historic resource impacts. 


• The HPC requested that additional information on restoration of the façade be 
included in the DEIR’s project description section.  







 Page 2 of 2 


Proposed project – The HPC expressed support for the proposed project and reiterated the 
fact that it was one of the draft alternatives they saw in April 2019. Commissioners wanted 
the Planning Commission to know that use of one of the draft alternatives as the proposed 
project indicated a significant improvement in the alternatives process. The HPC had the 
following comments on the proposed project: 
 


• The HPC stated that bringing the draft alternatives for review earlier on in the EIR 
process allowed for them to be studied by the project team much earlier in the 
process of review. This saved the project sponsor time and money and ultimately 
led to a better project. 


• HPC commissioners agreed that use of the retained elements guidelines was 
successfully applied to this project. 


• Commissioners felt the location of the addition’s massing was appropriate because 
it matched the surrounding size and scale and location of other contributing 
residential buildings within the Uptown Tenderloin National Register historic 
district by aligning with the surrounding street wall. 


• Commissioners commented they would like to see further analysis of the existing 
building to inform the restoration of the façade, possibly paint analysis to 
determine the original finish and color of the building.  


• Commissioners also debated the adequacy of the vertical hyphen (along with 
definition of the term). While some commissioners expressed a desire to see a 
deeper setback, others cautioned against a hyphen that would be set too far back 
and make the building look top heavy. Commissioners agreed the design of the 
hyphen should be studied more fully as the full-size drawings were developed. 


• The HPC expressed full support of the proposed project. The HPC was clear that 
they did not support the project variant. 


 


The HPC appreciates the opportunity to participate in review of this environmental 
document.  


 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Aaron Jon Hyland, FAIA, President 
Historic Preservation Commission 







 
This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from
untrusted sources.

 

From: Greving, Justin (CPC) <justin.greving@sfgov.org> 
Sent: Thursday, June 25, 2020 10:37 AM
To: McKellar, Jennifer (CPC) <jennifer.mckellar@sfgov.org>
Subject: Fw: 6/17 HPC Hearing - Draft HPC memo re 550 O'Farrell Street DEIR
 
Jen,
 
Here is the letter from HPC with Commissioner Hyland's signature.
 
​Please note that I am working remotely for the foreseeable future and the best way to reach me is via email.
Justin Greving
Senior Preservation Planner, Environmental Planning
Planning Department, City and County of San Francisco
1650 Mission Street, Suite 400, San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 415-575-9169 Fax: 415-558-6409
Email: justin.greving@sfgov.org
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

From: Aaron Hyland <aaron.hyland.hpc@gmail.com>
Sent: Friday, June 19, 2020 2:02 PM
To: Greving, Justin (CPC) <justin.greving@sfgov.org>
Cc: McKellar, Jennifer (CPC) <jennifer.mckellar@sfgov.org>; Vanderslice, Allison (CPC)
<allison.vanderslice@sfgov.org>; Sheyner, Tania (CPC) <tania.sheyner@sfgov.org>
Subject: Re: 6/17 HPC Hearing - Draft HPC memo re 550 O'Farrell Street DEIR
 

 

Here you go. All good. With signature

Aaron Hyland

On Jun 19, 2020, at 9:45 AM, Greving, Justin (CPC) <justin.greving@sfgov.org> wrote:

mailto:justin.greving@sfgov.org
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mailto:aaron.hyland.hpc@gmail.com
mailto:justin.greving@sfgov.org
mailto:jennifer.mckellar@sfgov.org
mailto:allison.vanderslice@sfgov.org
mailto:tania.sheyner@sfgov.org
mailto:justin.greving@sfgov.org


 
This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or
attachments from untrusted sources.

Thank you for taking a look so quickly. I am attaching a revised version
incorporating your comments.
 
​Please note that I am working remotely for the foreseeable future and the best way to reach me is via
email.
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

 
The Planning Department is open for business during the Stay Safe at Home
Order. Most of our staff are working from home and we’re available by e-
mail. Our Public Portal, where you can file new applications, and our Property
Information Map are available 24/7. The Planning and Historic Preservation
Commissions are convening remotely and the public is encouraged to participate. The
Board of Appeals, Board of Supervisors, and Planning Commission are accepting
appeals via e-mail despite office closures. All of our in-person services at 1650 and
1660 Mission Street are suspended until further notice. Click here for more
information.
 

From: Aaron Hyland <aaron.hyland.hpc@gmail.com>
Sent: Thursday, June 18, 2020 5:01 PM
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
 

 

Looks good Justin. 
Only one comment in the early review of the alternative by the Full HPC. I believe this
was also brought to the HPC much easier, during the scoping phase of the DEIR. This
allowed one of the alternative to be studied more fully earlier on, and become the
proposed project. In past, the proposed project would have been further along, with
lots of time and expense invested already, and therefore throwing away a bunch of
design work. This new process saved the project sponsor time and money, and led to a
better project. 
 
Also, in like to include y middle name. 

Aaron Jon Hyland, FAIA

mailto:justin.greving@sfgov.org
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On Jun 18, 2020, at 3:58 PM, Greving, Justin (CPC)
<justin.greving@sfgov.org> wrote:

Commission President Hyland,
 
Please find attached a draft of the commissioner's comment for the
550 O'Farrell Draft EIR. Please let me know if you have any comments
or edits.
 
Thank you for your time,
 
​Please note that I am working remotely for the foreseeable future and the best way to
reach me is via email.
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

 
The Planning Department is open for business during the Stay Safe at
Home Order. Most of our staff are working from home and
we’re available by e-mail. Our Public Portal, where you can file new
applications, and our Property Information Map are available 24/7. The
Planning and Historic Preservation Commissions are convening remotely
and the public is encouraged to participate. The Board of Appeals, Board
of Supervisors, and Planning Commission are accepting appeals via e-
mail despite office closures. All of our in-person services at 1650 and
1660 Mission Street are suspended until further notice. Click here for
more information.
<2017-004557ENV_HPC Memo 550 OFarrell_draft.docx>

<2017-004557ENV_HPC Memo 550 OFarrell_draft_AJH.docx>
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From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
Cc: CTYPLN - COMMISSION SECRETARY; CTYPLN - CP TEAM (TAC - Preservation); RUIZ-ESQUIDE, ANDREA (CAT);

WONG, VICTORIA (CAT)
Subject: HPC Calendars for July 1, 2020 - Notice of Cancellation and Continuances
Date: Thursday, June 25, 2020 10:25:07 AM
Attachments: 20200701_hpc_can.docx

20200701_hpc_can.pdf
HPC Advance - 20200701.xlsx
HPC Hearing Results 2020.docx

Commissioners,
Attached are your Calendars for July 1, 2020. Please note that the hearing is canceled.
 
We will resume your hearing schedule on July 15, 2020.
 
Enjoy the break,
 
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
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NOTICE

OF 

CANCELLATION

AND

CONTINUANCES





Wednesday, 

July 1, 2020



Regular Meeting



NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Wednesday, July 1, 2020 San Francisco Historic Preservation Commission Remote Meeting has been canceled. The next Regular Meeting of the Historic Preservation Commission is scheduled for Wednesday, July 15, 2020.



Commissioners:

Aaron Hyland, President

Diane Matsuda, Vice President

Kate Black, Chris Foley, Richard S.E. Johns, 

Jonathan Pearlman, Lydia So



Commission Secretary:

Jonas P. Ionin



Hearing Materials are available at:

Website: http://www.sfplanning.org

Planning Department, 1650 Mission Street, 4th Floor, Suite 400

Planning Information Center, 1660 Mission Street, 1st Floor









Disability and language accommodations available upon request to:

 commissions.secretary@sfgov.org or (415) 558-6309 at least 48 hours in advance.




A. THE FOLLOWING ITEMS SHALL BE CONTINUED TO THE DATES NOTED 

[bookmark: _GoBack]

1.	2016-003351CWP	(S CALTAGIRONE: (415) 558--6625)

RESOLUTION CENTERING THE PLANNING DEPARTMENT’S WORK PROGRAM AND RESOURCE ALLOCATION ON RACIAL AND SOCIAL EQUITY – Adoption of a Resolution centering the Planning Department’s work program and resource allocation on racial and social equity; acknowledging the history of inequitable planning policies that have resulted in racial disparities; directing the Department to implement its Racial and Social Equity Action Plan; directing the Department to develop proactive strategies to address structural and institutional racism, in collaboration with Black and Indigenous communities and Communities of Color; directing the Department to amend its hiring and promotion practices to ensure that the Department’s staff reflects the diversity and demographics of the community; recommending that the Board of Supervisors condemn discriminatory government actions; and, directing the Department to build accountability through metrics and reporting. 

Preliminary Recommendation: Adopt

Continued to July 15, 2020



2.	2020-005179PCA	(V. FLORES: (415) 575-9173)

CONTINUATION OF USE FOR CERTAIN NONCONFORMING PARKING LOTS - MISSION STREET NEIGHBORHOOD COMMERCIAL TRANSIT DISTRICT [BF 200421] – Planning Code Amendments – Ordinance amending the Planning Code to allow in the Mission Street Neighborhood Commercial Transit District the continuance of a nonconforming parking lot that is on the site of a designated City landmark; affirming the Planning Department’s determination under the California Environmental Quality Act; making findings of consistency with the General Plan, and the eight priority policies of Planning Code, Section 101.1; and adopting findings of public necessity, convenience, and general welfare under Planning Code, Section 302.

Preliminary Recommendation:  Approve

Continued to July 15, 2020



3.	2018-009197COA	(S. FERGUSON: (415) 575-9074)

1772 VALLEJO STREET – north side between Gough and Franklin streets. Assessor’s Block 0552, Lot 029 (District 2) – Request for Certificate of Appropriateness for a three-story rear addition. The property is designated City Landmark No. 31 under Article 10 of the Planning Code. The property is zoned RH-2 (Residential-House, Two Family) District and 40-X Height and Bulk District.

Preliminary Recommendation:  Approve

Note:  On May 6, 2020, after hearing and closing public comment; Continued to May 20, 2020 by a vote of +7 -0. On May 20, 2020, without hearing, continued to June 3, 2020. On June 3, 2020, without hearing, continued to June 17, 2020. On June 17, 2020, after closing public comment, continued to July 1, 2020 by a vote of +7 -0.

Continued to August 5, 2020
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Regular Meeting 
 


NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Wednesday, July 1, 2020 San Francisco Historic Preservation Commission 
Remote Meeting has been canceled. The next Regular Meeting of the Historic Preservation Commission is 
scheduled for Wednesday, July 15, 2020. 
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A. THE FOLLOWING ITEMS SHALL BE CONTINUED TO THE DATES NOTED  
 


1. 2016-003351CWP (S CALTAGIRONE: (415) 558--6625) 
RESOLUTION CENTERING THE PLANNING DEPARTMENT’S WORK PROGRAM AND RESOURCE 
ALLOCATION ON RACIAL AND SOCIAL EQUITY – Adoption of a Resolution centering the 
Planning Department’s work program and resource allocation on racial and social equity; 
acknowledging the history of inequitable planning policies that have resulted in racial 
disparities; directing the Department to implement its Racial and Social Equity Action Plan; 
directing the Department to develop proactive strategies to address structural and 
institutional racism, in collaboration with Black and Indigenous communities and 
Communities of Color; directing the Department to amend its hiring and promotion 
practices to ensure that the Department’s staff reflects the diversity and demographics of 
the community; recommending that the Board of Supervisors condemn discriminatory 
government actions; and, directing the Department to build accountability through 
metrics and reporting.  
Preliminary Recommendation: Adopt 
Continued to July 15, 2020 


 
2. 2020-005179PCA (V. FLORES: (415) 575-9173) 


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


 
3. 2018-009197COA (S. FERGUSON: (415) 575-9074) 


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
public comment, continued to July 1, 2020 by a vote of +7 -0. 
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

		2016-003351CWP		Racial & Social Equity				to: 7/15						Chion

						Resolution

		2020-005179PCA		Nonconforming Parking Lots - Mission Street Neighborhood Commercial Transit District				to: 7/15						Flores

						Planning Code Amendment

		2018-009197COA		1772 Vallejo Street				fr: 4/15; 5/6; 5/20; 6/3; 6/17						Ferguson

						Three story rear addition		to: 7/15

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
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		&T &D
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
Subject: FW: *** STATEMENT *** MAYOR LONDON BREED RECOGNIZES ESSENTIAL WORKERS AS CITY REOPENS
Date: Wednesday, June 24, 2020 4:34:42 PM
Attachments: 06.24.2020 Essential Workers Week.pdf

 
 
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
Date: Wednesday, June 24, 2020 at 3:38 PM
To: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>
Subject: *** STATEMENT *** MAYOR LONDON BREED RECOGNIZES ESSENTIAL
WORKERS AS CITY REOPENS
 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Wednesday, June 24, 2020
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org
 

*** STATEMENT ***
MAYOR LONDON BREED RECOGNIZES ESSENTIAL

WORKERS AS CITY REOPENS
Mayor London Breed today recognized the contributions and sacrifice of San Francisco’s
essential workforce:
“Essential workers have kept the City moving and our residents safe. They are our healthcare
workers, first responders, sanitation workers, teachers, grocery store workers, transit operators,
street cleaners, restaurant and food workers, childcare providers, hardware store clerks, utility
workers, postal and delivery workers, community outreach workers, disaster service workers,
and many, many others who are serving the people of San Francisco during the COVID-19
health crisis.
 
“I want to thank and recognize these workers who continued to work outside the home as we
asked everyone else to shelter in place to slow the spread of COVID-19. Day after day they
took care of our city when we needed it most. As we reopen San Francisco, the best way we
can thank our essential workers is to do everything we can to protect their health and safety by
wearing a face covering, physically distancing from each other, staying home when we are
sick and washing hands frequently. Please join me in celebrating Essential Worker Week!”
 
Mayor Breed issued a proclamation declaring this week Essential Worker Week and

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
asked everyone else to shelter in place to slow the spread of COVID-19. Day after day they took 
care of our city when we needed it most. As we reopen San Francisco, the best way we can thank 
our essential workers is to do everything we can to protect their health and safety by wearing a 
face covering, physically distancing from each other, staying home when we are sick and 
washing hands frequently. Please join me in celebrating Essential Worker Week!” 
 
Mayor Breed issued a proclamation declaring this week Essential Worker Week and 
encouraged the public to thank essential workers in person and on social media using the 
hashtag #EssentiallyYoursSF. 
 


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
Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED LAUNCHES SECOND SUMMER OF SAN FRANCISCO

MUSEUMS FOR ALL
Date: Wednesday, June 24, 2020 4:34:31 PM
Attachments: 06.24.20 SF Musuems for All.pdf

 
 
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
Date: Wednesday, June 24, 2020 at 11:47 AM
To: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>
Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED LAUNCHES SECOND
SUMMER OF SAN FRANCISCO MUSEUMS FOR ALL
 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Wednesday, June 24, 2020
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org
 

*** PRESS RELEASE ***
MAYOR LONDON BREED LAUNCHES SECOND SUMMER OF

SAN FRANCISCO MUSEUMS FOR ALL
Initiative to include free online and digital resources through “Museums from Home” in
addition to free or reduced admission to local museums and cultural institutions for San

Francisco residents who receive public benefits
 
San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed today announced the second summer of the
San Francisco Museums For All initiative, which will build upon last year’s program to
provide free or reduced admissions to local museums and cultural institutions for low-income
San Franciscans who receive public benefits, including Medi-Cal and CalFresh.
 
The City’s reopening plan and timeline was updated on Monday, June 22 to allow for indoor
museum programming to begin as early as June 29. As some indoor museums reopen with
modifications, the San Francisco Museums For All program will work with museum partners
to provide free or reduced admission to museums and cultural institutions for San Franciscans
that receive public benefits through the summer.
 
Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, many local museums and cultural institutions have shifted to
online or digital programming. As such, the program is also being updated to include 

mailto:jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
mailto:Josephine.Feliciano@sfgov.org
mailto:jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
http://www.sfplanning.org/
mailto:mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org
http://sfmuseumsforall.org/
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
San Francisco Museums For All initiative, which will build upon last year’s program to provide 
free or reduced admissions to local museums and cultural institutions for low-income San 
Franciscans who receive public benefits, including Medi-Cal and CalFresh.  
 
The City’s reopening plan and timeline was updated on Monday, June 22 to allow for indoor 
museum programming to begin as early as June 29. As some indoor museums reopen with 
modifications, the San Francisco Museums For All program will work with museum partners to 
provide free or reduced admission to museums and cultural institutions for San Franciscans that 
receive public benefits through the summer.  
 
Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, many local museums and cultural institutions have shifted to 
online or digital programming. As such, the program is also being updated to include  
“San Francisco Museums From Home,” a catalog of resources that provide free online access for 
members of the public to exhibits, activities, and interactive programs at over a dozen local 
museums and cultural institutions.  
 
“As San Francisco works to safely reopen and help people get back to work, I am excited that 
many of our local museums will continue to open their doors to all San Franciscans, regardless 
of their income, so everyone has the opportunity to access our City’s world-class arts and 
cultural institutions,” said Mayor Breed. “As families continue to take precautions to prevent the 
spread of coronavirus, expanding this initiative to include free online programming will help 
connect even more families and children to the arts.”  
 
Nearly one in four San Franciscans receive public benefits from the San Francisco Human 
Services Agency (HSA). With thousands more San Franciscans applying for public benefits 
through HSA in the time since Mayor Breed declared a local emergency due to coronavirus, and 
nearly one in five San Franciscans experiencing unemployment, the number of families eligible 
for San Francisco Museums For All is expected to increase dramatically.  
 
Admission fees at many museums and cultural institutions can range from $20 to $150 for a 
family of four to visit, creating a barrier for many people to access the cultural and educational 



mailto:mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org
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benefits that these institutions offer. The San Francisco Museums For All program aims to break 
down that barrier to open doors of opportunity for families, especially low-income families, to 
experience arts and cultural education programming.  
 
In its first summer, more than 25,000 San Franciscans participated in Museums For All program, 
visiting museums and cultural institutions including SF MoMA, the California Academy of 
Sciences, the de Young Museum, and nearly a dozen others. A full list of last year’s participating 
museums and cultural institutions is below. However, due to the COVID-19 pandemic, while 
indoor museum programs are able to reopen as soon as June 29, residents are strongly 
encouraged to visit the museums’ websites or contact museums directly for more details on each 
institution’s reopening plan.  
 
“We are joined in a common experience as residents of a great city when we visit San 
Francisco’s history and science and art museums,” said Trent Rhorer, Executive Director of the 
San Francisco Human Services Agency. “I’m proud that at this moment, when so many are 
experiencing setbacks, the city’s cultural institutions are sustaining their commitment to a 
common goal of inclusion.” 
 
The San Francisco Museums For All program was created in collaboration with Treasurer José 
Cisneros’s Financial Justice Project, which works to ensure that lower-income residents receive 
discounts on fines and fees that place a disproportionate burden on low-income families, and to 
streamline eligibility processes for these discounts. It was also created in collaboration with San 
Francisco Grants for the Arts and the San Francisco Arts Commission.  
 
“No one should be excluded from the rich cultural life our city because of the size of their 
wallet,” said Treasurer Jose Cisneros. “San Francisco Museums For All ensures our cultural 
institutions are open and accessible to everyone.”  
 
“I greatly appreciate the museums joining us in this effort,” said Matthew Goudeau, Director of 
Grants for the Arts. “It’s been a challenging time for most of these institutions, yet they have 
stepped up in significant ways to partner with the City to expand access to their spaces, whether 
in-person or virtual. Together, we will continue to remove barriers that prevent all people, 
regardless of income, from enjoying the best of San Francisco’s cultural offerings.” 
 
“The Arts Commission is excited to support San Francisco Museums For All in its second year, 
ensuring all San Franciscans have access to diverse cultural experiences, and the transformative 
power of art,” said Rebekah Krell, Acting Director of Cultural Affairs for the San Francisco Arts 
Commission. 
 
When museums that participate in San Francisco Museums For All reopen, residents who 
currently receive Medi-Cal or CalFresh benefits from HSA can receive free or reduced 
admission at participating museums for up to four individuals when they present their Electronic 
Benefits Transfer or Medi-Cal card and proof of San Francisco residency.  
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Participating cultural institutions include:  
 


• Asian Art Museum 
• Cable Car Museum 
• California Academy of Sciences 
• Cartoon Art Museum 
• Children's Creativity Museum 
• Chinese Culture Center of 


San Francisco 
• Chinese Historical Society of America 
• Conservatory of Flowers 
• de Young Museum 
• Exploratorium 
• GLBT Historical Society Museum 
• Legion of Honor Museum 


• Museum of Craft and Design 
• Museum of the African Diaspora 
• Randall Museum 
• San Francisco Botanical Garden 
• San Francisco Museum of Modern Art 


(SFMOMA) 
• San Francisco Railway Museum 
• SF Recreation & Parks Japanese Tea 


Garden 
• The Contemporary Jewish Museum 
• The Presidio 
• Yerba Buena Center for the Arts  


 
More information can be found at the San Francisco Museums For All website, by calling 311 or 
emailing sfmuseumsforall@sfgov.org.  
 
 


### 
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“San Francisco Museums From Home,” a catalog of resources that provide free online access
for members of the public to exhibits, activities, and interactive programs at over a dozen local
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
cultural institutions,” said Mayor Breed. “As families continue to take precautions to prevent
the spread of coronavirus, expanding this initiative to include free online programming will
help connect even more families and children to the arts.”
 
Nearly one in four San Franciscans receive public benefits from the San Francisco Human
Services Agency (HSA). With thousands more San Franciscans applying for public benefits
through HSA in the time since Mayor Breed declared a local emergency due to coronavirus,
and nearly one in five San Franciscans experiencing unemployment, the number of families
eligible for San Francisco Museums For All is expected to increase dramatically.
 
Admission fees at many museums and cultural institutions can range from $20 to $150 for a
family of four to visit, creating a barrier for many people to access the cultural and educational
benefits that these institutions offer. The San Francisco Museums For All program aims to
break down that barrier to open doors of opportunity for families, especially low-income
families, to experience arts and cultural education programming.
 
In its first summer, more than 25,000 San Franciscans participated in Museums For All
program, visiting museums and cultural institutions including SF MoMA, the California
Academy of Sciences, the de Young Museum, and nearly a dozen others. A full list of last
year’s participating museums and cultural institutions is below. However, due to the COVID-
19 pandemic, while indoor museum programs are able to reopen as soon as June 29, residents
are strongly encouraged to visit the museums’ websites or contact museums directly for more
details on each institution’s reopening plan.
 
“We are joined in a common experience as residents of a great city when we visit San
Francisco’s history and science and art museums,” said Trent Rhorer, Executive Director of
the San Francisco Human Services Agency. “I’m proud that at this moment, when so many are
experiencing setbacks, the city’s cultural institutions are sustaining their commitment to a
common goal of inclusion.”
 
The San Francisco Museums For All program was created in collaboration with Treasurer José
Cisneros’s Financial Justice Project, which works to ensure that lower-income residents
receive discounts on fines and fees that place a disproportionate burden on low-income
families, and to streamline eligibility processes for these discounts. It was also created in
collaboration with San Francisco Grants for the Arts and the San Francisco Arts Commission.
 
“No one should be excluded from the rich cultural life our city because of the size of their
wallet,” said Treasurer Jose Cisneros. “San Francisco Museums For All ensures our cultural
institutions are open and accessible to everyone.”
 
“I greatly appreciate the museums joining us in this effort,” said Matthew Goudeau, Director
of Grants for the Arts. “It’s been a challenging time for most of these institutions, yet they
have stepped up in significant ways to partner with the City to expand access to their spaces,



whether in-person or virtual. Together, we will continue to remove barriers that prevent all
people, regardless of income, from enjoying the best of San Francisco’s cultural offerings.”
 
“The Arts Commission is excited to support San Francisco Museums For All in its second
year, ensuring all San Franciscans have access to diverse cultural experiences, and the
transformative power of art,” said Rebekah Krell, Acting Director of Cultural Affairs for the
San Francisco Arts Commission.
 
When museums that participate in San Francisco Museums For All reopen, residents who
currently receive Medi-Cal or CalFresh benefits from HSA can receive free or reduced
admission at participating museums for up to four individuals when they present their
Electronic Benefits Transfer or Medi-Cal card and proof of San Francisco residency.
 
 
Participating cultural institutions include:
 
 

Asian Art Museum
Cable Car Museum
California Academy of Sciences
Cartoon Art Museum
Children's Creativity Museum
Chinese Culture Center of
San Francisco
Chinese Historical Society of America
Conservatory of Flowers
de Young Museum
Exploratorium
GLBT Historical Society Museum
Legion of Honor Museum
Museum of Craft and Design
Museum of the African Diaspora
Randall Museum
San Francisco Botanical Garden
San Francisco Museum of Modern Art (SFMOMA)
San Francisco Railway Museum
SF Recreation & Parks Japanese Tea Garden
The Contemporary Jewish Museum
The Presidio
Yerba Buena Center for the Arts

 
More information can be found at the San Francisco Museums For All website, by calling 311
or emailing sfmuseumsforall@sfgov.org.
 
 

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
Subject: FW: How will your city recover after the lockdown?
Date: Tuesday, June 23, 2020 10:57:58 AM
Attachments: BCP - Getting Back to Work.pdf

 
 
 
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
 
 

From: Greg Brooks <gbrooks@better-cities.org> 
Sent: Tuesday, June 23, 2020 9:50 AM
To: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>
Subject: How will your city recover after the lockdown?
 

 

As cities emerge from COVID-19 related lockdowns, one question looms: How can
communities get back on their feet and back to work, jump-starting a local economic
recovery?

The task is daunting, but with the right policies and priorities, you and your colleagues have
a big opportunity not only to help your city recover, but to put it on a firmer foundation for
growth.

The attached report from Better Cities Project, Getting Back To Work, is an economic
recovery playbook. It contains dozens of reforms for boosting entrepreneurship and jobs
alongside long-term resiliency improvements. The report is also available online at
https://gettingbacktowork.org. No dry theory here – just practical, ready-to-implement policy
ideas for a stronger local economy.

Your elected officials have received a copy of this report, and I hope you’ll find the playbook
a useful, eye-opening tool as your chart your city’s recovery. The authors are available for
presentations or discussions about specific concerns in your community, and Better Cities

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
http://outreach.bcpprojects.org/index.php/campaigns/ll972x31fl796/track-url/yp553olxo8ac8/f7335fd4633c17efa1995d2850abf2e4ff9ec7aa
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Better Cities Project (BCP)  
is a nonprofit that researches and 


promotes practical policy solutions for 
America’s largest cities.


M I S S I O N 


BCP uncovers ideas that work, 


promotes realistic solutions and 


forges partnerships that help people 


in America’s largest cities live free 


and happy lives. 
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ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT
Evidence-based strategies in 
the wake of COVID-19


TAXES AND  
FISCAL POLICY
How should you think  
about finances?


HOUSING 
AND ZONING
The right housing solutions 
can make communities 
economically resilient and 
healthier, too


PERMITTING AND 
LICENSING
Strategies to promote job 
growth


TRANSIT AND 
TRANSPORTATION
Now’s the time for cities to 
embrace flexible options


TRANSPARENT, 
OPEN GOVERNMENT
During the recovery, everyone 
will be watching


�


�


��


��


��


��


INTRODUCTION: 
WHAT’S NEXT?
Faced with pandemic-driven economic contraction, 
every city leader now faces a big question: What’s next?


The stakes couldn’t be higher. Recovery won’t be 
uniform — some communities will bounce back more 
quickly than others, and pockets of growth will exist 
alongside sustained economic contraction.


We think there are practical answers to the question of 
what’s next, and we’ve compiled them into this eco-
nomic recovery playbook and its companion website at 
gettingbacktowork.org.


Some recommendations are broad and others are 
specific enough to warrant model ordinance language, 
which we have included. But all share a few traits:


u  They’re practical. Every recommendation is some-
thing a city can undertake without wholesale reorga-
nization or months-long studies.


u  They’re backed by research. We’ve tapped experts 
from around the country for solutions based on their 
years-long investigations into what works.


u  They’re focused on short- to medium-term time-
frames. Because that’s where the greatest opportu-
nity for a powerful recovery lies.


For cities to thrive, their leaders need the tools and 
information to make informed, innovative decisions. The 
policies suggested in this guide can be a foundation, not 
just for getting back to normal, but for your community 
to flourish for years.


Greg Brooks 
President, Better Cities Project
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DEVELOPMENT
Evidence-based strategies in the wake of COVID-19
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D uring the Great Recession, cities across the 
United States dramatically expanded their use 
of targeted economic development incentives 


in an attempt to curb job losses and jump-start eco-
nomic recoveries. In retrospect, the evidence is clear: 
Most programs were broadly ineffective at creating 
jobs or growing economies. However, the costs they 
incurred frequently still burden municipal budgets to-
day, hindering fiscal resiliency when it’s most needed.  
In the aftermath of COVID-19, cities will be tempted to make the same sort of economic 
development deals. It is critical for local government officials to recognize that the stan-
dard economic development model of subsidies, tax abatements and other incentives 
is ineffective at best and harmful at worst to job creation and economic growth. Despite 
the claims of sophisticated consultants who travel the country advertising their ability 
to maximize incentive packages for corporate clients, economic development subsi-
dies simply do not get the job done.


  


BY JOHN C. MOZENA
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Academic research and real-world experience 
demonstrate that economic development incen-
tives:


u  Do not create any more jobs or economic 
growth than would have happened otherwise.


u  Impose costs on cities in the form of reduced 
revenues and increased liabilities.


u  Make local economies less free, less fair, less 
inclusive, less resilient, less entrepreneurial, 
less innovative and more biased in favor of 
large incumbent businesses. 


Political pressure for state and local officials to 
“do something” to spur business activity will be 
significant and supported by the businesses and 
consultants that stand to profit. But policymak-
ers should ensure constituents understand that 
these programs come at a cost to taxpayers, to 
the business community as a whole and to public 
services such as police, fire, public health, roads, 
schools and more. 


History shows those costs are often unacceptable.


Constituents understand this trade-off if it is ex-
plained to them. In their investigations into the 
interactions of politics and economic develop-
ment, Nathan Jensen at the University of Texas 
at Austin and Edmund Malesky at Duke University 
found that while nonpartisan voters broadly sup-
port economic development “job creation” when 
presented to them without context, that support 
disappears when voters learn these incentives 
take resources that otherwise would be available 
for other government programs or available for 
return to taxpayers. Anyone concerned about 
backlash from constituents can and should focus 
on educating the public about the costs these 
programs impose on a community.


By avoiding the targeted-incentive trap, cities can 
instead focus on how existing resources and reg-
ulatory structures encourage or discourage busi-
ness activity of all shapes and sizes – and adapt 
them to the post-pandemic world. Readers should 
examine the other chapters in this playbook for 
ideas on how they can spur real economic growth 
without impoverishing public coffers.


� BAD IDEAS
Professional sports stadiums are arguably the 
worst thing cities regularly subsidize — they sit 
empty and unused far more often than not, and 
offer largely part-time seasonal jobs. Even a 
high-attendance baseball stadium’s 3 million fans 
per year across 81 games is only equivalent to the 
annual customer count of a single big-box store. 
All told, pro sports teams generate a fraction of 
a percent of the average city’s economic activity, 
despite how loudly the fans may cheer.


Data centers have massive up-front capital 
and energy costs for operators. Their payrolls, 
however, are tiny. Once built, they require very 
few employees to manage what are essentially 
warehouses for computers operated remotely by 
programmers in other states or countries. That’s 
how some data center deals have ended up with 
price tags of more than $1 million per subsidized 
job. Unless you’re selling them electricity, data 
centers have minimal economic impact.


Distribution centers for online retailers or logis-
tics companies are located where the customers 
are, where the roads are and where there’s avail-
able property. Tax incentives won’t get a retailer 
or logistics company to put a distribution center 
someplace where its customers aren’t or where 
the property or road infrastructure will interfere 
with its daily operations.
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THE EVIDENCE  
AGAINST 
INCENTIVES
Economic development incentives are one of the few topics 
that unite experts from left, right and center against them. 
They are programs with such broad opposition that an econ-
omist from the free-market Mercatus Center can write in a 
conservative publication like National Review that “Alexan-
dria Ocasio-Cortez Is Right about Amazon’s Corporate Wel-
fare;” or where traditional opponents such as Americans for 
Prosperity and public-sector unions can find common cause 
in working to scale them back at the state level.


In fact, virtually the only research that supports the common 
model of economic development incentives are studies paid 
for by subsidy recipients or other beneficiaries of the mas-
sive economic development industry. 


Driven in part by new Government Accounting Standards 
Board (GASB, pronounced “gazz-bee”) accounting rules 
that made tax abatements public record, high-profile ex-
perts have become increasingly vocal in their conclusion 
that incentives incur huge costs while delivering few — if any 
— benefits. And they have the real-world numbers to prove it.


Richard Florida, one of the best-known urban policy experts 
in North America, bluntly calls targeted business incentives 
“useless,” pointing out that there is no connection between 
how much a city or state spends on them and any meaning-
ful measurement of economic well-being. Using data from 
a New York Times investigation, he wrote in 2012, “We found 
no statistically significant association between econom-
ic development incentives per capita and average wages 
or incomes; none between incentives and college grads or 
knowledge workers; and none between incentives and the 
state unemployment rate.”


Researchers at the University of Connecticut and University 
of North Carolina-Chapel Hill put it even more simply: “This 
simple but direct finding — that incentives do not create jobs 
— should prove critical to policymakers.”


One reason for this certainty: Enough time has passed for 
many deals from the Great Recession era to be ripe for  


SPOTLIGHT


THE TIF 
EQUATION
One local tax mechanism that does often 
impact site selection is tax increment 
financing (TIF), but the usual result of TIF 
is not meaningful job creation or econom-
ic growth. 


Rather, TIF districts generally tend to drain 
existing or potential economic activity 
from elsewhere in a community and 
concentrate it in the district. While this 
may create the impression of success, 
the actual result is all too often a reshuf-
fling rather than a revitalization of a local 
economy. 


TIF districts do well at the expense of 
nearby neighborhoods, and frequently 
by draining resources from schools and 
other valuable public services.


It’s also critical to recognize that the “pays 
for itself” TIF model is dependent on 
steadily upward growth. In a flat economy 
or recession, the TIF equation can turn 
against a community, especially if bond 
debt or other obligations were incurred. 
In the current downturn, many municipal-
ities are being forced to cover TIF district 
liabilities right when their general funds 
can least bear the strain.
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analysis. The results are overwhelmingly negative, such 
as from researchers at the University of Illinois at Chica-
go who looked at Rust Belt states’ incentive programs 
and found no “compelling evidence that economic de-
velopment subsidies created or retained jobs to help 
municipalities recover from the Great Recession.” 


Why? Because state and local economic development 
incentives rarely change what businesses were al-
ready going to do. Timothy Bartik at the Upjohn Insti-
tute for Employment Research surveyed the available 
research and came to the conclusion that in seven out 
of every eight state and local incentive deals, recipi-
ent businesses would have done the exact same thing 
without the incentive, based on all the other business 
and economic factors already in play. Since even the 
incentives that do change a site selection decision 
sometimes end up costing more than they were worth, 


it’s realistic to estimate that more than 90% of the in-
centive deals made around the nation incur more in 
costs than they deliver in benefits to the community. 


Businesses make decisions about what to build and 
where, how many employees to hire and other such 
choices based on a complex web of factors. While the 
details of each decision are unique, some common 
threads appear in surveys of business decisionmak-
ers, site selection consultants and others involved in 
these sorts of decisions. They include availability to 
attract skilled labor; ease and speed of construction 
and occupancy; the regulatory environment; and small 
business and entrepreneurship. The remaining chap-
ters in this playbook address how municipal leaders 
can improve those things in their cities — for everyone, 
not just the bigger companies whose development at-
torneys have them on speed dial.


BY THE NUMBERS: THE COST OF 
BAD ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 


�x
Economic 


development 
incentives are three 


times larger as a 
share of the national 
economy than they 


were in 1990.


���
More than 540 


multi-jurisdictional 
economic 


development 
agencies compete 


with each other 
around the country.


�. %


State and local taxes 
account for only 


1.8% of the average 
business’s costs.


��
The aggregate cost 


of U.S. state and 
local incentive deals 
could fund 10 state 
budgets combined.







TAXES AND  
FISCAL POLICY
How should you think about finances?
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Y ou don’t need to be told that getting through 
the next couple years will be a challenge. Your 
first task was to deal with a global pandemic 


that spreads faster the more people connect. Like a 
business that books restructuring charges in a quarter 
when it’s losing money already, taking the opportunity 
now to set a strong financial foundation will help make 
future decisions easier and likely set up your city for 
greater successes. 
The most effective response we knew in March was to close those businesses that 
most define our cities — the restaurants, bars, theaters, sports venues, hotels, church-
es, mosques, stores, gyms, salons, even libraries, schools and colleges — and encour-
age people to stay home. As the shutdowns went from two weeks to four weeks and 
beyond, businesses found it harder to stay alive and a public health threat also became 
an economic threat. 


Now, it’s not clear when or how our economies will rebound. Some neighborhoods are 
hurting worse than others and some businesses will never recover. 


But while you struggle with the personal and social tolls on the place you love, and pos-
sibly even your own business, you also must balance the city’s budget. 


Sales taxes have fallen and will remain low for months, as will other revenue sources 
except maybe property taxes, which usually are paid through escrow accounts tied to 
mortgages. Many cities have provided grace for municipal water, gas and electricity, 
which means enterprise funds will also have less money. 


Most municipal expenses, however, cannot shrink as much. Trash still needs to be col-
lected. Police still need to patrol the streets. Buses still need to run, even with few riders.


What do you do?


Clarity can come from crisis, and this crisis may be an ideal time to reconsider the city 
budget from first principles on good financial management and good government.  


BY JOE COLETTI
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SPENDING


You can’t out-earn bad spending habits forever. Cities and 
counties of all sizes have been raising taxes and dipping into 
reserves to cover day-to-day expenses – some as a matter of 
habit for years or even decades.


u  Know what you have spent and what you will spend. This 
means tracking the bills that will be due in the coming 
months, when they are paid and how that compares to past 
spending. 


u  Control what you spend. Are there ways you can reduce the 
cost of programs you must maintain? What future obliga-
tions are you taking on with each dollar spent today?


u  Use standard accounting principles. Comparing your spend-
ing with other local governments is a worthwhile and import-
ant yardstick – and you can bet that if you’re not doing the 
comparison, members of the media or citizens eventually 
will. 


u  Make it difficult to increase inflation-adjusted spending per 
resident. Circumstances will force you to run a lean budget 
this year. Residents and investors will be glad to see guard-
rails to keep spending growth in check even as the economy 
recovers and revenues grow. Restrained spending in the past 
would have helped now. Providing restraint now could make 
the crisis a little less painful.


DEBT


Leverage is powerful, but with great power comes great respon-
sibility. 


u  Limit total debt and limit how much locally generated tax 
revenue can be dedicated to principal and interest pay-
ments. Set those limits low and do not take on debt that 
would exceed them.


u  Borrowing should not be used to increase current spend-
ing. In the recent past, it was tempting to take on debt to 
have more available for current expenses. Now, as then, the 
debt-service cost will be tacked on to other operating costs 
– exactly the wrong trendline for already-stressed city bud-
gets right now.


u  There’s no free lunch, even from the Fed. In the midst of the 
COVID-19 crisis, the Federal Reserve offered to purchase 
$500 billion in short-term debt from states, the 140 counties 
with populations above 500,000 and the 90 cities with popu-
lations above 250,000 to help them through the cash crunch.


John Cooper knew when he became mayor 
of Nashville, Tennessee. that the budget was 
precarious. Spending had grown faster than 
revenue across city government, which left 
large and growing budget shortfalls — up to 
$41.5 million for the current fiscal year by the 
time Cooper was elected in November 2019. 
Then a killer tornado struck on March 2, taking 
the lives of as many as 28 people and causing 
an estimated $1.1 billion in damage. Less than 
three weeks later, the physical damage was 
matched by the public health crisis and eco-
nomic devastation of the coronavirus.


Nashville is expected to lose $472 million over 
16 months as a result of the pandemic. With 
no reserves to help, Cooper has recommended 
a 32% property tax hike to raise $332 million, 
savings and cost reductions of $165 million, 
and other revenue increases of $69 million. 
Some of the $122 million in federal assistance 
through the Coronavirus Aid, Relief and Eco-
nomic Security (CARES) Act could help reduce 
the tax increase if Congress allows its use to 
offset lost revenue. His cuts have been minor, 
but 50% reductions in economic incentive 
payments and assistance to nonprofits and 
chambers of commerce could set the stage 
for more fundamental restructuring of city 
government. If reform does follow, Nashville’s 
fiscal crisis could leave the city better able to 
meet future fiscal threats.


SPOTLIGHT


BACK-TO-BACK 
DISASTERS 
CHALLENGE 
NASHVILLE







This may look like a useful tool to help with cash flow, 
but most cities should be glad they don’t qualify and 
those that are large enough would do better to bear the 
pain now than to delay it and add even modest amounts 
of interest. Taking on debt to bridge lost revenue means 
when the debt comes due, today’s troubles will be com-
peting with tomorrow’s immediate needs. The debt 
is not an investment that means higher revenue in the 
future, and given the deep uncertainty about the post-
COVID economy, you want options not obligations.


u  If you do borrow, use debt for major capital expens-
es, not operations. Get voter approval to use general 
obligation bonds and make clear the property tax in-
crease needed to pay for the new debt.


REVENUES


There is always a temptation to increase taxes to paper 
over poor decision-making. Fiscal discipline comes not 
only from restricting revenue, but from restricting the 
number of revenue streams. 


u  Have a small number of taxes and fees so they do 
not mask the fiscal burden of government for you or 
your taxpayers. 


u  Make a tax on land or real property with limited ex-
emptions the primary tool for raising local revenue. 
It provides more-consistent revenue and likely fluc-
tuates less than a sales tax. Do your best to keep tax 
revenue neutral with each revaluation for the first 
year so tax increases are visible. It would be better to 
vote on revenue before spending.


u  Use taxes to fund government and fees to fund spe-
cific functions. Do not use taxes or fees to coerce 
behavior modification. 


u  Limit the ability of general government or specific 
agencies to profit from fees and fines. For example, 
all receipts from fines and forfeitures go to education 
funding in North Carolina, which means municipali-
ties have less financial incentive to write speeding 
tickets and people can trust their government more.


STATE AND 
FEDERAL
Mandates and money go together like 
peas and carrots.


u  Look at your budget for what is nec-
essary simply by being a city, what 
your residents want and what the city 
does to be eligible for state or federal 
grants. There are benefits and costs 
to creating a municipal government. 
Some costs are imposed by the state 
to ensure the city can carry out its core 
functions. Ensure residents know what 
those core functions are and manag-
ers understand their responsibility to 
keep costs low.


u  There are usually strings attached; 
consider them. Cities can improve 
their fiscal health by understanding 
and carefully weighing the liabilities 
created when voluntarily taking state 
or federal funds. 


u  Have clarity about your assumptions 
and funding sources. Clearly indicate 
in budgets the amounts dependent 
on other government funding and the 
amounts mandated by state or federal 
governments.


B E T T E R  C I T I E S  P R O J E C T
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PENSIONS


IN GOOD  
SHAPE? LOCK IN  
SUSTAINABILITY.
If your city is well-prepared for 
the future pension and health 
care needs of retirees, take steps 
now to ensure continued sustain-
ability with lower discount rates, 
higher employer and employee 
contributions, and potentially 
changes in the plan for new 
employees.


BONDING 
PENSION DEBT  
IS A BAD IDEA.


High general-debt levels only 
make this more complicated 
because bondholders are first 
in line to be paid unless a city 
declares bankruptcy.


It is becoming trickier 
to balance the interests 
of retired workers, 
current and future 
employees, taxpayers 
and government 
beneficiaries. Few cities 
or states have enough 
set aside to cover the 
pension promises they 
have made to employees. 
Bad decisions made in 
the past affect those 
in office today and 
those who will be hired 
tomorrow.


ON SHAKY 
GROUND? FOCUS 
ON SOLUTIONS.
If your city already cannot afford 
its promises to retirees, you will 
need to work with your citizens, 
employees and state government 
to balance employee benefits 
and current services. This is not 
easy at any time, but the need to 
tackle these difficult questions 
can be clearer in a crisis.


G E T T I N G B A C K T O W O R K . O R G
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REPORTING AND OVERSIGHT
The information needed to run government well is 
the same information residents, activists, journal-
ists and businesses would want. Municipalities do 
not collect data on their operations and financials to 
make informed decisions on the best use of people 
or resources.


u  Make financial information understandable and 
available. This includes making Comprehensive 
Annual Financial Reports (CAFRs, pronounced 
“caffers”), available in a way that citizens can un-
derstand and compare to other local governments 
in your state. Post finances in a machine-readable 
format within six months of the fiscal year-end. 


u  Meet or exceed Generally Accepted Accounting 
Principles (GAAP, pronounced “gap”) and Gov-
ernment Accounting Services Board (GASB, pro-


nounced “gazz-bee”) statements in your report-
ing. Consider using accrual-based accounting for 
financial reports to know when costs are incurred, 
not simply when cash goes out.


u  Clearly account for liabilities such as pensions, 
retiree health benefits and infrastructure main-
tenance and replacement. Have that accounting 
independently verified. 


u  With so many cities facing crises, states could 
respond with greater oversight. Be prepared for 
it. If your state does not already have one, it may 
create a commission to monitor local government 
finances, approve debt issuance and provide as-
sistance in some cases. Such a commission could 
step in before a state would take over and appoint 
an emergency manager for a city.


No city will come through the current crisis completely unscathed, 
but some were — and more can be — better prepared. Applying 


these simple principles to your budget can help your city come out 
of this crisis stronger.


B E T T E R  C I T I E S  P R O J E C T
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RESILIENCY


As your finances recover, you can implement changes  
that will leave your city better prepared for the next crisis.


 BORROW LESS 
AND SAVE MORE.
Build savings to prepare for storms, other 
natural disasters and economic down-
turns. Once you have built an adequate 
reserve without taking on new debt for 
capital projects, you can make paying 
down existing debts and unfunded liabili-
ties a priority.


STAFFING,  
EQUIPMENT AND 
TECHNOLOGIES 
SHOULD CHANGE 
WITH THE TIMES.
All three should be managed in a way 
that is responsive to changes in the 
economy or citizens’ needs.


LOOK FOR WAYS 
TO SAVE MONEY 
THROUGH SHARED 
CONTRACTS.
Natural partners include  the state, ad 
hoc groups of cities with similar needs 
or intergovernmental associations.


SHARING EXPERTISE 
CAN BE A SOURCE OF 
REVENUE.
Some cities provide water to neighboring 
towns and others share fire departments 
and sheriffs’ deputies with their coun-
ties. IT and administrative services are 
also possibilities


G E T T I N G B A C K T O W O R K . O R G
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HOUSING
AND ZONING
The right housing solutions can make communities 
economically resilient – and healthier, too
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R ebounding from the COVID-19 crisis requires 
great private investments alongside public ef-
forts to restore economic vitality. Cities that 


attract and accelerate those private investments — in 
jobs, housing and human services — will be well on the 
way to a complete recovery.  
Where housing costs are high, allowing new housing construction is low-hanging fruit 
as an economic recovery strategy. New housing investments boost tax bases and at-
tract workers and entrepreneurs. Housing expansion also eases financial strains for 
existing residents by slowing rent growth. 


Three steps can address long-standing challenges in most cities that are exacerbated 
by the COVID-19 crisis: safely housing the homeless, encouraging rapid re-use of va-
cant space and streamlining regulatory approvals.


  


BY SALIM FURTH, EMILY HAMILTON 
AND BRIAN HODGES
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Just beyond the city limits of Austin, Texas, Mobile Loaves & Fishes 
built a master-planned community for people who had experienced 
chronic homelessness. Their 51-acre site includes RV parking places, 
cottages and a central hall. Mobile Loaves & Fishes builds many 
services into the Community First! site, including several businesses 
where residents earn a living. It looks like a state park campground. 
But unlike a campground, the village needs to be located near the 
jobs, commerce and customers that the surrounding city provides. 


The village’s FAQ explains its zoning: “Community First! Village sits 
just outside of the City of Austin city limits; therefore, there is no 
zoning. We do, however, have to comply with certain state regula-
tions involving density and water quality.” In zoned areas, regulatory 
approval would be necessary to introduce the Community First! mod-
el. Cities can work with non-profit partners to identify and re-zone 
specific sites for village-style occupancy.


SAFELY HOUSING THE HOMELESS
Homelessness is not a new problem in cities, but it may become more widespread and riskier because of the 
COVID-19 crisis. Although homelessness is more closely linked to high housing costs than to poverty, it is likely 
to rise in 2020 as employment collapses. Providing safe places for the very poorest to live is not only a matter of 
improving public health, it’s directly related to the underlying purpose of economic policy: creating an environment 
where every resident can thrive.


Traditional dormitory-style shelters may also spread 
viruses, and homeless people may be understandably 
hesitant to risk sleeping in them. Since homeless peo-
ple come in frequent contact with the healthcare sys-
tem, their exposure to contagion creates additional risk 
for medical professionals and other patients.


Cities can ease the costs of homelessness, both in tra-
ditional and contagion terms, with single-occupancy 
shelters. These include sheds, tiny homes, 3D-printed 
homes, converted motels and even vehicles owned by 
homeless people. These can be publicly or privately 
funded and delivered.


In virtually all cases, using single-occupancy shelters 
requires either case-by-case or blanket exemption from 
zoning laws. For example, cities could give all non-prof-
its permission to provide shelter for the homeless in 


their buildings or in temporary shelters on their land, 
such as a portion of their parking lots.


Cities and non-profits can also provide services to clus-
ters of single-occupancy shelters. At the most basic lev-
el, assigning overnight police protection to a specified 
parking lot protects people living in their cars and RVs. 


Individual bathrooms – as in a converted motel – are 
ideal for controlling contagion. But in most cases, 
shared bathrooms, or even portable toilets, are an im-
provement on the absence of dedicated bathrooms. 
Local governments should install, or allow non-profits 
to install, portable sinks as well so that people can prop-
erly wash their hands after using shared toilets.


SPOTLIGHT


COMMUNITY 
FIRST! 


VILLAGE  
IN AUSTIN


Related: Accessory dwelling units, page 18.







REPURPOSE  
COMMERCIAL 


SPACE


After a major dislocation, economies come back differently. We don’t know exactly how things will change, so cities 
will need flexibility to rapidly return to a thriving economy. Every sector of the economy is being hammered by the 
COVID-19 crisis, but commercial space – both retail and offices – can expect the most vacancies. 


Many individual shops and retail chains will go out of 
business; in-person retail may permanently lose mar-
ket share to online sales. Restaurants may do a larger 
share of business via delivery, reducing their demand 
for floor space. 


Offices have had a crash course in remote work and 
workers have had a taste of working from home – it’s 
likely more workers will seek remote-work accommo-
dations. As the recession continues, we expect some 
companies will ditch their office leases as the least dis-
ruptive way to cut costs. Other companies may move 
toward a campus model, with a mix of office time and 
remote work.


By contrast, residential demand should remain com-
paratively strong, especially in lower price tiers. Many 
cities came into 2020 with pent-up demand. The Great 
Recession showed that even a housing crash did not 
lower rent much in high-cost cities. And in most plac-
es, home prices rebounded within a few years. 


Resilient residential demand and declining commercial 
demand can be accommodated by allowing re-use of 
vacant commercial space. This could be accomplished 


with a text amendment to local zoning codes to loosen 
use restrictions in commercially-zoned areas:


u � Include single- and multifamily housing as an al-
lowed (by right) use in zones that currently allow 
offices and substantial retail.


u �Waive parking requirements, setbacks and bulk 
restrictions for re-use of existing structures. In 
Buffalo, the removal of parking minimums for re-
use unlocked vacant downtown buildings that had 
not been viable under the previous zoning.


Commercial strips with a handful of residential con-
versions mixed in will be healthier than those with a 
handful of long-term vacancies. And commercial con-
versions may provide the type of moderate-price alter-
native housing that industrial loft conversions provid-
ed a generation ago.


Some cities will want to pursue these policies on a 
discretionary basis – granting variances and special 
permits rather than passing a text amendment. That 
approach would likely have limited benefit, since only 
well-capitalized builders will risk being stuck with dis-
tressed commercial property. P
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STREAMLINE 
THE HOUSING 
CONSTRUCTION  
APPROVAL PROCESS


Approval processes vary widely across localities. In some jurisdictions, 
projects generally proceed “by right” — projects that comply with zoning 
rules receive straightforward approvals and building permits. In other 
cases, cities require long, costly approval processes to secure permits, 
and what will (and will not) be approved is unclear at the outset. One 
statistical study found that the time that it takes for proposed housing 
developments to receive approvals is the most consequential aspect of 
regulation. The following section on accessory dwelling units offers a 
potential path to removing subjectivity and speeding up permit times for 


More housing is 
built, and it is  


built faster and  
cheaper, when  


permit-approval 
processes offer 


speed and 
certainty.
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this relatively low-cost housing typology.


Some cities have elements of the approval process 
that empower residents who oppose new housing 
in their neighborhoods. For example, Washington, 
DC, has 40 elected Advisory Neighborhood Com-
missions (ANCs) that hold public meetings and is-
sue advisory opinions on proposed developments. 
The city’s zoning and review boards make the final 
call, but they must give the ANC’s recommenda-
tions “great weight.”


Even jurisdictions without hyperlocal elected bod-
ies often rely on public meetings where residents 
can express whether or not they like new develop-
ment proposals as an important part of their hous-
ing approval processes. But research shows what 
many city officials likely already know; attendees at 
public meetings are not representative of their com-
munities. Attending meetings requires residents to 
have the time and resources to spend voicing their 
opinions about changes in their neighborhood or 
city. Attendees unsurprisingly tend to be older and 
wealthier than the average resident in their juris-
diction, and they’re more likely to be homeowners. 
Further, discussing specific development propos-
als at public meetings tends to draw out opposition 
rather than gathering a representative sample of 
a neighborhood or localities’ opinions about new 
housing construction.


SPOTLIGHT
ENDING CITIZEN 
ADVISORY 
COUNCILS 
IN RALEIGH


In 2020, the Raleigh, North Carolina, city council vot-
ed to eliminate the city’s Citizen Advisory Councils. 
One of the councils’ roles was to make recommen-
dations about whether or not to approve develop-
ment proposals to Raleigh’s zoning commission 
and city council.


Newly-elected pro-housing city council members 
pointed out that the councils favored participation 
from the slice of Raleigh residents who have the time 
and resources to participate in long meetings. Re-
quiring projects to go before the councils also slowed 
down approvals, raising the cost of housing construc-
tion and in turn reducing new housing supply. 


Raleigh officials have said that they are seeking 
new platforms for citizen engagement that better 
reflect the interests of all residents.
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Each discretionary step in the permit approval process 
contributes to the “vetocracy” that stands in the way 
of new housing supply. Many bodies have the ability to 
delay or block new development, but people with the 
widely-held view that more housing should be availa-
ble at lower prices don’t have an opportunity to over-
ride the vetoes of specific projects.


In housing development, time is money, and requiring 
developers to sit on projects — and loans — for months 
or years contributes substantially to construction 
costs. Delays in permitting directly increase the costs 
of home building and, in turn, eventual rental and sale 
prices for housing. And increases in the time it takes 
for new housing construction to be approved ultimate-
ly results in fewer viable housing developments. Fur-
ther, when approval processes are uncertain, home-
builders will propose fewer housing projects than they 


would otherwise because seeking approval may cost 
thousands or even hundreds of thousands of dollars 
for an uncertain return. 


For a model of streamlined permitting, local policy-
makers should look to Houston, arguably the most 
pro-housing city in the U.S.; since 1990 Houston’s pop-
ulation has increased by more than one-third, yet its 
median house price is lower than the national medi-
an. Houston does not require any discretionary review, 
and it even offers 24-hour permitting for single-family 
developments and simple commercial projects. 


Houston’s process also offers public health benefits; 
unlike other cities, the Houston online approval pro-
cess doesn’t require meetings, or even a trip to the 
planning department. Decreasing contact will make 
city employees and residents safer.


EACH DISCRETIONARY STEP 
IN THE PERMIT-APPROVAL 
PROCESS CONTRIBUTES  
TO THE “VETOCRACY.”
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HOUSING 
PRODUCTION:  
SETTING 
ACCESSORY  
DWELLING 
UNITS FREE 


 
Addressing the housing shortage endemic in most cities is 
a key part of economic recovery.


The COVID-19 pandemic highlights housing as a basic hu-
man need that, when met, has communitywide health and 
social benefits. And, as cities move forward with their re-
covery efforts, housing — its construction, affordability and 
suitability to the population’s needs — can be a big driver of 
economic growth and resilience.


But too few homes are being built and they are too expen-
sive. It’s as simple as that.


Earlier this year, Freddie Mac estimated that the U.S. needs 
an additional 2.5 million homes to accommodate the 
households we already have. This figure, however, does not 
capture the full extent of the housing shortage because it 
does not include the projected need for new housing over 
the next decade. Nor does it take into account the skyrock-
eting home prices that have made purchasing or renting 
in metropolitan areas difficult, if not impossible, for many 
people — particularly in larger cities like Los Angeles where 
“affordable” housing can cost up to $1 million dollars for an 
apartment.


Building more homes requires more buildable land or more 
density on existing land — things most major cities limit via 
zoning. Existing rules may severely restrict new housing or 
repurposing via separate areas for single-family and mul-
ti-family homes or other mixed uses. Combined with large 
minimum-lot sizes or restrictions on who can live on a prop-
erty, these policies prohibit the flexible density needed to 
address the housing shortage.


INCREASING 
HOUSING QUICKLY 
WITH 3 LEVERS
Cities have three powerful levers to 
Increase housing relatively quickly via 
accessory dwelling units (ADUs):


MOVE TO 
LEGALIZE ADUs 
This addresses a gap 
in most cities’ housing 
supplies.


END OCCUPANCY 
RESTRICTIONS 
Cities should reform 
rules that restrict who 
can share a home.


REFORM 
PERMIT REVIEWS 
Predictable processes 
lower costs and speed 
development.
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STEP �: 
LEGALIZE ADUs
Allowing homeowners to construct ADUs — tiny homes, in-law 
apartments or granny flats — with relative ease on lots zoned for 
single-family use will substantially expand the supply of small, 
affordable homes. This is critical for middle- and low-income 
households that are increasingly strained to afford housing in ur-
ban areas where most jobs are located.


While an ADU will not replace the need for a family home, such 
units play an important role in making more use of less land. 
ADUs also provide social benefits to families and communities 
because they often result in multi-generational households that 
reduce the demand on apartments and/or assisted living. And 
when not used for family members, ADUs provide an opportunity 
to add new rental units that can assist homeowners with mort-
gage payments.


Cities can further improve affordability by streamlining ADU per-
mit-approval processes. Adopting rules that, for example, pre-ap-
prove architectural designs or exempt ADUs from regulatory fees 
imposed on new single-family development can drastically re-
duce the cost of building ADUs, spurring an increase in supply. 


SPOTLIGHT


PORTLAND 
AND  
SAN DIEGO
San Diego updated its building code 
to give homeowners the right to 
build ADUs, with very few restric-
tions. The city also streamlined the 
permit process by pre-approving 
several building plans. 


The results are noteworthy. The 
first year, San Diego saw 15 new 
ADUs. But, since easing its permit-
ting requirements even further, San 
Diego property owners produced 
179 new granny flats in 2019. Since 
adopting similar regulations, Port-
land, Oregon, has allowed ADUs on 
an estimated 116,000 residentially 
developed lots, resulting in 2,000 
being built.
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SPOTLIGHT


SANTA CLARA
In Santa Clara, California, the median price 
for a single-family home exceeds $1 million 
and the average rent is close to $3,000 per 
month.


Since enacting laws to streamline the 
ADU permit process and eliminating many 
regulatory costs, Santa Clara has reduced 
the average cost by as much as $60,000. 


Currently, the average cost of an ADU 
ranges from $80,000 for an attached unit 
to $160,000 for a detached one — a small 
fraction of the cost to rent or buy a home.


STEP �: 
REMOVE 
OCCUPANCY 
RESTRICTIONS
For the ADU strategy to work, cities should also reform 
rules that restrict who can share a home. Many cities 
have occupancy restrictions in their zoning codes that 
insist that a home or apartment be occupied by family 
members, prohibiting the number of unrelated people 
that can share a house or live in an ADU. These rules 
stifle increasing housing capacity by restricting who can 
live in the newly built homes.
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STEP �: 
LIMIT COSTS
Permit-review costs drive home prices. As the 
housing and zoning section shows, costs and im-
pact fees imposed during the permitting process 
can significantly increase the cost of ADUs. Roll-
ing back the regulatory mark-up on permitting sig-
nificantly reduces the cost of each new unit.


Another way to limit cost is to recognize that sim-
ple projects like ADUs should not require an archi-
tect and extensive review. Cities can pre-approve 
a selection of common building plans and stream-
line permit review for projects using those plans. 


 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 
While broad solutions to 
the housing crisis require 
additional state and local 
reforms, the steps above 
allow cities to immediately 
expand the community’s 
housing capacity and sharply 
reduce the cost of new units. 
This, in turn, has positive 
downstream impacts on 
economic stability, resiliency 
and long-term growth.


SPOTLIGHT


BOWLING GREEN 
& BELLINGHAM
Bowling Green, Ohio’s zoning code contained a provi-
sion declaring it a misdemeanor for more than three 
unrelated persons from occupying a home together, 
regardless of the number of rooms or adequate park-
ing. In 2019, a federal court declared the law uncon-
stitutional, finding no reasonable basis for treating 
four unrelated individuals differently than four related 
people. 


Bellingham, Washington, is home to a major universi-
ty which attracts a large number of renters. The city 
code, however, contains an occupancy restriction 
similar to Bowling Green’s. In response to the Bowling 
Green case, the city decided to suspend enforcement 
of the law while the state considered a bill that would 
prohibit occupancy laws. That bill did not make it to a 
final vote and Bellingham’s occupancy law remains on 
the books. 


The solution to this problem in Bellingham and else-
where is in the hands of local government, which has 
authority to revoke its code provisions. Alternatively, 
the city could enact an ordinance prohibiting enforce-
ment of occupancy restrictions as follows: 


Finding that many unrelated occupant limits on 
households worsen the community’s housing 
shortage by preventing full utilization of homes, 
discriminating against nontraditional households 
and providing no public benefit, it is the intent of 
the city with this act to prohibit local governments 
from limiting the number of unrelated persons 
occupying a home.


Except for occupant limits on group living arrange-
ments regulated by state or federal law, and any 
restrictions on occupant load of the structure as 
calculated by the applicable building code, the 
government may not regulate or limit the number 
of unrelated persons that may occupy a household 
or dwelling unit.
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PERMITTING
AND LICENSING
Strategies to promote job growth
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W hen jobs are scarce, many people turn to 
entrepreneurship and self-employment as 
a means of earning a living. A regulatory 


environment friendly to business creation and job 
growth will be central to local economic recovery for 
most cities.  
Unfortunately, well-intentioned and often overlapping laws frequently stifle people from 
entering a new trade. Although many of these laws appear independently justifiable, in 
practice they can create a regulatory thicket that prevents people from pursuing legiti-
mate businesses without improving public health or safety.


There is no better time to support entrepreneurs. In addition to considering withholding 
fines for good-faith violations of the law and temporarily refraining from enacting any 
new regulations absent some compelling public health or safety rationale, cities can 
use the following three strategies to foster business growth and economic resiliency.


  


BY ANASTASIA BODEN  
AND STEPHEN SLIVINSKI 
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SUPPORT 
OCCUPATIONAL 
LICENSING 
REFORM
Occupational licensing laws are generally defended as a means 
to protect the public’s health and safety. However, studies have 
indicated they are a poor tool for that end. They tend instead to 
reduce competition and, as a result, lead to higher prices.


These laws are most often passed at the state level, meaning 
employees and employers in any city in a state are subject to 
them. But some city- and county-level occupational licensing 
rules are piled on top of the state laws. This can lead to duplica-
tion and higher costs to starting and running a business. It can 
also decrease employment opportunities for city residents.


New data from the Institute for Justice helps quantify the ex-
tent of city- and country-level occupational registration. Not at 
all cities regulate occupations beyond the state-level laws. For 
instance, Portland only regulates three occupations beyond the 
state’s minimum criteria. Meanwhile, Denver regulates more 
than 90. A report from the Mackinac Institute shows that Detroit 
requires licenses for at least 60 occupations, even though half 
of those already require a license from the state of Michigan.


Municipal and county level occupational 
licensing requirements vary widely, from 
a low of 3% of regulated occupations in 


Atlanta to a high of 92% in Miami.


Most people assume occupational licensure only applies to 
professions like medical professionals or lawyers. But across 
hundreds of cities, licensure is required for occupations with rel-
atively low risk of harm. New York City recently cracked down on 
unlicensed dog walkers. And Detroit requires licenses for win-
dow washers, movers, snowplowers and other jobs that could 
be the difference between a paycheck and public assistance for 
residents – if licensure didn’t stand in the way.


PROMOTING 
INNOVATION:  
� TOOLS FOR 
POLICYMAKERS
To promote entrepreneurship and 
innovation, cities have a number of 
tools at their disposal:


TRIM THE FAT 
Eliminate municipal 
licensing laws 
where there’s no 
demonstrable 
connection to public 
health or safety.


DE-DUPLICATE 
Eliminate licensure 
where it’s redundant 
to state requirements, 
and allow reciprocity 
for state licenses.


LOOK AT 
ALTERNATIVES 
Consider alternatives 
to licensure, like 
registration, private 
certification or 
mandatory bond.


LOCK IT IN 
Enact a local “Right 
to Earn a Living Act” 
to avoid proliferation 
of licensure laws 
creating a barrier to 
finding work. 







MODEL ORDINANCE


A MUNICIPAL  
RIGHT TO 
EARN A  
LIVING LAW


One way cities can protect residents’ ability to earn a 
living is by creating “sunrise ordinances” that require 
elected officials to consider various criteria before 
passing regulations that make it harder for residents 
and business owners to earn a living. 


For example, a city might require lawmakers to 
demonstrate a public-health or safety threat substan-
tial enough to warrant new regulations, and to prove a 
significant connection between any new law and that 
harm, before passing a law affecting the ability to enter 
a profession. Cities might also be required to consider 
less restrictive alternatives to licensure, and to engage 
in sunset review after several years to ensure its laws 
keep up with changing times.


In 2017, Arizona became the first state to pass a Right 
to Earn a Living Act. In addition to limiting restric-
tions on professions to those necessary to serve pub-
lic-health or safety objectives, the law allows citizens 
to petition agencies and localities to repeal laws that 
harm them. If the agency refuses, the petitioner may 
challenge the law in court under a heightened stand-
ard of review. 


By encouraging repeal and setting a high bar for laws 
to pass muster in court, the Act is meant to encourage 
better regulation and to avoid litigation. 


Tennessee has also adopted a Right to Earn a 
Living Act, and the model ordinance below is 
based on the language of that law.


Model Ordinance:


(1)  The City shall limit occupational regulations 
with respect to businesses and professions 
to those demonstrably necessary and 
carefully tailored to fulfill legitimate public 
health, safety, or welfare objectives. 
“Occupational regulations” shall be defined 
as any law, ordinance, regulation, rule, policy, 
fee, condition, test, permit, administrative 
practice, or other provision relating to a 
market, or the opportunity to engage in any 
business, profession, or occupation;


(2)  Before imposing an occupational licensure 
requirement, the City shall consider 
less restrictive alternatives, including 
registration, bonding or insurance, and 
certification. 


(3)  Every other July 1st, the City shall conduct 
a comprehensive review of all occupational 
regulations within the jurisdiction for the 
purpose of determining whether each entry 
regulation serves a public health, safety, or 
welfare objective. The City shall repeal any 
occupational regulation that does not serve 
a public health, safety, or welfare objective, 
or modify the regulation to bring it into 
conformity with Subsection 1.
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ENCOURAGE ENTREPRENEURSHIP 
AND NEW BUSINESS GROWTH
Every city has their own process for 
someone to start a new business. In 
some cities, it may only take two steps. 
In other cities, it can take more than 10.
Even among the cities with a fairly standard set of limit-
ed procedures for starting a business, there may be fric-
tions that increase the cost in terms of time. Requiring 
the filing of forms in person instead of online — or per-
haps there is no ability by the city to process the forms 
electronically — is an example. Unnecessary duplication 
of reporting is another.


It may seem like these costs are trivial, but they can ac-
cumulate over time and over a broad enough scale to 
create high impediments to new business starts. Ac-
cording to the Doing Business North America study pub-
lished by the Center for the Study of Economic Liberty at 
Arizona State University, for most cities these permitting 
processes can take a few days. For places like Baltimore, 
it takes nearly a month. For a city like San Francisco, it 
takes over 45 days.


Substantial differences in these procedures in the time-
to-market in a city can be a dampener on long-term 
business creation — not just in terms of how many busi-
nesses are created, but also the speed at which they are 
created. In the highly-competitive environment for work-
ers, entrepreneurs and capital that cities face, substan-
tial regulatory delays can make a difference.


Large corporations can usually clear these hurdles eas-
ily, and city hall is generally willing to help expedite the 
permitting and paperwork process for the mega-employ-
er moving in.


The same cannot be said for homegrown entrepreneurs 
and small- or medium-sized business (which, in fact, are 
usually one and the same). Taken together, these types 
of businesses are the biggest employers in most cities. 
Reducing the potential for swift business starts can im-
pact the employment growth generated by those firms.


� STEPS TO 
REDUCE MUNICIPAL 
PERMITTING 
BURDENS
Simple steps can be taken by cities to reduce 
the permitting burden required of new 
businesses:


�. REDUCE 
Reduce the number of steps 
required, not only by reducing 


the number of forms but by also 
eliminating the requirements that don’t 
pass a simple cost-benefit analysis.


�. EXPEDITE 
Provide expedited 
electronic filing of required 


forms to speed the process along.


�. NAVIGATE 
Create an ombudsman 
or “navigator” role inside 


the city government to help new 
businesses work through the permitting 
requirements.


�. GUARANTEE 
Create a “challenge culture” 
in city government by 


instituting a public guarantee that a 
business owner can trust he or she will 
be moved through the process within a 
certain strict and brief time frame.
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BOOST HOME-BASED BUSINESSES
Self-employment is an important way for people to 
earn a living in difficult economic times, making it criti-
cal that cities support home-based businesses. 


Even before COVID-19 required many of us to work 
from home, telecommuting and home-based busi-
nesses had long been on the rise. According to recent 
estimates, 52% of small businesses are home-based. 
From tutors, to music teachers, to hair braiders, to tran-
scriptionists, many people are taking the first step to 
entrepreneurship by starting up at home. 


Part of the appeal of home-based businesses is re-
ducing start-up costs, but people also choose to work 
from home because it gives them flexibility. Evidence 
shows that home-based business owners are more 
likely to be people who need an alternative to tradition-
al 9-to-5 jobs. Self-employment within the household 
allows caregivers, people who are disabled or those 
with special-needs family members to stay close to 
family and to choose their own hours. 


People may now sell goods online or offer music 
lessons via Zoom with ease. But antiquated laws in 
many cities make it difficult, if not outright illegal, to 
start up a business from home. For example, many 
laws only allow a home-based business if it is “cus-
tomary” or “incidental” to the residential use. These 


vague terms give homeowners little guidance on 
whether their business is allowed and the standards 
can be applied in contradicting ways depending on 
the jurisdiction. 


Some cities offer a list of permitted occupations, but 
they’re frequently narrow or outdated — many laws 
specifically allow “millinery” (hat-making), or forbid 
clairvoyance. 


Some of these laws are so strict that they even prohibit 
entirely virtual businesses, like selling used clothes on-
line, uploading tutorials to YouTube or offering collect-
ibles on eBay. In some cities, it’s illegal to have even just 
one person on premises for business purposes, even 
though homeowners enjoy an unlimited right to have 
people over for any other reason. These limitations bar 
a person from teaching violin at home, or throwing a 
Mary Kay party.


Some states have eased their home-based business 
regulations. Utah was among the first to standard-
ize the treatment of home-based businesses across 
the state, and a similar bill nearly passed in Arizona. 
Maine and California have taken an industry-specific 
approach and enacted bills aimed at making it easier 
for people to sell goods made in home kitchens and to 
start home daycares. 


CITIES CAN LEAD, EVEN WHEN STATES WON’T


Local leaders can support self-employment at home by following best practices to allow home-based busi-
nesses while also ensuring that there are no substantial impacts on neighbors: 


u  Provide clarity. Eliminate vague language like “customary” or “incidental use” and provide clear, objective 
criteria for whether a home-based business is allowed. 


u  Establish standards for zero-impact home-based businesses and allow them to operate without a permit.


u  Establish a permit scheme and reasonable fees for home-based businesses that do not meet zero-im-
pact criteria. When compliance is straight-forward and affordable, business owners have an incentive to 
submit to the permitting process and cities are better able to enforce their laws.


P
A


G
E


 
2


6
B E T T E R  C I T I E S  P R O J E C T







SPOTLIGHT
SAN DIEGO  
EMBRACES  
HOME-BASED 
ENTERPRISE


San Diego is an example of a city that 
has modernized its laws to encourage 
home-based entrepreneurship. Histor-
ically, the city forbade employees and 
customers from visiting a business 
run from the home, which made it 
practically impossible to start many 
categories of home-based businesses. 
Owners could get around that obstacle 
by paying $5,000 for a Neighborhood 
Use Permit – something out of reach 
for many small start-ups. 


That all changed in 2018, when San 
Diego passed a new ordinance that 
allows home-based businesses to start 
up without a permit and authorizes one 
employee, customer and vendor to visit 
the premises. A broad ban restricts 
activities that impose a nuisance on 
neighbors, and businesses that require 
more visitors or other special accom-
modations are able to apply for a 
special permit. 


The reform allows businesses with 
little impact on neighbors to form and 
operate more freely.


For a study of home-based business 
laws in localities across the country, 
see the Center for Growth and 
Opportunity’s recent survey, Zoning for 
Opportunity: A Survey of Home-Based-
Business Regulations
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TRANSIT AND 
TRANSPORTATION
Now’s the time for cities to embrace flexible options


B E T T E R  C I T I E S  P R O J E C T


T ransportation is largely a world of slow, thought-
ful decisions – infrastructure isn’t planned or 
built overnight, and transit systems can take de-


cades to go from the drawing board to reality. But even 
against that backdrop, cities can take steps with their 
transportation systems today that will pay short- and 
long-term economic benefits in cost savings and flex-
ibility.  
Every major city is different, but the overall goal, economically, should be the same: 
Adopted policies should decrease the financial risk and burden of transportation on 
taxpayers. While congestion pricing may work in New York, it may be unnecessary in 
Phoenix or Houston. 


This section focuses primarily on transit options, but opportunities that would spur 
economic development while delivering potential savings and flexibility also exist in 
highways, and zoning — see gettingbacktowork.org for details. 


BY BARUCH FEIGENBAUM
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TRANSIT  
OPPORTUNITIES 
MEAN FLEXIBILITY, 
SAVINGS
Major cities have options to promote mass transit development, 
including:


LOWER FIXED COSTS AND REDUCE 
INFRASTRUCTURE
Contract out transit service to private 
providers.


CREATE NEW PARTNERSHIPS  
FOR PARATRANSIT DELIVERY
Partner with ridesharing companies to 
deliver and expand paratransit.


EMBRACE COMPETITION
Eliminate laws enabling transit 
monopolies.


MAKE IT EASIER TO  
START NEW SERVICES
Simplify permit processes for e-scooters, 
jitneys and ferries.


REALIGN SERVICES WITH  
CURRENT AND FUTURE DEMAND
Reorganize bus services to match 
demand and need.
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CONTRACT SERVICE 
Cities can contract out transit operations and mainte-
nance to private providers, potentially lowering expen-
ditures and shifting the burden of unforeseen costs 
away from taxpayers. Private transit operators can also 
bring efficiencies of scale, best practices and innova-
tions to local transit systems. 


In Los Angeles County, 22 cities formed the Foothill 
Transit agency to provide cheap and effective contract-
ed transit service. Today, all of the agency’s bus routes 
are operated by Transdev and Keolis, international tran-
sit operators.


For contracting transit, a city should:


u  Adopt a process for entering into transit contract-


ing that includes competitive bidding (a minimum of 
three bids) primarily focused on financial consider-
ations


u  Set clear requirements on routes, schedules and 
service quality; service quality minimums may re-
quire nightly cleaning, altered schedules (to be post-
ed two weeks in advance), hourly service on each 
route, and procedures that limit noise pollution to 80 
decibels 


u  Clearly place financial risks on private operators 
and off of taxpayers


u  Grant private operators flexibility for major events 
and weather emergencies
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PARTNER WITH 
RIDESHARING 
COMPANIES 
Private rideshare companies, such as Uber and Lyft, 
can offer better paratransit services at lower costs 
than traditional providers. While some individuals 
may require additional aid to enter a vehicle, ride-
sharing can capture much of the demand and even 
meet wheelchair accessibility guidelines. Paratran-
sit ridesharing can make use of on-demand reser-
vations using smart phones, which makes trip-plan-
ning easier, increasing mobility for those who need 
assistance.


The Massachusetts Bay Transportation Authority 
has an on-demand paratransit pilot program with 
ridesharing companies Uber, Lyft and Curb. Cur-
rently these private operators do not offer comple-
mentary paratransit service compliant under the 
Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), largely due 
to regulations not technical capability. Uber already 
offers its WAV (wheelchair-accessible vehicles) ser-
vice in Boston, Chicago, New York, Los Angeles and 
Philadelphia.


To promote using ridesharing companies for para-
transit a city should:


u  Legalize ridesharing companies


u  Provide subsidies to rideshare companies that 
offer paratransit services; riders would typically 
pay a small part of the overall cost, typically $1-
$5 for each trip with cities/mobility authorities 
paying the rest; Uber’s average charge is $13.36 
while the average paratransit trip costs taxpay-
ers $29


u  Help private companies become ADA compliant 
to expand the scope of ridesharing 


G E T T I N G B A C K T O W O R K . O R G
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OPEN TRANSIT 
TO COMPETITION 
Most public transportation agencies, such as Denver’s 
Regional Transportation District and the Maryland 
Transportation Authority, function as monopolies, ei-
ther from state-level law or city-level contracting prac-
tices. Municipalities should end city-level monopolies 
and pressure states to remove statutes that forbid 
private-sector transportation services. Many transit 
agencies lack the capital or ability to expand service 
to underserved areas, leaving room for private-sector 
actors without risk to taxpayers. 


Additionally, cities can bundle together transit routes 
by geographic districts or route type. Bundling profit-
able and unprofitable transit routes into a single con-
tract preserves service for the transit-dependent while 
allowing companies to remain profitable and compet-
itive. Even with private operators, certain routes may 


continue to need subsidies either from the transit agen-
cy or directly through the city.


To end a transit agency monopoly a city should:


u  Remove legal bans on private transit operators


u  Guarantee that fees paid by private transit compa-
nies go toward relevant expenditures


u  Redirect subsidies, as transit costs decrease, to in-
frastructure useful by both government-owned and 
private transit


SIMPLIFY  
PERMIT  


PROCESSES 
FOR PRIVATE  


TRANSIT  
ALTERNATIVES


Simplifying the permit process for private-sector trans-
portation would promote transit that can survive in 
the market without subsidies, particularly modes that 
require minimal capital investment. The following four 
modes of transportation could meet demand in various 
cities: ridesharing, e-scooters, ferries and jitneys.


Ridesharing companies such as Uber and Lyft are ver-
satile and ubiquitous, throughout major cities. Jitneys, 
small private shuttlebuses, can provide effective point-
to-point transit on high demand routes. After eliminat-
ing public transit monopolies, cities should craft jitney 
service quality procedures that ensure minimum safe-
ty and cleanliness, but allow for maximum route and 
scheduling flexibility to best match demand levels. In 
Atlantic City, New Jersey, jitneys already connect heav-
ily frequented locations, such as the airport, train and 
bus station, hotels, convention center, and the Board-
walk.  Both jitneys and ridesharing vehicles use existing 
roads and pay motor fuel taxes and tolls.


Electric scooters have demonstrated an ability to ex-
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ist sustainably across the country, proving especially 
useful in regions with warm weather year-round. These 
companies often pay fees to the municipality for law 
enforcement costs and bike lane maintenance or ex-
pansion. However, overburdensome permit fees can 
force e-scooter companies to cease operations in a 
city, as Lime did in Tempe, Arizona, because of a $7,888 
business license fee.


Ferries are important transportation assets in areas 
with major bodies of water. Ferry companies can op-
erate profitable routes, set market-based parking fees 
and invest in real estate directly around their terminals. 
Capital costs for ferries are relatively low, as the body 


of water already exists, and non-fare revenue potential 
in real estate and paring is relatively high.


A simplified permit process requires:


u Clear and predetermined application requirements


u  An elimination on the ability to place limits on the 
number of providers for a given mode of transpor-
tation


u  A requirement that any fees on private transit com-
panies go toward expenditures that address their 
needs or relevant externalities


u  Fees set no higher than a level that addresses the 
aforementioned costs


REORGANIZE 
BUS SERVICES 


Cities should analyze bus ridership and service pat-
terns every five to 10 years and adjust service accord-
ingly. The needs of transit-dependent riders should 
be prioritized when determining publicly-subsidized 
routes. While some routes with limited demand 
may need subsidies, private operators can operate 
high-demand routes used by transit-choice riders who 
can afford to pay the full cost of the trip. 


In 2015, Houston, Texas’s Metro transit agency suc-
cessfully reorganized their bus network, cutting cer-
tain routes, shifting away from a hub-based pattern 
and expanding intra-suburban routes to meet demand 
and need. Planners found the biggest need was ad-
ditional Sunday service and the agency cut weekday 
service to expand weekend service. Bus ridership 


grew in Houston despite nationwide declines in transit 
ridership. In the aftermath of Hurricane Harvey, Metro 
was able to restore service quickly and alter routes 
based on the needs of city residents. 


NJ Transit is a counter example. Despite operating 
an extensive route network, service holes remain in 
suburban areas. Hip, a private bus company, is work-
ing to fill that void connecting suburban communities 
directly to Manhattan in areas NJ Transit underserves 
or does not serve at all. 


To reorganize their bus network cites should:


u Analyze ridership patterns regularly 


u Adjust routes every five years


u Prioritize service for transit-dependent riders
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TRANSPARENT, 
OPEN GOVERNMENT
During the recovery, everyone will be watching


B E T T E R  C I T I E S  P R O J E C T


W e all understand that transparency in govern-
ment is an unalloyed good, but that doesn’t 
mean it’s welcome or easy. Open govern-


ment is more than assigning the information technol-
ogy officer to build — or hiring a consultant to build — 
a web-portal showcasing every financial transaction. 
Transparency is more than a public information officer 
fielding open records requests.  
Open government is not transactional, it’s cultural. It is the result of elected officials 
and the civil servants on who we depend agreeing that openness and transparency are 
important values, and that everyone in the organization will adopt a policy of defaulting 
to it. Done correctly, open-government initiatives activate and engage the citizenry, cre-
ating a virtuous cycle of better-informed and more-involved citizens who can, in turn, 
provide input that supports thoughtful and responsive policymaking


Open government starts with a simple presumption that complete, timely information 
should be available to all interested parties for use without restriction. Once a culture of 
transparency is instituted, everyone understands how they can contribute to the whole. 


While open, transparent government allows citizens to keep tabs on their representa-
tives, it’s more than just one more burden on the public sector. Wide, ongoing public 
participation increases the responsiveness and effectiveness of government, which 
benefits from people’s knowledge, ideas and ability to provide oversight.  Transparency 
helps you do your job more effectively, creates an important public record of how you 
and your colleagues worked to meet the public need and increases public confidence 
in your good intentions.


BY PATRICK TUOHEY
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In the 2012 Recovery Act Transparency: Learn-
ing from States’ Experience, researchers found 
that while data was used widely if unevenly by 
journalists and activists, “State officials were 
the principal users of Recovery Act data as it al-
lowed them to manage and track federal spend-
ing in near-real time.” They went on to conclude 
that state officials’ ability to manage the dis-
bursement of funds was the most significant 
impact of transparency.


As you consider the other recommendations in 


this playbook, think about how much easier your 
job would be if there was a place you could go to 
see if these policies were having the desired ef-
fect. Tracking and sharing information on busi-
ness openings, licensing applications, inspec-
tions, approvals and the like helps the city facilitate 
business growth. If things are moving too slowly, 
good data collection helps identify obstacles and 
address them in real time, before you start getting 
calls from residents, home builders, and elected 
officials. Transparency helps you do your job.


G E T T I N G B A C K T O W O R K . O R G


TRANSPARENCY:  
A POWERFUL 
TOOL FOR BOTH 
THE PUBLIC AND 
LOCAL LEADERS


P
A


G
E


 
3


5







“TRANSPARENCY 
REQUIREMENTS SERVED  
AS A DETERRENT, WHICH 


CONTRIBUTED TO LOW  
RATES OF FRAUD, WASTE,  
AND ABUSE OF FUNDS.”
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OPEN  
GOVERNMENT  
ALLOWS YOU TO  
DEMONSTRATE 
SUCCESS
There will certainly be studies and legislative inquiries into 
how federal money was spent and which cities were best 
at putting it to use. Taking the time now to make sure that 
actions and outcomes are recorded will not only help you 
with the work at hand but help demonstrate to others your 
success. 


The 2012 Recovery Act study affirmed Louis Brandeis’ 
1913 statement that “sunlight is said to be the best of dis-
infectants; electric light the most efficient policeman.”  It 
concluded the mere presence of openness standards was 
itself a positive: “Transparency requirements served as a 
deterrent, which contributed to low rates of fraud, waste, 
and abuse of funds.” 


That is good news: We all work better when we know we’re 
accountable. Municipal government can be a thankless 
task or worse; clear and open data can protect good ini-
tiatives and even defend against strongly held bad ideas.







COLLECTIVE BARGAINING 
TRANSPARENCY
As this is being written, the US unemployment rate is 
more than 15% and likely underreporting those out of the 
workforce. Job losses will likely be lighter among public 
employees; add in financial anxiety and the prospect of 
higher taxes to make up for reduced revenue, and it’s 
easy to imagine the public calling for dramatic reductions 
in public staffing.


This may be alleviated with good-faith efforts by 
city officials and unionized municipal workers 
to spread that pain around fairly. People can be 
made to appreciate the continuing need for mu-
nicipal employees — especially in the midst of a 
pandemic — but they don’t want to feel that they 
are being forced to support sweetheart contracts. 
Part of that can be accomplished by introducing 
more transparency in public employee collective 
bargaining.


Contract transparency is the norm in nearly half 
the states across the country. Some states open 
the entire process to the public; others include an 
exemption when government officials are strate-
gizing among themselves. Once public officials 
meet with union negotiators, however, the public 
is allowed to be informed and monitor the process.


If your city doesn’t have transparency requirements 
for collective bargaining or if the state law is weak, 
now’s the time to consider this important reform. 
Open collective bargaining sessions to the public, 
require a 24-hour notice of the session and make 
sure that draft and finalized bargaining agree-
ments are made public and easily accessible.
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TRANSPARENCY GENERATES  
PUBLIC SUPPORT
Americans’ willingness to place the United States 
economy on hold to preserve medical resources and 
to protect the weakest among us is remarkable. It 
demonstrates an amazing ability to make personal 
sacrifices for the good of the whole — sacrifices that 
can seem more rewarding if local government is able 
to clearly articulate the payoff.


The impacts of open government go beyond policy; 
they’re a matter of fundamental trust as well. A 2014 
study by Stephan G. Grimmelikhuijsen and Albert J. 
Meijer published in the Journal of Public Administra-
tion Research and Theory makes it clear that trans-
parency is not a panacea. Those knowledgeable 
about public policy are not necessarily swayed by 
transparency, but:


Strong transparency policies result in a rise 
in the perceived benevolence of government 
among participants with little prior knowl-
edge and a low level of general trust in gov-
ernment. In contrast, weak transparency 
policies result in a decline in the perceived 
competence of participants with little prior 
knowledge and a high level of general trust 
in government.


The public is more likely to give you the benefit of 
the doubt if they think you’re being forthright. That 
store of goodwill will be important to you and your 
colleagues as you work to recover from the economic 
hardships of COVID-19.
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SURVEY


WHO’S FILING 
PUBLIC-INFORMATION  
REQUESTS IN ����? 


While the news media continues to lead in litigating public 
record lawsuits,  for the first time since 2009, the National 
Freedom of Information Coalition’s (NFOIC) Biennial Open 
Government Survey showed that members of the public 
outnumbered  newspapers as the larger client group for 
attorneys pursuing open government cases. 


Most respondents cited a problem with a lack of enforce-
ment or penalties for agencies and officials who violate 
them. Less than 13% of respondents reported a decrease in 
open records or open meetings violations in their jurisdiction 
over the past two years.


Fifty-seven percent of respondents reported an increase in 
making open government requests in state and local jurisdic-
tions over the last two years.


Of the more than 100 survey respondents from across the 
U.S., nearly half were journalists and about one-fourth iden-
tified as state coalition members of NFOIC. Other self-iden-
tified stakeholder groups included attorneys, civic technol-
ogists, press association representatives and a handful of 
government agencies/elected officials. Thirty-five attorneys 
responded to the survey question about their client base.


Other findings:


u  Nearly 87% of respondents said the incidence of open 
records or open meeting violations in their state and local 
jurisdiction stayed steady or increased over the past two 
years.


u  More than half of respondents said government officials’ 
understanding of and voluntary compliance with open 
government requirements in their state and local jurisdic-
tion decreased over the past two years. 


u  Reported reasons for government agencies denying ac-
cess to records varied, from disingenuous rationalization 
of exemptions to inappropriate game playing and igno-
rance of the law. The biggest obstacle respondents said 
they faced in getting information was a lack of response 
or delayed response (84%), followed by invalid exceptions 
(66%) and unreasonable fees (63%). 


u  21% of respondents said there were worse policy reforms, 
amendments and legislative changes to public disclosure 
and open meeting laws affecting their state; 15% said it 
had improved. 


This pandemic has demonstrated that Americans are able to rise to the 
occasion if they are given what they need to make informed decisions. 
Transparency and openness are not just goals in and of themselves. 
Municipalities that adopt financial transparency programs, collect and 
share information related to their basic functions and open up their 
collective bargaining process not only improve outcomes, but engender 
favorable opinions among residents. And perhaps most importantly, 
demonstrate that they are willing partners in the economic recovery.
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SALIM FURTH
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Director of the Urbanity project 
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Senior Attorney 


Pacific Legal Foundation
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Better Cities Project


JOHN MOZENA
President 
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Senior Attorney 


Pacific Legal Foundation
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JOE COLETTI
Senior Fellow 


John Locke Foundation


This playbook would not 
have been possible without 
the deep expertise of  
municipal-policy experts 
from around the country. 
From economics to law 
and from planning and 
transportation to govern-
ment transparency and 
economic development, 
their research and recom-
mendations are shaping 
tomorrow’s municipal 
landscape.
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NEXT STEPS
READY TO 
GET YOUR CITY  
BACK TO WORK? 
WE CAN HELP.
This playbook isn’t the final word on getting 
American cities back to work quickly; it’s a 
starting point.


And whether you have an office at city hall, a 
desk in a newsroom or a seat at the kitchen 
table as an informed citizen, BCP and the 
Getting Back To Work project team can help 
you explore these and other policy sugges-
tions in depth.


VISIT GETTINGBACKTOWORK.ORG 
You’ll find the full text of this report online, 
as well as additional linked research and 
recommendations that can help you find 
your city’s best path forward.


SIGN UP AT BETTER-CITIES.ORG 
Our updates keep thousands of local elect-
ed officials and engaged citizens informed 
about the latest ideas in municipal policy.


GET IN TOUCH 
BCP can help identify specific research and 
recommendations relevant to your city’s 
challenges, direct you to the right experts for 
answers and offer presentations related to 
these and other topics.







4700 W. Rochelle Ave. 


Suite 141


Las Vegas, NV 89103


Phone  (702) 546-8736


Email    info@better-cities.org


Web      better-cities.org


Thoughtful policy solutions for 
America’s cities — the kind that 
empower people to prosper and 
thrive — are more crucial than ever.


The next decade of economic 
growth in America will likely be 
determined by the actions cities 
take to recover from COVID-19 
and the shutdown that ensued. 
There’s a tremendous opportunity 
to rediscover our strengths and lay 
aside old, unhelpful habits.


This playbook — and its online 
companion — offers real-world 
policies and practices cities can 
adopt quickly to help spur growth.


Americans stood with their leaders 
to slow the growth; this is an 
opportunity for leaders to stand 
with Americans to speed the 
recovery.











Project is always available as a resource for current thinking in municipal policy.

Thank you for your time and attention, and thank you for your work on behalf of not just the
people of your city—but all of us.

Regards,
Greg Brooks

Greg Brooks | President
Better Cities Project
a:  4700 W. Rochelle Ave. | Suite 141 | Las Vegas, NV 89103
e: greg.brooks@better-cities.org | w: better-cities.org
p: (702) 546-8736

     
 

If you'd like to stop receiving mail from BCP, you may unsubscribe. But we'd hate to see
you go!
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This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

From: CPC-Commissions Secretary
To: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC); Switzky, Joshua (CPC)
Subject: FW: UCSF Murals by Bernard Zakheim
Date: Tuesday, June 23, 2020 10:53:16 AM
Attachments: Request to BOS re Zakheim murals at UCSF b.docx

 
 
 
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
 
 

From: Robert Cherny <robt.cherny@gmail.com> 
Sent: Monday, June 22, 2020 11:16 AM
Cc: Peskin, Aaron (BOS) <aaron.peskin@sfgov.org>; aaron.hyland.hpc
<aaron.hyland.hpc@gmail.com>; dianematsuda <dianematsuda@hotmail.com>; Black, Kate (CPC)
<kate.black@sfgov.org>; RSEJohns <RSEJohns@yahoo.com>; Breed, Mayor London (MYR)
<mayorlondonbreed@sfgov.org>; Hillis, Rich (CPC) <rich.hillis@sfgov.org>; Foley, Chris (CPC)
<chris.foley@sfgov.org>; Pearlman, Jonathan (CPC) <jonathan.pearlman@sfgov.org>; So, Lydia (CPC)
<lydia.so@sfgov.org>; CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>; Fewer,
Sandra (BOS) <sandra.fewer@sfgov.org>; Stefani, Catherine (BOS) <catherine.stefani@sfgov.org>;
Mar, Gordon (BOS) <gordon.mar@sfgov.org>; Mandelman, Rafael (BOS)
<rafael.mandelman@sfgov.org>; Haney, Matt (BOS) <matt.haney@sfgov.org>; Ronen, Hillary
<hillary.ronen@sfgov.org>; Walton, Shamann (BOS) <shamann.walton@sfgov.org>; Safai, Ahsha
(BOS) <ahsha.safai@sfgov.org>; Elsbernd, Sean (MYR) <sean.elsbernd@sfgov.org>; Hepner, Lee
(BOS) <lee.hepner@sfgov.org>
Subject: UCSF Murals by Bernard Zakheim
 

 

Dear Supervisors,
 
Please see the attached letter requesting that the Board of Supervisors initiate the landmarking of
the threatened murals by Bernard Zakheim at UCSF.

mailto:commissions.secretary@sfgov.org
mailto:Josephine.Feliciano@sfgov.org
mailto:joshua.switzky@sfgov.org
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

Supervisor Aaron Peskin, chair, Land Use Committee

Supervisor Dean Preston, District 5

Supervisor Leland Yee, District 7



Dear Supervisors Peskin, Preston, and Yee,



We request that the Board of Supervisors initiate the Article 10 landmarking of the ten murals by Bernard Zakheim in Toland Hall, a lecture facility in UC Hall on the UCSF Parnassus campus, which the UCSF administration is currently proposing to demolish along with the building. 



We make this request because we are confident those murals meet the standards for landmarking set by the Secretary of the Interior:  they are associated with events that have made a significant contribution to the broad patterns of our history (the New Deal arts programs), they are associated with the lives of persons significant in our past (Bernard Zakheim, Chauncey Leake, and the historical figures depicted in the murals), they represent the work of a master (Zakheim), and they possess high artistic values.



During the 1930s, Zakheim was one of the leading artists in this area who were creating major public art under the auspices of the New Deal arts programs.  Zakheim traveled to Mexico in 1929-1930 to meet Diego Rivera and observe his work on public murals.  In 1933, he created Jewish Festival, a mural at the Jewish Community Center, using the buon fresco technique being used by Rivera and others in Mexico.  (That mural was later removed and place in the new Jewish Community Center.)  Zakheim then created murals through four different New Deal arts programs:

· Library, Coit Tower, 1934

· Community Spirit and Growth, Alemany Health Center, 1934

· Superstitious Medicine and Rational Medicine, UCSF, 1936

· History of Medicine in California (ten murals), UCSF, 1936-1939

· [bookmark: _GoBack]New and Old Methods of Transportation, Mineola Post Office, Mineola, Texas, 1938

· Agriculture and Industry at Rusk, Rusk Post Office, Rusk, Texas, 1939

Zakheim also created many other works of art.



The ten murals that make up Zakheim's History of Medicine in California constitute one of this region's largest New Deal art projects by a single artist.  Dr. Robert Sherins, in his history of the Zakheim murals at UCSF, calls the Toland Hall murals "a California historic treasure."  Dr. Chauncey D. Leake, the chancellor who commissioned the murals, later described them as "highly accurate" and said they "offer an inspiring stimulus to the best standards and ideals of practice in the health professions."  In 2015, Polina Ilieva, UCSF archivist, called them "the jewel of the University's Art Collection."  



Dennis Antenore, member, Community Advisory Group to UCSF; former Planning Commissioner



Robert W. Cherny, professor emeritus of history at SF State University; author of academic studies of New Deal art; former member, Landmarks Preservation Advisory Board 



Jon Golinger, founder, Protect Coit Tower



Bridget Maley, architectural historian; former member and president, Landmarks Preservation Advisory Board 



Alan Martinez, former member, Historic Preservation Commission



Robert S. Sherins, MD, author of a history of the Zakheim murals at UCSF



Harvey Smith, president, National New Deal Preservation Association



Members of the Zakheim family:

Nathan Zakheim, art conservator, son of Bernard Zakheim

Ruth Gottstein, daughter of Bernard Zakheim

Adam Gottstein, grandson of Bernard Zakheim)

Leah Royall, granddaughter of Bernard Zakheim 

Bethany Stark, granddaughter of Bernard Zakheim



 
Thank you.

Robert W. Cherny
Professor emeritus of History
San Francisco State University



From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** SAN FRANCISCO ANNOUNCES NEXT PHASE OF REOPENING TO BEGIN ON JUNE

29
Date: Monday, June 22, 2020 11:52:07 AM
Attachments: 06.22.20 Reopening_Mini Phase_June 29.pdf

 
 
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
Date: Monday, June 22, 2020 at 11:15 AM
To: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>
Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** SAN FRANCISCO ANNOUNCES NEXT PHASE OF
REOPENING TO BEGIN ON JUNE 29
 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Monday, June 22, 2020
Contact: San Francisco Joint Information Center, dempress@sfgov.org 
 

*** PRESS RELEASE ***
SAN FRANCISCO ANNOUNCES NEXT PHASE OF

REOPENING TO BEGIN ON JUNE 29
Additional businesses and activities that will open include hair salons, barbers, museums,

zoos, and outdoor bars, as long as the State approves San Francisco’s request for a variance
and health indicators remain stable

 
San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed and Director of Health Dr. Grant Colfax
today announced the next phase of the City’s reopening will begin on Monday, June 29. Some
businesses and activities originally planned to open in mid-July or later will be allowed to
open, including hair salons, barbers, museums, zoos, tattoo parlors, massage establishments,
nail salons and outdoor bars. Once the City’s request for a variance from the California
Department of Public Health is approved, and as long as San Francisco continues meetings
several key health indicators, the City will allow these businesses and social activities to
resume with required safety protocols in place.
 
“Thanks to San Franciscans’ efforts to follow health requirements, wear face coverings, and
practice social distancing, our COVID-19 health indicators are in a good place and we can
continue reopening our city,” said Mayor Breed. “We know a lot of businesses and residents
are struggling financially, and this next step will help get more San Franciscans back to work

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
Additional businesses and activities that will open include hair salons, barbers, museums, zoos, 


and outdoor bars, as long as the State approves San Francisco’s request for a variance and 


health indicators remain stable 


 


San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed and Director of Health Dr. Grant Colfax today 


announced the next phase of the City’s reopening will begin on Monday, June 29. Some 


businesses and activities originally planned to open in mid-July or later will be allowed to open, 


including hair salons, barbers, museums, zoos, tattoo parlors, massage establishments, nail salons 


and outdoor bars. Once the City’s request for a variance from the California Department of 


Public Health is approved, and as long as San Francisco continues meetings several key health 


indicators, the City will allow these businesses and social activities to resume with required 


safety protocols in place.  


 


“Thanks to San Franciscans’ efforts to follow health requirements, wear face coverings, and 


practice social distancing, our COVID-19 health indicators are in a good place and we can 


continue reopening our city,” said Mayor Breed. “We know a lot of businesses and residents are 


struggling financially, and this next step will help get more San Franciscans back to work while 


still balancing safety. I want to thank the Economic Recovery Task Force and the Department of 


Public Health for continuing to work together to move our City forward safely. We are very 


much living with COVID-19, and I know that San Francisco residents will continue to prioritize 


public health as we reopen so that we can keep our entire City healthy.” 


 


On Tuesday, June 16, the San Francisco Board of Supervisors approved a motion allowing for 


the Department of Public Health (DPH) to seek a variance from the state, which would allow 


local control to open more businesses ahead of the state’s current phasing. The Department of 


Public Health has submitted the request for a variance and is waiting for approval from the state.  


 


The public’s continued partnership and cooperation with face coverings and other health 


precautions such as social distancing, frequent handwashing, staying home if sick, and cleaning 


frequently touched surfaces are essential to continue reopening. 


 


“We appreciate the Governor’s recognition that gradual reopening depends on local 


circumstances and the health indicators in each community,” said Dr. Grant Colfax, Director of 


Health. “We will continue to closely monitor those indicators in San Francisco as we partner 


with City and community leaders on careful reopening. We expect COVID-19 cases to increase 


as we reopen. To keep that increase manageable and sustain our commitment to protecting the 
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people most vulnerable to the virus, everyone in San Francisco must continue to take the 


precautions that save lives.”  


 


San Francisco’s Stay Home Health Order remains in effect and is gradually being amended to 


allow for a safer reopening. On Monday, June 15, the City entered into Phase 2B of its local 


reopening plan. San Francisco entered Phase 2A of the reopening plan on June 1, 2020 and on 


June 12, 2020 allowed outdoor dining with safety protocols to begin. In conjunction with outdoor 


dining, the City is offering free permits for businesses to occupy the sidewalk and other public 


property to operate their business through the Shared Spaces program. 


 


If the State approves the City’s variance request and San Francisco continues meeting several 


key health indicators, the Health Officer will issue an amendment to the Stay Home Health 


Order, allowing additional businesses and activities to resume. Once issued, that amendment will 


allow the following activities and businesses to resume on June 29: 


 


- Hair salons and barber shops 


- Nail salons 


- Tattoo salons  


- Museums  


- Zoos 


- Outdoor bars  


- Outdoor swimming 


 


San Francisco’s reopening plan is based on a San Francisco-specific risk model to control the 


spread of COVID-19 and protect public health. The plan is also informed by the work of the San 


Francisco COVID-19 Economic Recovery Task Force and the Department of Public Health 


monitoring of the virus. 


 


“The Task Force has been working hard to support local businesses on reopening. Moving 


forward with opening personal services is especially important because unlike other types of 


businesses, nail salons, barbershops and aestheticians haven't been able to continue through 


online sales or offer services at curbside," said Assessor Carmen Chu, co-chair of the Economic 


Recovery Task Force. "In addition, from an equity perspective, these businesses also 


disproportionately impact women and communities of color.” 


 


"San Francisco's global leadership in flattening the curve continues to result in more and more 


opportunities for safe re-engagement in the civic, cultural and economic activities that make 


living here so special," said Joaquin Torres, Director of the Office of Economic and Workforce 


Development. "As summer begins, we know the businesses and public institutions included in 


this round of reopening will come as a breath of fresh air for San Franciscans and the 


hardworking people set to reopen their doors and welcome us back safely." 


 


As the City reopens with a focus on safety and equity, DPH will continue to track the impact of 


the virus on the community and health system to inform public policy. As people start to move 


about the City more and increase activities, San Francisco will likely experience increases in 
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cases and hospitalizations. The City will also address the disparities already identified for low-


wage workers, people who must leave home to work, and workers who live in crowded 


conditions as San Francisco continues to reopen.  


 


San Francisco’s health indicators are an important tool to monitor the level of COVID-19 in the 


community and the ability of our health care system to meet the needs of residents. The Health 


Indicators monitor cases, hospital system, testing, contact tracing and personal protective 


equipment. The Health Indicators are not an on/off switch for the reopening, but instead measure 


the pandemic in San Francisco and the City’s ability to manage it. They are posted on the 


San Francisco COVID-19 Data Tracker so that San Franciscans can stay informed. 


 


 


### 
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while still balancing safety. I want to thank the Economic Recovery Task Force and the
Department of Public Health for continuing to work together to move our City forward safely.
We are very much living with COVID-19, and I know that San Francisco residents will
continue to prioritize public health as we reopen so that we can keep our entire City healthy.”
 
On Tuesday, June 16, the San Francisco Board of Supervisors approved a motion allowing for
the Department of Public Health (DPH) to seek a variance from the state, which would allow
local control to open more businesses ahead of the state’s current phasing. The Department of
Public Health has submitted the request for a variance and is waiting for approval from the
state.
 
The public’s continued partnership and cooperation with face coverings and other health
precautions such as social distancing, frequent handwashing, staying home if sick, and
cleaning frequently touched surfaces are essential to continue reopening.
 
“We appreciate the Governor’s recognition that gradual reopening depends on local
circumstances and the health indicators in each community,” said Dr. Grant Colfax, Director
of Health. “We will continue to closely monitor those indicators in San Francisco as we
partner with City and community leaders on careful reopening. We expect COVID-19 cases to
increase as we reopen. To keep that increase manageable and sustain our commitment to
protecting the people most vulnerable to the virus, everyone in San Francisco must continue to
take the precautions that save lives.”
 
San Francisco’s Stay Home Health Order remains in effect and is gradually being amended to
allow for a safer reopening. On Monday, June 15, the City entered into Phase 2B of its local
reopening plan. San Francisco entered Phase 2A of the reopening plan on June 1, 2020 and on
June 12, 2020 allowed outdoor dining with safety protocols to begin. In conjunction with
outdoor dining, the City is offering free permits for businesses to occupy the sidewalk and
other public property to operate their business through the Shared Spaces program.
 
If the State approves the City’s variance request and San Francisco continues meeting several
key health indicators, the Health Officer will issue an amendment to the Stay Home Health
Order, allowing additional businesses and activities to resume. Once issued, that amendment
will allow the following activities and businesses to resume on June 29:
 

Hair salons and barber shops
Nail salons
Tattoo salons
Museums
Zoos
Outdoor bars
Outdoor swimming
 

San Francisco’s reopening plan is based on a San Francisco-specific risk model to control the
spread of COVID-19 and protect public health. The plan is also informed by the work of the
San Francisco COVID-19 Economic Recovery Task Force and the Department of Public
Health monitoring of the virus.
 
“The Task Force has been working hard to support local businesses on reopening. Moving
forward with opening personal services is especially important because unlike other types of

https://sf.gov/reopening
https://sf.gov/reopening
https://sf.gov/use-sidewalk-or-parking-lane-your-business


businesses, nail salons, barbershops and aestheticians haven't been able to continue through
online sales or offer services at curbside," said Assessor Carmen Chu, co-chair of the
Economic Recovery Task Force. "In addition, from an equity perspective, these businesses
also disproportionately impact women and communities of color.”
 
“San Francisco's global leadership in flattening the curve continues to result in more and more
opportunities for safe re-engagement in the civic, cultural and economic activities that make
living here so special," said Joaquin Torres, Director of the Office of Economic and
Workforce Development. "As summer begins, we know the businesses and public institutions
included in this round of reopening will come as a breath of fresh air for San Franciscans and
the hardworking people set to reopen their doors and welcome us back while keeping us safe.”
 
As the City reopens with a focus on safety and equity, DPH will continue to track the impact
of the virus on the community and health system to inform public policy. As people start to
move about the City more and increase activities, San Francisco will likely experience
increases in cases and hospitalizations. The City will also address the disparities already
identified for low-wage workers, people who must leave home to work, and workers who live
in crowded conditions as San Francisco continues to reopen.
 
San Francisco’s health indicators are an important tool to monitor the level of COVID-19 in
the community and the ability of our health care system to meet the needs of residents. The
Health Indicators monitor cases, hospital system, testing, contact tracing and personal
protective equipment. The Health Indicators are not an on/off switch for the reopening, but
instead measure the pandemic in San Francisco and the City’s ability to manage it. They are
posted on the San Francisco COVID-19 Data Tracker so that San Franciscans can stay
informed.
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From: CPC-Commissions Secretary
To: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: Threatened UCSF Murals by Bernard Zakheim
Date: Friday, June 19, 2020 5:47:53 PM
Attachments: Outlook-cid_image0.png

SF Heritage re UCSF Zakheim Murals (6.19.20).pdf

 
 
Josephine O. Feliciano
Commission Affairs
San Francisco Planning Department 
1650 Mission Street, Suite 400 San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 415.575.9111 | www.sfplanning.org
San Francisco Property Information Map
 

From: Woody LaBounty <wlabounty@sfheritage.org> 
Sent: Friday, June 19, 2020 4:22 PM
To: Peskin, Aaron (BOS) <aaron.peskin@sfgov.org>
Cc: aaron.hyland.hpc <aaron.hyland.hpc@gmail.com>; dianematsuda
<dianematsuda@hotmail.com>; Black, Kate (CPC) <kate.black@sfgov.org>; RSEJohns
<RSEJohns@yahoo.com>; Breed, Mayor London (MYR) <mayorlondonbreed@sfgov.org>; Hillis, Rich
(CPC) <rich.hillis@sfgov.org>; Foley, Chris (CPC) <chris.foley@sfgov.org>; Pearlman, Jonathan (CPC)
<jonathan.pearlman@sfgov.org>; So, Lydia (CPC) <lydia.so@sfgov.org>; CPC-Commissions Secretary
<commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>; Fewer, Sandra (BOS) <sandra.fewer@sfgov.org>; Stefani,
Catherine (BOS) <catherine.stefani@sfgov.org>; Mar, Gordon (BOS) <gordon.mar@sfgov.org>;
Mandelman, Rafael (BOS) <rafael.mandelman@sfgov.org>; Haney, Matt (BOS)
<matt.haney@sfgov.org>; Ronen, Hillary <hillary.ronen@sfgov.org>; Walton, Shamann (BOS)
<shamann.walton@sfgov.org>; Safai, Ahsha (BOS) <ahsha.safai@sfgov.org>; Elsbernd, Sean (MYR)
<sean.elsbernd@sfgov.org>; Dennis Antenore <antenored@earthlink.net>; 'Robert Cherny'
<robt.cherny@gmail.com>; Hepner, Lee (BOS) <lee.hepner@sfgov.org>
Subject: Threatened UCSF Murals by Bernard Zakheim
 

 

Supervisor Peskin,
 
Attached is a letter from San Francisco Heritage adamantly opposing the possible destruction
of Bernard Zakheim's mural series, History of Medicine in California, at the University of
California San Francisco's Parnassus campus. Also attached are two recent articles from the
The Jewish News of Northern California and the San Francisco Chronicle on the murals history,
importance, and the current threat by UCSF to destroy them. 
 
In your role as chair of the Board of Supervisors Land Use and Transportation Committee, we
ask that you pursue all options to preserve these important New Deal-era murals, including an
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June 19, 2020 
 
Supervisor Aaron Peskin 
Chair, Land Use and Transportation Committee 
San Francisco Board of Supervisors 
1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, Room 244 
San Francisco, CA  94102 
 
Supervisor Peskin: 
 
San Francisco Heritage adamantly opposes the destruction of Bernard Zakheim’s ten-panel mural 
series, History of Medicine in California, on the walls of Toland Hall at the Parnassus campus of 
the University of California, San Francisco (UCSF). While housed on state property, we ask the 
Board of Supervisors to pursue every option to safeguard this important part of San Francisco 
history, including emergency City Landmark designation. 
 
Zakheim is among the leading New Deal-era muralists of the region and one of the first to use 
buon fresco, a medium that came to be identified with New Deal public murals. A protégé of Diego 
Rivera, Zakheim’s work can be found in Coit Tower and the city’s Alemany Emergency Hospital. 
Created between 1935 and 1938, History of Medicine represents his largest single project, 
celebrated by UCSF only five years ago as “the jewel of the University’s Art Collection.” Now, with a 
new research and academic building planned, the administration claims preserving the series is 
cost-prohibitive, this despite being able to fundraise for more than $4 billion in charitable gifts 
over the past three years. 
 
San Francisco Heritage has commissioned the San Francisco New Deal-era Historic Context 
Statement and is a champion of the city’s diverse public art and its role in defining the historical 
identity of our city and state. The New Deal context statement details the origins, history, and 
progressive ideals of Zakheim, his Toland Hall mural cycle, and its depictions. Important works 
such as History of Medicine in California are not only significant artistically but engage with 
historical perspectives and social issues that still resonate today. 
 
Heritage condemns the proposed destruction of the murals and is committed to working with 
UCSF to live up to its responsibility as stewards of this irreplaceable, publicly commissioned 
artwork. 
 
Sincerely, 


 
Mike Buhler 
President & CEO 
 
cc:   Mayor London Breed 


Members of the Board of Supervisors 
Members of the Historic Preservation Commission 
Rich Hillis, Director, San Francisco Planning 







Jewish muralist’s historic work faces
demolition at UCSF
By Laura Paull | June 18, 2020


By Laura Paull | June 18, 2020


Large panel from Bernard Zakheim's "History of Medicine in California." (Photo/Courtesy UCSF Archives & Special
Collections)


How does a significant piece of public art go from being the “jewel of the
University’s art collection” to a work designated for the wrecking ball in just
five years?


That is the question the descendants of the 20th-century Jewish artist
Bernard Zakheim are asking UCSF Medical Center, which on June 4 sent a
legal letter to a member of the family saying that the murals he painted in the
1930s could be destroyed in a process that could begin in 90 days.


The 10-panel series “History of Medicine in California,” which Zakheim
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produced between 1935 and 1938, was commissioned by UCSF and partly
funded by the Works Project Administration. Installed in Toland Hall, a
lecture room inside UC Hall, the vivid images of doctors, lab scientists,
suffering and recovered patients have been studied by generations of medical
students — except for one 20-year period after a particular professor objected
that the art was a distraction from the lectures and the university wallpapered
it over.


Since freed from that censorship, for decades the university has promoted the
art as a visual symbol of its humanistic values. In 2015, as part of the
institution’s 150th anniversary, the public was allowed to tour the murals,
and UCSF archivist Polina Ilieva wrote a blog describing them as “the jewel of
the University’s art collection.”


Physicians on the faculty have recorded lectures elucidating the details of the
murals to classes and the public, including a 1996 presentation in which Dr.
Robert Schindler lauds the murals as “the product of an extraordinary
individual.”


But now that UC Hall is scheduled to be torn down starting in 2022 to make
way for a 27,000-square-foot, state-of-the-art research and academic
building — part of a multiyear, multibillion overhaul of the Parnassus
campus, paid for in part by a $500 million gift from the Helen Diller
Foundation — those values have come into question.


“Up until very recently my impression was that the UCSF administration
understood the value of the murals as history and as art and wanted to
preserve and conserve them,” said Robert Cherny, professor emeritus of
history at San Francisco State and author of “Victor Arnautoff and the Politics
of Art” and many articles about the artists of the New Deal era, including
Zakheim. “An earlier plan was to convert Toland Hall into a community
center so that more of the public could see the murals. The new plan is an
abrupt turnaround by the university administration.”



https://www.sfchronicle.com/bayarea/article/UCSF-to-let-public-see-trove-of-medical-history-6107054.php#/1
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Zakheim, a major artist of the period who immigrated from Poland to San
Francisco in 1920 and studied fresco technique and painting with Mexican
artist Diego Rivera, already had made a name for himself as a muralist when
UCSF commissioned the work. Most notedly, he had spearheaded the 1934
Coit Tower mural project, which resulted in murals by 25 local artists
depicting California life.


But of all Zakheim’s output, the massive Toland Hall murals are his largest
single work, Cherny said.


According to Nathan Zakheim, his father “considered those to be his greatest
murals. They are extremely powerful works.”


Cherny regards Bernard Zakheim as “one of most prominent of the New Deal
artists; I’d place him in a group of the top three on the Pacific Coast, with
Victor Arnautoff and Lucien Labaudt, who painted the Beach Chalet mural.”


Zakheim was also a Jewish artist with “a commitment to Jewish culture,”
Cherny said.


Leah Royall, one of Zakheim’s granddaughters, remembers him as “a
character” who spoke five languages in addition to his native Polish.


“In his dusty house on the Sebastopol property that he called Farm Arts, he’d
stomp around singing Yiddish songs. He used to glue articles from the Jewish
Bulletin [now J.] into his typewritten letters to us and he loved talking
politics. This was a man who opposed ‘art for art’s sake’ — life and his art
were informed by his left-wing political convictions,” Royall told J.


In 1933, Zakheim created the mural “The Wedding Ceremony” for the JCC of
San Francisco. When the old building was torn down for a new one that
opened in 2004, the Zakheim family fought for the work’s preservation, and
the JCC ultimately agreed to remove the mural and reintegrate it into the new
facility.



https://www.jweekly.com/2012/01/20/citizens-fuel-effort-to-restore-coit-tower-murals/

https://blogs.library.ucsf.edu/broughttolight/2015/02/24/recent-acquisition-bernard-zakheim-collection/





Erasing artwork that is historically
significant to both San Francisco and
California stands in stark contrast to the
university’s original vision.


In its letter to Nathan Zakheim, as well as in an official statement explaining
its proposal to replace UC Hall, UCSF cited the conclusions of two historic
preservation firms that the removal of the murals prior to demolition would
result in irreparable damage to the works.


“UCSF has decided not to use public funds to physically preserve the murals,
especially at a time when the UC system faces financial challenges in the wake
of Covid-19. This decision in no way has to do with any complaints about the
murals,” the university said in its official statement. After requesting
additional comment from the administration, J. was referred back to the
statement.


The UCSF letter offered the Zakheim family a 90-day period to submit a
proposal to remove the murals at their own expense, after which the
university said it would make a public announcement calling for other
proposals to remove and take possession of the murals within an additional
120 days.


The university’s estimate of the cost of removal is around $8 million.


Nathan Zakheim, 76, an art conservator based in Los Angeles, says that figure
is unnecessarily high. In phone conversations with Brian Newman, UCSF’s
senior associate vice chancellor in charge of campus space planning, design,
construction and management, the artist’s elder son said he believed he could
get the job done for under $1 million. The ace up his sleeve is the fact that his
father taught him how to remove the murals during the time when they
worked together to remove and restore two other murals in UCSF’s Cole Hall







in 1967.


“These murals can be removed,” Cherny concurs. “Bernard Zakheim foresaw
that eventuality and planned for it, and taught Nathan the technique. That is
what the UCSF administration doesn’t seem to acknowledge.”


Bernard Zakheim with son Nathan in 1967 discussing mural removal and restoration at UCSF. (Photo/Courtesy
UCSF Archives & Special Collections)


The far-flung family of Zakheim’s descendants have united in a response to
the university that prioritizes the preservation of the murals.


“Ninety days is an unreasonable amount of time, and the clock is already
ticking,” said Zakheim grandson Adam Gottstein, 64. “I don’t want to get into
the politics of it; my hyperfocus is to find a resolution that will save the work
from demolition.”







Zakheim’s daughter, 97-year-old Ruth Gottstein, a lifelong social activist and
former independent publisher, dictated an irate letter from her assisted-living
facility in Jackson, Amador County.


“It is egregious to me that people today assign themselves the moral right to
decide what should happen to these historic and irreplaceable pieces of art.
They were painted in 1935! These were the thoughts and principles of the
artists at that time. To destroy them is to willfully ignore what was taking
place in our world and arbitrarily erase significant portions of our history and
evolution. Nobody has that kind of authority. Nobody.”


She called the university’s offer to commission a “three-dimensional digital
recording” of the artwork in lieu of preserving the physical murals “a
travesty.”


Ruth Gottstein’s niece, Bethany Stark, “took umbrage” at the university’s a
priori decision to destroy the murals unless the family took them away.


“These are works that have artistic, historical and community value,” Stark
said by phone from L.A. “They belong to the community, to the public and to
the university. The murals are not just some antique chair that they can say,
‘It doesn’t work anymore, do you want it back?”


Royall, an editor in London, shared the outrage, describing the university’s
decision as “criminal short-sightedness.”


“Erasing artwork that is historically significant to both San Francisco and
California stands in stark contrast to the university’s original vision,” Royall
said.


Ruth Gottstein also says that the history, ideas and research integrated into
the murals continue to provide value for present and future generations.


“At a time of a global health care–based pandemic,” she points out, “the need
for the ‘messaging’ in my father’s works in Toland Hall are ironically more







applicable today than ever.”


“It is my hope that we can extend the deadline in order to come up with a
collaborative solution to save my grandfather’s murals,” Adam Gottstein
wrote in his own June 15 letter to UCSF.


Arts and preservation organizations and concerned individuals around the
city are rousing to the cause. On June 23, S.F. Supervisor Aaron Peskin plans
to introduce a resolution to the Board of Supervisors to designate landmark
status to the murals. The motion would then have to be taken up by the
Historic Preservation Commission and the Planning Department. While such
a designation would not legally protect the murals, because the university is a
state institution, “I wouldn’t initiate this process if I didn’t believe the murals
merit protection, and I hope this symbolic action helps to bring the university
to its senses,” Peskin told J.


Meanwhile, Nathan Zakheim says his ongoing discussions with the university
have been good so far.


“I’m not approaching this as an activist,” he said. “I’m a technician. I know
how to take murals off walls, and that’s what I want to do.”







UCSF New Deal murals could be
destroyed
Local // Bay Area & State


1of4Professor Robert Schindler talks about murals painted by artist Bernard Zakheim on the UCSF Parnassus
campus in 2015.Photo: Liz Hafalia / The Chronicle 2015







2of4Murals painted by Bernard Zakheim may be destroyed as UCSF plans to build a hospital.Photo: Liz Hafalia /
The Chronicle 2015


3of4The murals featured UCSF staff and faculty, including Lucy Wanzer, the first woman to graduate from the
school.Photo: Liz Hafalia / The Chronicle 2015







4of4The murals date back to the New Deal era.Photo: Liz Hafalia / The Chronicle 2015


A series of celebrated New Deal-era murals on the UCSF Parnassus campus
could be destroyed unless someone comes up with as much as $8 million that
the school says would be needed to safely move and preserve the artwork.


In 2015, UCSF invited members of the public into a lecture hall on the
campus to see what it described as the “crown jewel” of its art collection: a
series of New Deal-era frescoes depicting the history of medicine in
California.


Art history buffs flocked to see the murals, which were painted in the 1930s
by Diego Rivera collaborator Bernard Zakheim. Emeritus professor of
medicine Dr. Robert Schindler called the murals “enormously significant.”


Five years later, however, the future of the artwork is uncertain as UCSF
prepares to knock down UC Hall, where the 10 frescoes are located, as part of
an ambitious plan to build a new 1.5 million-square-foot hospital and
research campus there.



https://www.sfchronicle.com/bayarea/article/UCSF-to-let-public-see-trove-of-medical-history-6107054.php





In a statement, UCSF spokeswoman Jennifer O’Brien said the university
doesn’t have the $8 million it would cost to move the artwork to a new
building, and moving the “fragile murals would likely cause irreparable
damage,” she said.


“Based on these factors, UCSF has decided not to use public funds to
physically preserve the murals, especially at a time when the UC system faces
financial challenges in the wake of COVID-19,” she said.


Instead the university will hire a digital preservation firm to “create a three-
dimensional digital recording of the murals that would be prominently
highlighted in an interpretive virtual reality exhibit on campus.”


O’Brien said the school has reached out to Nathan Zakheim, the 76-year-old
son of the artist, to see if the family would like to remove the murals “at their
own expense.” The family has 90 days to submit a detailed proposal for how
the murals would be removed from the building and preserved. If they do not
submit a plan, UCSF will issue a public request for proposals to see if any
other individual or group is interested in taking them. If no one responds to
that, the murals would be destroyed.


Nathan Zakheim accused the university of “railroading” his family. Zakheim,
an art conservator based in Los Angeles, said that the $8 million estimate was
“grossly inflated” and that he could do it for $1 million. He suggested that
UCSF should “design a square room in the new campus” specifically for the
artwork or put it in the library.


“It is a magnificent, unparalleled historic document,” said Zakheim.


“It’s a key part of the university’s history and a key part of San Francisco’s
history. If they don’t care about that, well, it’s ridiculous,” he added.


He also said that UCSF administrators had told him that some students and
faculty members had complained about the content of the work, particularly







the way that Native Americans and Spanish missionaries are depicted.


Bernard Zakheim’s work in San Francisco


Zakheim was a Polish-born San Francisco muralist, best known for his work
on the Coit Tower murals. In the early 1930s, he committed himself to the
preservation and interpretation of Jewish American life and culture through
the making of art. He was one of the organizers of a Yiddish school in the
Fillmore District, back when that neighborhood was largely Jewish. He
helped found the San Francisco Artists and Writers Union, which lobbied for
government arts funding. Eventually that led to the funding of Zakheim’s
work in Coit Tower.


In San Francisco, Zakheim’s artwork can be found at UCSF’s Parnassus
campus, the lobby of Coit Tower and the San Francisco Jewish Community
Center. He also painted murals inside the former Alemany Health Center.


“The Jewish Wedding,” 1933


Jewish Community Center of San Francisco, 3200 California St.


“Library,” 1934


Coit Tower, 1 Telegraph Hill Blvd.


“Community Spirit,” “Growth,” 1934


Former Alemany Health Center building, 35-45 Onondaga Ave.


“History of Medicine in California,” “Modern Medicine,” “Ancient
Medicine: Superstition in Medicine,” 1940


UCSF Parnassus Campus, 505 Parnassus Ave.


O’Brien said the subject matter of the murals had nothing to do with the
decision to attempt to find a new home for them.







Robert Cherny, an emeritus professor of history at San Francisco State
University, said the decision to jettison the murals surprised him, especially
since the school seemed enthusiastic about the artwork in the past.


“They seem to be very proud of the murals and very much wanted to share
them,” he said. “It’s a big turnaround for the UCSF administration. To me this
is just somebody in the UCSF administration saying, ‘We don’t want to
bother.’ It’s a very cavalier disregard for both history and art.”


In total Zakheim painted 12 murals at UCSF in 1930s: the 10-panel “History
of Medicine in California” and two-panel “Modern Medicine” and “Ancient
Medicine: Superstition in Medicine” in the Health Sciences West lecture
halls. The latter two works are not threatened with removal.


There is precedent for rescuing Zakheim’s mural art. The Jewish Community
Center of San Francisco saved a 1933 fresco, “The Jewish Wedding,” when
constructing its current building, and unveiled the restored work in 2004.
The Zakheim family assisted in the restoration effort.


J.K. Dineen is a San Francisco Chronicle staff writer. Email:
jdineen@sfchronicle.com Twitter: @sfjkdineen
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emergency City Landmark designation. San Francisco Heritage is a champion of the city’s
diverse public art and its role in defining the historical identity of our city and state. Works
such as History of Medicine in California are not only significant artistically, but engage with
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
 
Thank you for your attention to this important matter.
 
Woody LaBounty
San Francisco Heritage
Cell: 415-244-8739

 

Woody LaBounty

Vice President of Advocacy & Programs

————————————————————————————————

SAN FRANCISCO HERITAGE

HAAS-LILIENTHAL HOUSE

2007 FRANKLIN STREET

SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94109

P: 415.441.3000  x 20

 

www.sfheritage.org

wlabounty@sfheritage.org

He/Him/His
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*** PRESS RELEASE ***
MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES $1.5 MILLION TO
ESTABLISH CITY’S FIRST AFRICAN AMERICAN SMALL

BUSINESS REVOLVING LOAN FUND IN
RESPONSE TO COVID-19

A partnership with the San Francisco African American Chamber of Commerce and
Main Street Launch to establish a new loan fund to support Black-owned businesses that have

been deeply impacted by the pandemic
 

San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed, the Office of Economic and Workforce
Development (OEWD), Main Street Launch, and the San Francisco African American
Chamber of Commerce today announced the establishment of the African American Small
Business Revolving Loan Fund, supported by an initial investment of $1.5 million from
Give2SF donations. The Fund will provide access to capital and financial assistance for
African American entrepreneurs and Black-owned small businesses impacted by COVID-19.
 
The new loan program complements Citywide efforts to support micro-enterprises and small
businesses historically underserved by private banks and other traditional sources of financing,

mailto:jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
mailto:Josephine.Feliciano@sfgov.org
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*** PRESS RELEASE *** 


MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES $1.5 MILLION TO 


ESTABLISH CITY’S FIRST AFRICAN AMERICAN SMALL 


BUSINESS REVOLVING LOAN FUND IN 


RESPONSE TO COVID-19 
A partnership with the San Francisco African American Chamber of Commerce and Main Street 


Launch to establish a new loan fund to support Black-owned businesses that have been deeply 


impacted by the pandemic 


 


San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed, the Office of Economic and Workforce 


Development (OEWD), Main Street Launch, and the San Francisco African American Chamber 


of Commerce today announced the establishment of the African American Small Business 


Revolving Loan Fund, supported by an initial investment of $1.5 million from Give2SF 


donations. The Fund will provide access to capital and financial assistance for African American 


entrepreneurs and Black-owned small businesses impacted by COVID-19.  


 


The new loan program complements Citywide efforts to support micro-enterprises and small 


businesses historically underserved by private banks and other traditional sources of financing, 


as well as OEWD’s standing commitments to invest in the City’s historically Black 


neighborhoods.  


  


“For generations, Black-owned businesses have been marginalized and discriminated against, all 


too often having difficulty securing the financing they need to open and operate,” said Mayor 


Breed. “In the wake of COVID-19, businesses all over San Francisco are struggling to survive, 


and Black-owned businesses in particular have been especially hard hit. This new loan fund is a 


step in the right direction to right past wrongs and help San Francisco businesses stabilize and 


thrive.”  


  


The purpose of the African American Small Business Revolving Loan Fund is to help stabilize 


San Francisco’s Black-owned small businesses by meeting urgent capital needs brought on by 


sudden revenue loss from business disruption resulting from COVID-19. As the City recovers 


from the current recession, it has made a commitment to ensuring a more equitable recovery and 


inclusive future economy.   


  


“Our Black owned small businesses have suffered for years trying to survive through high rents, 


outmigration of community, gentrification and isolation,” said Supervisor Shamann Walton. 


“This fund will provide much needed resources for Black businesses to survive this pandemic 


and continue to pay their employees. I am most excited about the loan forgiveness options 



mailto:mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org
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available to recipients of the fund. Without this support, we would be complicit in the possible 


complete eradication of Black businesses in San Francisco.” 


 


San Francisco recognizes the oppressive history of racial injustice, the structural inequities that 


remain today, and the trauma those inequities perpetuate. Specifically, Black-owned businesses 


were in a perilous environment pre-COVID-19 and that environment has resulted in 


disproportionate financial impacts due to the pandemic both locally and nationally, creating 


further uncertainty as the City moves into recovery. Black-owned businesses are over-


represented in the hardest hit sectors of the economy and tend to be smaller, with only a third of 


the revenue of non-black businesses. Black-owned businesses also face more hurdles in 


accessing liquidity and support services, and are 60 percent less likely to receive all of the 


financing they need, which puts them at additional risk for closure.  


  


“Equitable access to economic opportunity is critical for the ongoing cultural and economic 


vitality of San Francisco,” said Joaquín Torres, Director of the Office of Economic and 


Workforce Development. “Black-owned businesses provide important services to our 


community, are a consistent source of employment for Black workers, and spur meaningful local 


investments. By providing an opportunity to positively and proactively change the 


socioeconomic impacts that race still plays in the lives of Black San Franciscans, this new fund 


is a part of the solution. We can and must do more as a City to build wealth and generate 


wholeness for San Francisco’s Black community.”  


  


“As we transition to reopening, we need to look beyond the requirement to wear face coverings,” 


said Sheryl Davis, Director of San Francisco’s Human Rights Commission. “What we defined as 


‘normal’ was not working for so many in our City before COVID-19. Going forward, we must 


normalize investing in our most vulnerable community members and disrupting systems of 


inequity that have been perpetrated for centuries. This fund represents that shift to supporting 


business owners that have been overlooked and disadvantaged, while others profited unfairly. 


It’s great to see them now rewarded for their innovation, creativity and hard work.” 


 


San Francisco’s African American Small Business Revolving Loan Fund will function as a rapid 


deployment fund to support Black-owned businesses in San Francisco, including those 


businesses that provide needed services in historic African American neighborhoods. The goal is 


to enable businesses to sustainably maintain or advance their business operations while building 


African American community wealth in San Francisco, meeting essential needs, expanding 


opportunity and reducing structural barriers to equity.  


  


Funding will be disbursed to eligible businesses by Main Street Launch. The $1.5 million will 


support zero-interest loans up to $50,000, with flexible repayment terms, loan forgiveness 


options, and wide-ranging technical assistance. The goal is to ensure that loan eligibility criteria 


are driven by need and that the loan product is structured to minimize barriers to access, 


including no personal guarantees or collateral requirements. Loans will be prioritized for long-


standing San Francisco Black-owned businesses, especially those whose business operations are 


most heavily impacted by ongoing Shelter in Place restrictions.    
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“We are proud to partner with OEWD to support the honorable Mayor London Breed in her 


efforts to strengthen and reimagine African American small businesses in San Francisco during 


these turbulent COVID-19 times,” says Jacob Singer, President and CEO, Main Street Launch. 


“We are looking forward to working with our community partners to deepen our impact and 


support of African American businesses in San Francisco.”  


  


“The compelling urgency of an African American Small Business Revolving Loan Fund has 


long been overdue; now it is amplified due to COVID-19,” says SFAACC President, Dr. 


Matthew Ajiake. “This equity opportunity fund gives Black businesses the essential financial 


assistance required to curtail the historic and systemic inequalities of opportunity, now 


exacerbated by inadequacy of federal stimulus programs that have funded less than 12% of Black 


businesses. This absence of adequate federal focus and financial assistance have handicapped a 


disproportionate number of black businesses, forcing many owners to eventually close their 


doors forever. It is against this backdrop that we truly welcome our new partnership and thank 


Mayor Breed for her support and leadership.” Dr. Ajiake continued, “The SFAACC believes this 


fund would disrupt systemic racial inequities in funding mechanisms and strengthen Black 


businesses in this great City as their survivability and sustainability have cascading impacts on 


every aspect of our shared San Francisco experience and future.”  


  


The African American Small Business Revolving Loan Fund is a result of public and private 


partnerships that leverage various resources, including generous donations to the Give2SF 


COVID-19 Response and Recovery Fund. Donations to Give2SF support housing stabilization, 


food security, and financial security for workers and small businesses impacted by COVID-19. 


 


“It’s really hard for my business right now, still paying rent and not having any income,” said 


Hudari “Coach” Murray, owner of NewBills Barbershop at 781 Divisadero Street. “I have 


applied for three grants but haven’t received any help. So I’m relieved and gratified to hear news 


of this new funding opportunity. Thank you to Mayor Breed and the City for listening.” 


 


“COVID-19 has wreaked havoc on the African American community from both a health and 


economic standpoint. As a Black Business Owner in the Fillmore, it’s been virtually impossible 


to get assistance,” said Cheree Scarbrough, co-owner of Phenix Hair Designs formerly 


Winfred’s. “This new Fund will help businesses like mine implement necessary changes in order 


to keep our doors open and our clients safe. Mayor Breed has been a world leader during these 


unprecedented times, and I’m grateful for her leadership and knowing that we haven’t been 


forgotten.” 


 


Interested small businesses can visit oewd.org/covid19/business to learn more about how to 


apply for the new loan program, as well as existing loan and grant programs. 


 


Additional Support for Small Businesses  


Mayor Breed’s initiatives to support small businesses during the COVID-19 pandemic include:  


  


 Deferring business registration fees businesses totaling $49 million for 89,000 businesses 


and further delaying the City’s collection of the unified license fee until September 30, 



http://oewd.org/covid19/business
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2020. This will lead to $14 million in deferrals impacting 11,000 payees. In March, 


Mayor Breed announced an initial three-month delay for the collection of the fee.  


 Business tax deferrals for small businesses with up to $10 million in gross receipts. 


Mayor Breed and Treasurer Cisneros notified small businesses that their first quarter 


businesses taxes can be deferred until February 2021. No interest payments, fees, or fines 


will accrue as a result of the deferral.  


 $10 million Workers and Families First Paid Sick Leave Program, proving up to 40 hours 


of paid sick leave per employee. 


 $9 million Emergency Loan Fund providing up to $50,000 in zero-interest loans for 


individual small businesses. 


 $2.5 million Resiliency Grants providing up to $10,000 grants to over 300 small 


businesses. 


 $1 million for Neighborhood Mini-Grants to Support 300 Small Businesses in 


Underserved Communities. 


 $2.5 million in support for working artists and arts and cultural organizations financially 


impacted by COVID-19. 


 Supporting nonprofits funded by the City so workers don’t lose their incomes;  


 Issuing a Moratorium on Commercial Evictions for small and medium sized businesses 


that can’t afford to pay rent. 


 Capping the commission at 15% on 3rd party food delivery companies;  


 Advocating for additional resources for small business and workers through the federal 


CARES Act. 


 Establishing City Philanthropic www.Give2SF.org Fund, where donations will support 


housing stabilization, food security, and financial security for workers and small 


businesses impacted by coronavirus. 


 Launching a one stop City website for businesses and workers seeking resources, 


contacts, and updates during the COVID-19 emergency: www.oewd.org/covid19.  


 


 


### 
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as well as OEWD’s standing commitments to invest in the City’s historically Black
neighborhoods.
 
“For generations, Black-owned businesses have been marginalized and discriminated against,
all too often having difficulty securing the financing they need to open and operate,” said
Mayor Breed. “In the wake of COVID-19, businesses all over San Francisco are struggling to
survive, and Black-owned businesses in particular have been especially hard hit. This new
loan fund is a step in the right direction to right past wrongs and help San Francisco businesses
stabilize and thrive.”
 
The purpose of the African American Small Business Revolving Loan Fund is to help stabilize
San Francisco’s Black-owned small businesses by meeting urgent capital needs brought on by
sudden revenue loss from business disruption resulting from COVID-19. As the City recovers
from the current recession, it has made a commitment to ensuring a more equitable recovery
and inclusive future economy. 
 
“Our Black owned small businesses have suffered for years trying to survive through high
rents, outmigration of community, gentrification and isolation,” said Supervisor Shamann
Walton. “This fund will provide much needed resources for Black businesses to survive this
pandemic and continue to pay their employees. I am most excited about the loan forgiveness
options available to recipients of the fund. Without this support, we would be complicit in the
possible complete eradication of Black businesses in San Francisco.”
 
San Francisco recognizes the oppressive history of racial injustice, the structural inequities
that remain today, and the trauma those inequities perpetuate. Specifically, Black-owned
businesses were in a perilous environment pre-COVID-19 and that environment has resulted
in disproportionate financial impacts due to the pandemic both locally and nationally, creating
further uncertainty as the City moves into recovery. Black-owned businesses are over-
represented in the hardest hit sectors of the economy and tend to be smaller, with only a third
of the revenue of non-black businesses. Black-owned businesses also face more hurdles in
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
community, are a consistent source of employment for Black workers, and spur meaningful
local investments. By providing an opportunity to positively and proactively change the
socioeconomic impacts that race still plays in the lives of Black San Franciscans, this new
fund is a part of the solution. We can and must do more as a City to build wealth and generate
wholeness for San Francisco’s Black community.”
 
“As we transition to reopening, we need to look beyond the requirement to wear face
coverings,” said Sheryl Davis, Director of San Francisco’s Human Rights Commission. “What
we defined as ‘normal’ was not working for so many in our City before COVID-19. Going
forward, we must normalize investing in our most vulnerable community members and
disrupting systems of inequity that have been perpetrated for centuries. This fund represents
that shift to supporting business owners that have been overlooked and disadvantaged, while
others profited unfairly. It’s great to see them now rewarded for their innovation, creativity
and hard work.”



 
San Francisco’s African American Small Business Revolving Loan Fund will function as
a rapid deployment fund to support Black-owned businesses in San Francisco, including those
businesses that provide needed services in historic African American neighborhoods. The goal
is to enable businesses to sustainably maintain or advance their business operations while
building African American community wealth in San Francisco, meeting essential needs,
expanding opportunity and reducing structural barriers to equity.
 
Funding will be disbursed to eligible businesses by Main Street Launch. The $1.5 million will
support zero-interest loans up to $50,000, with flexible repayment terms, loan forgiveness
options, and wide-ranging technical assistance. The goal is to ensure that loan eligibility
criteria are driven by need and that the loan product is structured to minimize barriers to
access, including no personal guarantees or collateral requirements. Loans will be prioritized
for long-standing San Francisco Black-owned businesses, especially those whose business
operations are most heavily impacted by ongoing Shelter in Place restrictions.  
 
“We are proud to partner with OEWD to support the honorable Mayor London Breed in her
efforts to strengthen and reimagine African American small businesses in San Francisco
during these turbulent COVID-19 times,” says Jacob Singer, President and CEO, Main Street
Launch. “We are looking forward to working with our community partners to deepen our
impact and support of African American businesses in San Francisco.”
 
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
exacerbated by inadequacy of federal stimulus programs that have funded less than 12% of
Black businesses. This absence of adequate federal focus and financial assistance have
handicapped a disproportionate number of black businesses, forcing many owners to
eventually close their doors forever. It is against this backdrop that we truly welcome our new
partnership and thank Mayor Breed for her support and leadership.” Dr. Ajiake continued,
“The SFAACC believes this fund would disrupt systemic racial inequities in funding
mechanisms and strengthen Black businesses in this great City as their survivability and
sustainability have cascading impacts on every aspect of our shared San Francisco experience
and future.”
 
The African American Small Business Revolving Loan Fund is a result of public and private
partnerships that leverage various resources, including generous donations to the Give2SF
COVID-19 Response and Recovery Fund. Donations to Give2SF support housing
stabilization, food security, and financial security for workers and small businesses impacted
by COVID-19.
 
“It’s really hard for my business right now, still paying rent and not having any income,” said
Hudari “Coach” Murray, owner of NewBills Barbershop at 781 Divisadero Street. “I have
applied for three grants but haven’t received any help. So I’m relieved and gratified to hear
news of this new funding opportunity. Thank you to Mayor Breed and the City for listening.”
 
“COVID-19 has wreaked havoc on the African American community from both a health and
economic standpoint. As a Black Business Owner in the Fillmore, it’s been virtually
impossible to get assistance,” said Cheree Scarbrough, co-owner of Phenix Hair Designs



formerly Winfred’s. “This new Fund will help businesses like
mine implement necessary changes in order to keep our doors open and our clients safe.
Mayor Breed has been a world leader during these unprecedented times, and I’m grateful for
her leadership and knowing that we haven’t been forgotten.”
 
Interested small businesses can visit oewd.org/covid19/business to learn more about how to
apply for the new loan program, as well as existing loan and grant programs.
 
Additional Support for Small Businesses 
Mayor Breed’s initiatives to support small businesses during the COVID-19
pandemic include: 
 

Deferring business registration fees businesses totaling $49 million for 89,000
businesses and further delaying the City’s collection of the unified license fee until
September 30, 2020. This will lead to $14 million in deferrals impacting 11,000 payees.
In March, Mayor Breed announced an initial three-month delay for the collection of the
fee. 
Business tax deferrals for small businesses with up to $10 million in gross receipts.
Mayor Breed and Treasurer Cisneros notified small businesses that their first quarter
businesses taxes can be deferred until February 2021. No interest payments, fees, or
fines will accrue as a result of the deferral. 
$10 million Workers and Families First Paid Sick Leave Program, proving up to 40
hours of paid sick leave per employee.
$9 million Emergency Loan Fund providing up to $50,000 in zero-interest loans for
individual small businesses.
$2.5 million Resiliency Grants providing up to $10,000 grants to over 300 small
businesses.
$1 million for Neighborhood Mini-Grants to Support 300 Small Businesses in
Underserved Communities.
$2.5 million in support for working artists and arts and cultural organizations financially
impacted by COVID-19.
Supporting nonprofits funded by the City so workers don’t lose their incomes; 
Issuing a Moratorium on Commercial Evictions for small and medium sized businesses
that can’t afford to pay rent.
Capping the commission at 15% on 3rd party food delivery companies; 
Advocating for additional resources for small business and workers through the federal
CARES Act.
Establishing City Philanthropic www.Give2SF.org Fund, where donations will support
housing stabilization, food security, and financial security for workers and small
businesses impacted by coronavirus.
Launching a one stop City website for businesses and workers seeking resources,
contacts, and updates during the COVID-19 emergency: www.oewd.org/covid19. 

 
 

###
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From: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>
Date: Friday, June 19, 2020 at 8:53 AM
To: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>
Subject: *** STATEMENT *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ON JUNETEENTH
 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Friday, June 19, 2020
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org
 

*** STATEMENT ***
MAYOR LONDON BREED ON JUNETEENTH

 
“Growing up in the Fillmore, I always looked forward to the Juneteenth Festival, right in the
heart of the Western Addition community.
 
The Black Cowboys would ride their horses through the crowd. Performers, both young and
old, would discuss and re-enact the history of Juneteenth. We gorged ourselves on wonderful
homemade food – including that delicious barbecue – which didn’t just fill the belly, it fed the
soul. And folks would sell all manner of handmade items celebrating the Black community
and illustrating our culture and experience.
 
Yes, Juneteenth has always been a special time for me, as an African American woman – this
tradition, here in my own neighborhood, celebrating my people WITH my people … it made
me feel part of something larger than myself, and it made me feel valued. 
 
It wasn’t just about the celebration. Juneteenth has always been so much more than a festival –
it’s a reminder of our history, a reminder of the bonds of slavery, of our long struggle for
equality. And it’s a reminder that, despite our progress, we continue to face so many
challenges. There are still so many barriers to equality, to equity and to justice.
 
When we came together during Juneteenth, we were empowered to celebrate,

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
 
The Black Cowboys would ride their horses through the crowd. Performers, both young and old, 
would discuss and re-enact the history of Juneteenth. We gorged ourselves on wonderful 
homemade food – including that delicious barbecue – which didn’t just fill the belly, it fed the 
soul. And folks would sell all manner of handmade items celebrating the Black community and 
illustrating our culture and experience. 
 
Yes, Juneteenth has always been a special time for me, as an African American woman – this 
tradition, here in my own neighborhood, celebrating my people WITH my people … it made me 
feel part of something larger than myself, and it made me feel valued.   
 
It wasn’t just about the celebration. Juneteenth has always been so much more than a festival – 
it’s a reminder of our history, a reminder of the bonds of slavery, of our long struggle for 
equality. And it’s a reminder that, despite our progress, we continue to face so many challenges. 
There are still so many barriers to equality, to equity and to justice. 
 
When we came together during Juneteenth, we were empowered to celebrate, unapologetically, 
our community, our culture, and our significance to this country.  As we celebrate Juneteenth this 
year, at a time when there is a renewed call – an awe-inspiring DEMAND – for justice, and for 
change, we must recommit ourselves to the work we have to do. Our charge is to create a more 
equitable society for all of us, because all lives can’t matter unless BLACK lives matter!” 
 


### 
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unapologetically, our community, our culture, and our significance to this country.  As we
celebrate Juneteenth this year, at a time when there is a renewed call – an awe-inspiring
DEMAND – for justice, and for change, we must recommit ourselves to the work we have to
do. Our charge is to create a more equitable society for all of us, because all lives can’t matter
unless BLACK lives matter!”
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From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES AUDIT OF LAW ENFORCEMENT

EMPLOYMENT EXAMINATION AND HIRING PRACTICES
Date: Thursday, June 18, 2020 11:55:41 AM
Attachments: 06.18.20 Law Enfrocement Exam Audit.pdf

 
 
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
Date: Thursday, June 18, 2020 at 11:02 AM
To: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>
Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES AUDIT
OF LAW ENFORCEMENT EMPLOYMENT EXAMINATION AND HIRING PRACTICES
 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Thursday, June 18, 2020
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org
 

*** PRESS RELEASE ***
MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES AUDIT OF LAW
ENFORCEMENT EMPLOYMENT EXAMINATION AND

HIRING PRACTICES
New program will identify and implement processes to screen for bias in hiring and promotion

of law enforcement officials
 
San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed today announced the San Francisco
Department of Human Resources will conduct a targeted audit of all upcoming law
enforcement job examinations. Changing the way San Francisco hires and promotes law
enforcement officers is a key part of Mayor Breed’s vision to fundamentally change the nature
of policing and address structural inequities.
 
The Department of Human Resources will lead a process in collaboration with the Civil
Service Commission, the Police Department, and the Sheriff’s Office to review current entry-
level and promotional exams to ensure that the City’s testing process helps identify candidates
who possess the requisite ethics, judgment, and temperament to serve as a San Francisco law
enforcement officer.
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
New program will identify and implement processes to screen for bias in hiring and promotion of 


law enforcement officials 


 


San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed today announced the San Francisco Department 


of Human Resources will conduct a targeted audit of all upcoming law enforcement job 


examinations. Changing the way San Francisco hires and promotes law enforcement officers is a 


key part of Mayor Breed’s vision to fundamentally change the nature of policing and address 


structural inequities.  


 


The Department of Human Resources will lead a process in collaboration with the Civil Service 


Commission, the Police Department, and the Sheriff’s Office to review current entry-level and 


promotional exams to ensure that the City’s testing process helps identify candidates who 


possess the requisite ethics, judgment, and temperament to serve as a San Francisco law 


enforcement officer. 


 


On June 11, Mayor Breed announced a set of public safety reforms, including policies to address 


police bias and strengthen accountability. Mayor Breed directed the Department of Human 


Resources, Department of Police Accountability, and San Francisco Police Department (SFPD) 


to identify and screen for indicators of bias, improve training systems, improve data sharing 


across Departments, and strengthen the SFPD’s Early Intervention System in order to enhance 


the tools being used to root out bias within law enforcement agencies. Today’s announcement 


addresses Mayor Breed’s request to identify and screen law enforcement officials for indicators 


of bias during the hiring and promotion process. 


 


“We want our law enforcement officers to reflect the best of our City and our values. While most 


do, we can improve how we are identifying the qualities that we want as well as those we know 


we don’t,” said Mayor Breed. “I thank the Department of Human Resources for being a partner 


to reduce the influence of implicit and explicit bias, which will strengthen the relationships 


between law enforcement and our communities and ultimately save lives.” 


 


The pending examination for Police Sergeant will be canceled, until after the conclusion of the 


audit and adoption of any necessary modifications. The Police Captain exam, scheduled for July 


2020, and any hiring from existing police promotional lists will incorporate an assessment for 


these critical job-related principles in the final selection procedures used by the Police 


Department. The Department of Human Resources will also suspend the continuous entry-level 
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police officer and deputy sheriff exams until the audit is completed. The underlying job analyses 


will also be reviewed to give proper weight to these important job-related factors. 


 


There are inequities at every level of the criminal justice system. Many studies show that often 


unconscious or implicit bias plays a significant role in the split-second decisions that lead to the 


disproportionate policing, incarceration, and use of force. The Department of Human Resources 


seeks to use the hiring process to proactively identify candidates through the examination 


process who possess the values, skills and abilities that match those of a law enforcement agency 


that is grounded in reform, has the tools to manage bias, and respects the sanctity of life. 


 


“It is our responsibility as a City to use the tools we have available to identify candidates for law 


enforcement positions who would not be too quick to use force, who are patient and 


compassionate, or who would not be likely to let racial bias drive their attitudes and actions,” 


said Micki Callahan, Human Resources Director. “This is an opportunity to implement the most 


modern and enlightened assessment systems available. When it comes to selecting peace 


officers, the stakes are too high for us to make mistakes.” 


 


“The San Francisco Police Department stands for safety with respect for all, and there should be 


no place in law enforcement in our City for candidates who fall short of our values,” said  


San Francisco Police Chief Bill Scott. “I’m grateful to Mayor Breed for her leadership in 


ordering this audit to identify and implement all necessary improvements to our examination, 


hiring and training practices. Recruitment and hiring are critical elements in SFPD’s 


groundbreaking, voluntary, department-wide Collaborative Reform Initiative. Although recent 


CRI reforms are already making measurable strides to reduce uses of force and eliminate bias, 


Mayor Breed’s bold initiative will speed our progress and help us to fulfill CRI’s promise to 


make the San Francisco Police Department a national model in 21st Century Policing.” 


 


The audit will: bolster the City’s on-going commitment to the Collaborative Reform Initiative 


(CRI), which began in 2016; is in line with recommendations from the Obama Administration’s 


21st Century Policing Task Force; and meets the urgency of the movement for reform in law 


enforcement practices. The Task Force encouraged states to elevate hiring standards for those 


who seek to become police officers, and it recommended that agencies ensure that the officers 


they hire possess “the character traits and social skills that enable effective policing and positive 


community relationships.” 


 


Screening for bias in the hiring process is an extension of implicit bias training that the 


Department of Human Resources developed and has led citywide, including for both the Police 


Department and the Sheriff’s Office, for the last five years. To date, 1,712 sworn Sheriffs and 


Police Departments employees have taken implicit bias training delivered by the Department of 


Human Resources. Citywide, the Department of Human Resources has delivered over 3,900 in-


person trainings to City employees. 


 


“The San Francisco Sheriff’s Office has been a national leader in supporting change that has 


reduced the city’s incarceration rate to one of the lowest levels in the country,” said Sheriff Paul 


Miyamoto. “Our use of force policy is a living document we continually reassess and update.  
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We are committed to hiring, training and implicit bias reforms that reflect our promise to treat 


everyone fairly and keep the community safe. With one of the most ethnically diverse 


departments in the city, we are still ever mindful that we reflect not just the people of the 


community, but the values of the City that we serve.” 


 


The Civil Service Commission recently asked for a high-level report on the various practices in 


place to raise awareness about bias and the preventative efforts underway to ensure that the City 


does not recruit, hire, or promote individuals who have a high propensity for bias in policing or 


abuse of power in their careers as a San Francisco law enforcement officers. The Department of 


Human Resources agreed and determined that a larger scale audit and process reevaluation was 


appropriate.  


 


“I asked for a report on how we are ensuring we do not hire or promote police officers and 


deputy sheriffs who would perpetuate racism, the abuse of power, and the abuse of People of 


Color,” said Elizabeth Salveson, President of the Civil Service Commission. “I am looking 


forward to that report and the Commission’s participation in this audit.” 


 


The Department of Human Resources will work with experts in bias to define the characteristics 


needed in a San Francisco peace officer that go above and beyond what is minimally required in 


California Commission on Peace Officer Standards and Training (POST) mandates. Testing 


practices are expected to be evaluated and changed as necessary to screen for values and skills 


such as integrity, problem solving, and community-oriented skills. The audit is expected to be 


completed within three months.   


 


 


### 







On June 11, Mayor Breed announced a set of public safety reforms, including policies to
address police bias and strengthen accountability. Mayor Breed directed the Department of
Human Resources, Department of Police Accountability, and San Francisco Police
Department (SFPD) to identify and screen for indicators of bias, improve training systems,
improve data sharing across Departments, and strengthen the SFPD’s Early Intervention
System in order to enhance the tools being used to root out bias within law enforcement
agencies. Today’s announcement addresses Mayor Breed’s request to identify and screen law
enforcement officials for indicators of bias during the hiring and promotion process.
 
“We want our law enforcement officers to reflect the best of our City and our values. While
most do, we can improve how we are identifying the qualities that we want as well as those we
know we don’t,” said Mayor Breed. “I thank the Department of Human Resources for being a
partner to reduce the influence of implicit and explicit bias, which will strengthen the
relationships between law enforcement and our communities and ultimately save lives.”
 
The pending examination for Police Sergeant will be canceled, until after the conclusion of the
audit and adoption of any necessary modifications. The Police Captain exam, scheduled for
July 2020, and any hiring from existing police promotional lists will incorporate an assessment
for these critical job-related principles in the final selection procedures used by the Police
Department. The Department of Human Resources will also suspend the continuous entry-
level police officer and deputy sheriff exams until the audit is completed. The underlying job
analyses will also be reviewed to give proper weight to these important job-related factors.
 
There are inequities at every level of the criminal justice system. Many studies show that often
unconscious or implicit bias plays a significant role in the split-second decisions that lead to
the disproportionate policing, incarceration, and use of force. The Department of Human
Resources seeks to use the hiring process to proactively identify candidates through the
examination process who possess the values, skills and abilities that match those of a law
enforcement agency that is grounded in reform, has the tools to manage bias, and respects the
sanctity of life.
 
“It is our responsibility as a City to use the tools we have available to identify candidates for
law enforcement positions who would not be too quick to use force, who are patient and
compassionate, or who would not be likely to let racial bias drive their attitudes and actions,”
said Micki Callahan, Human Resources Director. “This is an opportunity to implement the
most modern and enlightened assessment systems available. When it comes to selecting peace
officers, the stakes are too high for us to make mistakes.”
 
“The San Francisco Police Department stands for safety with respect for all, and there should
be no place in law enforcement in our City for candidates who fall short of our values,” said
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
make the San Francisco Police Department a national model in 21st Century Policing.”
 
The audit will: bolster the City’s on-going commitment to the Collaborative Reform Initiative
(CRI), which began in 2016; is in line with recommendations from the Obama



Administration’s 21st Century Policing Task Force; and meets the urgency of the movement
for reform in law enforcement practices. The Task Force encouraged states to elevate hiring
standards for those who seek to become police officers, and it recommended that agencies
ensure that the officers they hire possess “the character traits and social skills that enable
effective policing and positive community relationships.”
 
Screening for bias in the hiring process is an extension of implicit bias training that the
Department of Human Resources developed and has led citywide, including for both the
Police Department and the Sheriff’s Office, for the last five years. To date, 1,712 sworn
Sheriffs and Police Departments employees have taken implicit bias training delivered by the
Department of Human Resources. Citywide, the Department of Human Resources has
delivered over 3,900 in-person trainings to City employees.
 
“The San Francisco Sheriff’s Office has been a national leader in supporting change that has
reduced the city’s incarceration rate to one of the lowest levels in the country,” said Sheriff
Paul Miyamoto. “Our use of force policy is a living document we continually reassess and
update.  We are committed to hiring, training and implicit bias reforms that reflect our promise
to treat everyone fairly and keep the community safe. With one of the most ethnically diverse
departments in the city, we are still ever mindful that we reflect not just the people of the
community, but the values of the City that we serve.”
 
The Civil Service Commission recently asked for a high-level report on the various practices
in place to raise awareness about bias and the preventative efforts underway to ensure that the
City does not recruit, hire, or promote individuals who have a high propensity for bias in
policing or abuse of power in their careers as a San Francisco law enforcement officers. The
Department of Human Resources agreed and determined that a larger scale audit and process
reevaluation was appropriate.
 
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
 
The Department of Human Resources will work with experts in bias to define the
characteristics needed in a San Francisco peace officer that go above and beyond what is
minimally required in California Commission on Peace Officer Standards and Training
(POST) mandates. Testing practices are expected to be evaluated and changed as necessary to
screen for values and skills such as integrity, problem solving, and community-oriented skills.
The audit is expected to be completed within three months. 
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